
REGULAR MEETING 
Board of Supervisors’ Chambers, 70 West Hedding Street, First Floor, San Jose 

June 5, 2024 ▪ 1:15 PM 
AGENDA  

Chairperson: Russ Melton    ▪   Vice-Chairperson: Sylvia Arenas 

PUBLIC ACCESS AND PARTICIPATION  
This meeting will be held in person at the location listed above. As a courtesy, and technology 
permitting, members of the public may also attend by virtual teleconference. However, LAFCO cannot 
guarantee that the public’s access to teleconferencing technology will be uninterrupted, and technical 
difficulties may occur from time to time. Unless required by the Brown Act, the meeting will continue 
despite technical difficulties for participants using the teleconferencing option. To attend the meeting by 
virtual teleconference, access the meeting at https://sccgov-org.zoom.us/j/94145593411 or by 
dialing (669) 900-6833 and entering Meeting ID 94145593411# when prompted.  

PUBLIC COMMENT INSTRUCTIONS 
Written Public Comments may be submitted by email to LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org. Written comments 
will be distributed to the Commission and posted to the agenda on the LAFCO website as quickly as 
possible but may take up to 24 hours. 

Spoken public comments may be provided in-person at the meeting. Persons who wish to address 
the Commission on an item are requested to complete a Request to Speak Form and place it in the 
designated tray near the dais. Request to Speak Forms must be submitted prior to the start of public 
comment for the desired item. For items on the Consent Calendar or items added to the Consent 
Calendar, Request to Speak Forms must be submitted prior to the call for public comment on the 
Consent Calendar. Individual speakers will be called to speak in turn. Speakers are requested to limit 
their comments to the time limit allotted.  

Spoken public comments may also be provided through the teleconference meeting. To address 
the Commission virtually, click on the link https://sccgov-org.zoom.us/j/94145593411 to access the 
meeting and follow the instructions below:  

• You will be asked to enter an email address and name. We request that you identify yourself by
name as this will be visible online and will be used to notify you when it is your turn to speak.

• When the Chairperson calls for the item on which you wish to speak, click on “raise hand” icon. The
Clerk will activate and unmute speakers in turn. Speakers will be notified shortly before they are
called to speak. Call-in attendees press *9 to request to speak, and *6 to unmute when prompted.

• When called to speak, please limit your remarks to the time limit allotted.

https://sccgov-org.zoom.us/j/95874445434
mailto:LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org
https://sccgov-org.zoom.us/j/95874445434


PAGE 2 of 5 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
• Pursuant to Government Code §84308, no LAFCO commissioner shall accept, solicit, or direct a 

contribution of more than $250 from any party, or a party’s agent; or any participant or the 
participant’s agent if the commission knows or has reason to know that the participant has a 
financial interest, while a LAFCO proceeding is pending, and for 12 months following the date a 
final decision is rendered by LAFCO. Prior to rendering a decision on a LAFCO proceeding, any 
LAFCO commissioner who received a contribution of more than $250 within the preceding 12 
months from a party or participant shall disclose that fact on the record of the proceeding. If a 
commissioner receives a contribution which would otherwise require disqualification returns the 
contribution within 30 days from the time the commissioner knows or should have known, about 
the contribution and the proceeding, the commissioner shall be permitted to participate in the 
proceeding. A party to a LAFCO proceeding shall disclose on the record of the proceeding any 
contribution of more than $250 within the preceding 12 months by the party, or the party’s agent, 
to a LAFCO commissioner. For forms, visit the LAFCO website at www.santaclaralafco.org. No 
party, or the party’s agent and no participant, or the participant’s agent, shall make a contribution 
of more than $250 to any LAFCO commissioner during the proceeding or for 12 months following 
the date a final decision is rendered by LAFCO. 

• Pursuant to Government Code Sections 56100.1, 56300, 56700.1, 57009 and 81000 et seq., any 
person or combination of persons who directly or indirectly contribute(s) a total of $1,000 or more 
or expend(s) a total of $1,000 or more in support of or in opposition to specified LAFCO proposals 
or proceedings, which generally include proposed reorganizations or changes of organization, may 
be required to comply with the disclosure requirements of the Political Reform Act (See also, 
Section 84250 et seq.). These requirements contain provisions for making disclosures of 
contributions and expenditures at specified intervals. More information on the scope of the 
required disclosures is available at the web site of the FPPC: www.fppc.ca.gov. Questions regarding 
FPPC material, including FPPC forms, should be directed to the FPPC’s advice line at 1-866-ASK-
FPPC (1-866-275- 3772). 

• Pursuant to Government Code §56300(c), LAFCO adopted lobbying disclosure requirements which 
require that any person or entity lobbying the Commission or Executive Officer in regard to an 
application before LAFCO must file a declaration prior to the hearing on the LAFCO application or 
at the time of the hearing if that is the initial contact. In addition to submitting a declaration, any 
lobbyist speaking at the LAFCO hearing must so identify themselves as lobbyists and identify on the 
record the name of the person or entity making payment to them. Additionally, every applicant 
shall file a declaration under penalty of perjury listing all lobbyists that they have hired to influence 
the action taken by LAFCO on their application. For forms, visit the LAFCO website at 
www.santaclaralafco.org. 

• Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on the agenda and distributed to all 
or a majority of the Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to that meeting are available for public 
inspection at the LAFCO Office, 777 North First Street, Suite 410, San Jose, California, during normal 
business hours. (Government Code §54957.5.) 

• In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for this 
meeting should notify the LAFCO Clerk 24 hours prior to meeting at (408) 993- 4705.  

  

http://www.santaclaralafco.org/
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/
http://www.santaclaralafco.org/


PAGE 3 of 5 

1. ROLL CALL 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This portion of the meeting provides an opportunity for members of the public to 
address the Commission on matters not on the agenda, provided that the subject matter 
is within the jurisdiction of the Commission. No action may be taken on off- agenda 
items unless authorized by law. Speakers are limited to THREE minutes. All statements 
that require a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing. 

3. APPROVE CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Consent Calendar includes Agenda Items marked with an asterisk (*). The 
Commission may add to or remove agenda items from the Consent Calendar.  

All items that remain on the Consent Calendar are voted on in one motion. If an item is 
approved on the Consent Calendar, the specific action recommended by staff is adopted. 
Members of the public who wish to address the Commission on Consent Calendar items 
should comment under this item.  

*4. APPROVE MINUTES OF APRIL 3, 2024 LAFCO MEETING  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

5. FINAL WORK PLAN AND BUDGET FOR FY 2025 
Recommended Action:  

1. Adopt the Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2024-2025, as revised by the Commission at 
its April 3, 2024 meeting. 

2. Adopt the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 

3.  Find that the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2025 is expected to be adequate to allow 
the Commission to fulfill its statutory responsibilities. 

4.  Authorize staff to transmit the Final Budget adopted by the Commission including 
the estimated agency costs to the cities, the special districts, the County, the Cities 
Association of Santa Clara County and the Santa Clara County Special Districts 
Association. 

5.  Direct the County Auditor-Controller to apportion LAFCO costs to the cities; to the 
special districts; and to the County; and to collect payment pursuant to 
Government Code §56381. 

ITEMS FOR ACTION / INFORMATION 

*6.  WEST VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 2024-01 (BIG BASIN)  
Recommended Action:  

CEQA Action 



PAGE 4 of 5 

1. As Lead Agency under CEQA, determine that the proposal is categorically exempt 
from the provisions of CEQA pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines §15319 (a) & (b), 
and §15303(d). 

Project Action 

2. Approve the annexation of approximately 1.23 acres of land (APN 503-48-029) 
located within the City of Saratoga, to the West Valley Sanitation District. 

3. Waive protest proceedings pursuant to Government Code §56662(a).    

*7. WEST VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 2024-02 (HIGH STREET)  

Recommended Action:  

CEQA Action 

1. As Lead Agency under CEQA, determine that the proposal is categorically exempt 
from the provisions of CEQA pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines §15319 (a) & (b), 
and §15303(d). 

Project Action 

2. Approve the annexation of approximately 0.66 acres of land (APN 532-23-034) 
located within the Town of Los Gatos, to the West Valley Sanitation District. 

3. Waive protest proceedings pursuant to Government Code §56662(a).    

8. IMPLEMENTATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM LAFCO’S COUNTYWIDE FIRE 
SERVICE REVIEW 

Recommended Action: Accept report and provide direction, as necessary. 

9. CALAFCO RELATED ACTIVITIES  

9.1 Report on the 2024 CALAFCO Staff Workshop (April 24 – 26, 2024) 
  For Information Only. 

9.2 2024 CALAFCO Annual Conference (October 16 – 18, 2024)  

Recommended Action: Authorize commissioners and staff to attend the Annual 
Conference and direct that associated travel expenses be funded by the LAFCO 
Budget for Fiscal Year 2025.  

9.3 Nominations to the CALAFCO Board of Directors  

Recommended Action: Nominate interested Commissioners and provide 
further direction to staff, as necessary.  

9.4 Designate Voting Delegate and Alternate for 2024 CALAFCO Board of Directors 
Election  
Recommended Action: Appoint voting delegate and alternate voting delegate.  

 



PAGE 5 of 5 

10. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

11. NEWSPAPER ARTICLES / NEWSLETTERS 
11.1  CALAFCO Quarterly Newsletter (May 2024) 

11.2  Article from Mercury News, "It’s not just skyscrapers and high-density also 
density — ‘builder’s remedy’ is also bringing sprawl bringing more urban sprawl" 
(April 22, 2024) 

12. WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE 

13. ADJOURN 
Adjourn to the regular LAFCO meeting on August 7, 2024 at 1:15 PM in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Chambers, 70 West Hedding Street, San Jose. 

 





PAGE 1 OF 4 

LAFCO MEETING MINUTES 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 3, 2024 

CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 1:16 p.m. 

1. ROLL CALL
Commissioners
• Russ Melton, Chairperson
• Sylvia Arenas, Vice Chairperson
• Jim Beall
• Rosemary Kamei (Arrived at 1:22 p.m.)
• Yoriko Kishimoto
• Otto Lee
• Terry Trumbull

Alternate Commissioners
• Domingo Candelas (Absent)
• Cindy Chavez (Absent)
• Helen Chapman (Arrived at 1:17 p.m.)
• Teresa O’Neill
• Mark Turner

Staff
• Neelima Palacherla, Executive Officer
• Dunia Noel, Assistant Executive Officer
• Emmanuel Abello, Associate Analyst
• Sonia Humphrey, Clerk
• Mala Subramanian, Counsel

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS
There were none.

ITEM # 4



 

 
PAGE 2 OF 4 

 
 

3. APPROVE CONSENT CALENDAR 
MOTION: Beall  SECOND: Arenas 

AYES: Arenas, Beall, Kamei, Kishimoto, Lee, Melton, Trumbull 

NOES: None   ABSTAIN: None   ABSENT: None 

Commission Action: Chairperson Melton added Agenda Item #7 to the Consent 
Calendar and the Commission approved the Consent Calendar, including items #4, 
#7, #8 and #9.   

*4. TAKEN ON CONSENT: APPROVE MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 7, 2024 LAFCO 
MEETING  
The Commission approved the minutes of the February 7, 2024 meeting. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

5. PROPOSED WORK PLAN AND BUDGET FOR FY 2025  

MOTION: Arenas  SECOND: Kamei  

AYES: Arenas, Beall, Kamei, Kishimoto, Lee, Melton, Trumbull 

NOES: None   ABSTAIN: None   ABSENT: None 

Commission Action:  

1. Directed staff to amend the Proposed Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 to 
include a work item on the development of agricultural worker housing 
policies.  

2. Adopted the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025.  

3. Found that the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2025 is adequate to allow the 
Commission to fulfill its statutory responsibilities.  

4. Authorized staff to transmit the Proposed Budget adopted by the Commission 
including the estimated agency costs as well as the LAFCO public hearing 
notice for the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2025 Final Budget to the cities, the 
special districts, the County, the Cities Association of Santa Clara County, and 
the Santa Clara County Special Districts Association. 

 

 

 

 



 

 
PAGE 3 OF 4 

 
 

ITEMS FOR ACTION / INFORMATION 

6. IMPLEMENTATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM LAFCO’S COUNTYWIDE 
FIRE SERVICE REVIEW 
MOTION: Lee  SECOND: Arenas 

AYES: Arenas, Beall, Kamei, Kishimoto, Lee, Melton, Trumbull 

NOES: None   ABSTAIN: None   ABSENT: None 

Commission Action:  The Commission accepted the report and directed staff to 
prepare letters addressed to the mayors of the cities of Santa Clara and Gilroy for 
LAFCO Chair signature, requesting their written response to the recommendations 
contained in LAFCO’s Countywide Fire Service Review report.  

*7. TAKEN ON CONSENT: LEGISLATIVE REPORT – UPDATE AND POSITION 
LETTERS 

MOTION: Beall  SECOND: Arenas 

AYES: Arenas, Beall, Kamei, Kishimoto, Lee, Melton, Trumbull 

NOES: None   ABSTAIN: None   ABSENT: None 

Commission Action: Accepted report, took a support position and authorized staff 
to send support letters to the appropriate parties on the following bills: 

a. AB 3277 (Assembly Committee on Local Government) Omnibus Bill 

b. SB 1209 (Cortese) Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act of 2000: Indemnification 

*8.  TAKEN ON CONSENT: EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT  
Commission Action: Accepted the report.  
8.1 Presentation on LAFCO to County Planning Commission 

8.2 Presentation on LAFCO to Leadership Morgan Hill 

8.3 Special Districts Association Meeting 

8.4 Joint Venture Silicon Valley’s 2024 State of the Valley Conference 

8.5 Santa Clara County Association of Planning Officials Meeting 

*9.  TAKEN ON CONSENT: LAFCO COMMISSIONER APPOINTMENTS BY CITY 
SELECTION COMMITTEE   
For Information only. 



 

 
PAGE 4 OF 4 

 
 

10. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

11. NEWSPAPER ARTICLES / NEWSLETTERS 
Gilroy Dispatch - Letter: Eager to support LAFCO policies 

12. WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE 

13. ADJOURN 
The Commission adjourned at 2:56 p.m., to the next regular LAFCO meeting on June 
5, 2024, at 1:15 p.m., in the Board of Supervisors’ Chambers, 70 West Hedding Street, 
San Jose. 

 
 
Approved on June 5, 2024. 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Russ Melton, Chairperson 
Local Agency Formation Commission of Santa Clara County 
 
 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
       Sonia Humphrey, LAFCO Clerk 

 
 



 
 

PAGE 1 OF 3 

ITEM #5 

LAFCO MEETING: June 5, 2024 

TO:    LAFCO 

FROM:  Neelima Palacherla, Executive Officer  
   Dunia Noel, Asst. Executive Officer  

SUBJECT:  FINAL WORK PLAN AND BUDGET FOR FY 2025 

FINANCE COMMITTEE / STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS  
1. Adopt the Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2024-2025, as revised by the Commission at 

its April 3, 2024 meeting.  
2. Adopt the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025.  
3. Find that the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2025 is expected to be adequate to 

allow the Commission to fulfill its statutory responsibilities.  
4. Authorize staff to transmit the Final Budget adopted by the Commission 

including the estimated agency costs to the cities, the special districts, the 
County, the Cities Association of Santa Clara County and the Santa Clara County 
Special Districts Association. 

5. Direct the County Auditor-Controller to apportion LAFCO costs to the cities; to 
the special districts; and to the County; and to collect payment pursuant to 
Government Code §56381.  

REVISIONS TO THE PROPOSED WORKPLAN FOR FY 2025 
On April 3, 2024, the Commission directed that staff revise the proposed workplan 
for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 to include an item related to development of agricultural 
worker housing policies. Staff has amended the proposed workplan accordingly.   

NO CHANGES TO THE DRAFT/PRELIMINARY BUDGET 
On April 3, 2024, the Commission adopted its preliminary budget for Fiscal Year 
2024-2025 as recommended by the Finance Committee. The preliminary budget 
adopted by the Commission is available in the report for Agenda Item # 5 of the 
April 3, 2024 LAFCO Meeting. No further changes are recommended to the 
preliminary budget adopted by the commission.  



PAGE 2 OF 3 

LAFCO ANNUAL BUDGET PROCESS REQUIREMENTS 
The Cortese Knox Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (CKH 
Act) which became effective on January 1, 2001, requires LAFCO, as an independent 
agency, to annually adopt a draft budget by May 1 and a final budget by June 15 at 
noticed public hearings. Both the draft and the final budgets are required to be 
transmitted to the cities, the special districts and the County. Government Code 
§56381(a) establishes that at a minimum, the budget must be equal to that of the 
previous year unless the Commission finds that reduced staffing or program costs 
will nevertheless allow it to fulfill its statutory responsibilities. Any unspent funds at 
the end of the year may be rolled over into the next fiscal year budget. After 
adoption of the final budget by LAFCO, the County Auditor is required to apportion 
the net operating expenses of the Commission to the agencies represented on 
LAFCO.  

LAFCO and the County of Santa Clara entered into a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) (effective since July 2001), under the terms of which, the County provides 
staffing, facilities, and services to LAFCO. The associated costs are reflected in the 
LAFCO budget. LAFCO is a stand-alone, separate fund within the County’s 
accounting and budget system and the LAFCO budget information is formatted using 
the County’s account descriptions/codes.  

COST APPORTIONMENT TO CITIES, DISTRICTS AND THE COUNTY 
The CKH Act requires LAFCO costs to be split in proportion to the percentage of an 
agency’s representation (excluding the public member) on the Commission. Santa 
Clara LAFCO is composed of a public member, two County board members, two city 
council members, and since January 2013 – two special district members. 
Government Code §56381(b)(1)(A) provides that when independent special 
districts are seated on LAFCO, the county, cities and districts must each provide a 
one-third share of LAFCO’s operational budget. 

Since the City of San Jose has permanent membership on LAFCO, as required by 
Government Code §56381.6(b), the City of San Jose’s share of LAFCO costs must be 
in the same proportion as its member bears to the total membership on the 
commission, excluding the public member. Therefore in Santa Clara County, the City 
of San Jose pays one sixth and the remaining cities pay one sixth of LAFCO’s 
operational costs.  Per the CKH Act, the remaining cities’ share must be apportioned 
in proportion to each city’s total revenue, as reported in the most recent edition of 
the Cities Annual Report published by the Controller, as a percentage of the 
combined city revenues within a county. Each city’s share is therefore based on the 
2021/2022 Report – which is the most recent edition available.  

Government Code Section 56381 provides that the independent special districts’ 
share shall be apportioned in proportion to each district’s total revenues as a 
percentage of the combined total district revenues within a county. The Santa Clara 
County Special Districts Association (SDA), at its August 13, 2012 meeting, adopted 
an alternative formula for distributing the independent special districts’ share to 



PAGE 3 OF 3 

individual districts. The SDA’s agreement requires each district’s cost to be based on 
a fixed percentage of the total independent special districts’ share. 

The estimated apportionment of LAFCO’s FY 2025 costs to the individual cities and 
districts is included as Attachment B. The final costs will be calculated and invoiced 
to the individual agencies by the County Controller’s Office after LAFCO adopts the 
final budget. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A: LAFCO Workplan for FY 2025 

Attachment B:  Final LAFCO Budget for Fiscal Year 2025 

Attachment C:   Costs to Agencies Based on the Final Budget 

 





PROPOSED WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025 

PAGE 1 OF 6 

  PRIORITY*   H - High Priority (essential activities: state mandate, Commission directive, requirements) 

M - Medium Priority (important, provided resources allow or time permits) 

L  - Low Priority (desirable provided resources allow or time permits, not urgent) 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 

L
A

F
C

O
 A

P
P

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

Process applicant-initiated LAFCO proposals Encourage pre-application meetings prior to 
application submittal 

Conduct pre-agenda meetings with County Depts. to 
obtain Assessor & Surveyor reports, as needed 

Process applications per CKH Act requirements: issue 
Notice of Application, Certificate of Filing / 
Sufficiency, Public Hearing Notice, staff report, 
conduct protest proceedings, as needed 

Staff H 

Comment on potential LAFCO applications, 

relevant projects & development proposals, 

city General Plan updates and/ or related 

environmental documents 

Ongoing, as needed Staff H 

Comprehensive review and update of LAFCO 

policies for context, clarity and consistency 

with State law 

In progress Staff /Ad Hoc 

Committee 

H 

Prepare flowcharts for LAFCO processes and 

update application packets and application 

fee schedules for current requirements and 

ease of public use 

Upon completion of policies update Staff L 

Develop policies regarding agricultural 

worker housing 

Review studies and plans on subject and research 
how others are addressing the issue 

Follow the County’s implementation of its workplan 
re. Agricultural Worker Housing and provide periodic 
updates to LAFCO 

Prepare policies to address agricultural worker 
housing through the Ad Hoc Committee / LAFCO 
Policies Comprehensive Review and Update process 

Staff/ Ad Hoc 
Committee 

H 

ITEM # 5
Attachment A



PROPOSED WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025 

PAGE 2 OF 6 

 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 

IS
L

A
N

D
 

A
N

N
E

X
A

T
IO

N
S

 

Conduct outreach to cities with islands, 

follow up on responses including 

review/research of city limits/ USA 

boundaries, and provide assistance with 

annexations or necessary USA amendments  

Prepare and distribute island maps to cities Staff L 

Review and finalize city-conducted island 

annexations  

Ongoing, as needed 

  

Staff H 

O
U

T
R

E
A

C
H

, 
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
 /

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 R
E

L
A

T
IO

N
S

 

&
  

C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 

Conduct outreach to increase awareness of 

LAFCO’s role 

 

 

 

  

Presentations on LAFCO to cities, other agencies or 
organizations, focus on south county communities, as 
relevant  

Distribute LAFCO communications material to elected 
officials and staff of cities, special districts and the 
County  

Seek exhibit opportunities at public spaces / events 

Maintain website as the primary information resource 
on LAFCO 

Increase social media presence (Twitter)  

Staff M 

 

M 

 

L 

H 

 
L 

Engage and establish relationships with local 

(cities, districts, county), regional 

(ABAG/MTC), state (SGC, OPR, DoC, 

SWRCB) agencies, organizations such as SDA, 

SCCAPO, CALAFCO, other stakeholder 

groups 

Attend regular meetings of SDA (quarterly), SCCAPO 
(monthly), and County Planning Dept. (quarterly)  

Small water systems issues / legislation 

Collaborate with agencies and entities with goals 
common to LAFCO 

Staff M 

 
M 
 

M 

Track LAFCO related legislation  EO attends CALAFCO Legislative Committee meetings 

Commission takes positions and submits letters on 
proposed legislation 

Staff L 
 

M 



PROPOSED WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025 

PAGE 3 OF 6 

 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 

Respond to public enquiries re. LAFCO 

policies, procedures and application filing 

requirements  

Timely response to public inquiries  

Update the PRA form for the website 

Document research on complex inquiries 

Report to Commission on complex inquiries 

Staff H 

L 

L 

H 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 R
E

V
IE

W
S

, 
S

P
E

C
IA

L
 S

T
U

D
IE

S
 &

  

S
P

H
E

R
E

 O
F

 I
N

F
L

U
E

N
C

E
 U

P
D

A
T

E
S

 

 

Countywide Fire Service Review Follow up with agencies on implementation of 
recommendations and report back to the commission 

Work with interested agencies on implementing 
recommendations requiring LAFCO action  

Staff  H 

 

H 

Countywide Water and Wastewater Service 

Review  

Develop water/wastewater service review workplan 
and identify method for consultant selection  

Staff M 

Continue to monitor implementation of 

recommendations from previous service 

reviews and conduct special studies, as 

necessary 

RRRPD study – city took action to delay decision on 
consolidation 

 

Staff L 

Map Mutual Water companies  Initial maps complete, further through service review Staff L 

Engage in or support grant / partnership 

opportunities on issues related to enhancing 

viability of agriculture, and climate smart 

growth  

As needed, and as opportunities arise Staff L 

Compile and post JPA filings on the LAFCO 

website 

Notice provided, gather JPA information through 
service review process  

 

Staff L 



PROPOSED WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025 

PAGE 4 OF 6 

 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 

Provide ongoing support to the 12 

commissioners for regularly scheduled 

Commission meetings, special meetings and 

Committee meetings (Finance Committee, 

and the Ad-Hoc Committee)  

Prepare and distribute public hearing notices and 
agenda packets, provide staff support during the 
meetings, record minutes, broadcast meetings 

Hold pre-agenda review meeting with Chair 

Hold pre-meeting calls with individual commissioners 
to address agenda item questions and prepare 
meeting script for Chair 

Process commissioner per diems for attendance at 
LAFCO meetings 

Staff H 

Keep the Commission informed  EO report 

Off-agenda emails, as needed 

Provide ongoing educational opportunities/events, 
including presentations from local agencies 

Staff  
 

H 

Onboarding new Commissioners  Facilitate filing / completion of Form 700, 
commissioner pledge, ethics training  

Update LAFCO letterhead, directory, and website  

Set up vendor accounts, provide parking permits 

Conduct new Commissioner orientation 

Recognize outgoing commissioners for LAFCO service  

Staff H 

Commissioners Selection Process Inform appointing bodies of any upcoming vacancies 
and provide information on appointment criteria 

Convene ISDSC committee meeting, as necessary 

Coordinate public member selection process, as 
necessary 

Staff H 

Conduct a Strategic Planning Workshop  Most recent workshop in 2018 re. LAFCO 
Communications and Outreach Plan  

Staff / Consultant L 

Commissioner participation in CALAFCO Support commissioner participation in CALAFCO 
activities / or election to the CALAFCO Board 

Staff L 



PROPOSED WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025 

PAGE 5 OF 6 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Prepare LAFCO annual work plan March – June 2025 Staff/Finance 

Committee 

H 

Prepare LAFCO annual budget March – June 2025 Staff/Finance 

Committee 

H 

Prepare LAFCO Annual Report August 2024 Staff H 

Prepare LAFCO Annual Financial Audit October 2024 (Contract with Chavan Associates 
extended for FY 2024 thru FY 2027) 

Consultant / Staff H 

Office / facility management Coordinate with Building Manager on facilities issues 

Coordinate with County re. computers/network, 
phone, printers, office security, procurement, 
installation & maintenance 

Order and manage office supplies 

Make travel arrangements and process expense 
reimbursements. 

Process mileage reimbursements 

Office space lease extended (lease extended through 
April 30, 2027) 

Staff H 

Records management Organize scan of LAFCO records to Electronic 
Document Management System (Laserfiche) 

Maintain LAFCO’s hard copy records 

Maintain and enhance the LAFCO Website 

Maintain LAFCO database 

Staff/ Consultant 

Staff 

H 

H 

H 

H 

Contracts and payments & receivables Track consultant contracts and approve invoices 

Approve vendor invoices / process annual payments 
for various services/ memberships 

Coordinate with County Controller’s Office and track 
annual collection of payments from member agencies 

Staff H 



PROPOSED WORK PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025 

PAGE 6 OF 6 

 

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ACTIVITIES / TIMELINE RESOURCES PRIORITY* 

Review and update LAFCO bylaws / 

administrative policies and procedures  

Ongoing, as needed Staff H 

 

Staff training and development CALAFCO workshops, conferences, relevant courses 

Training of new LAFCO Clerk  

Implementation of the work plan for staff professional 
development 

Staff H 

H 

H 

Coordinate with County on administrative 

issues  

Attend monthly meetings with the Deputy County 
Executive 

Staff H 

Staff performance evaluation  April – December 2024 Staff/Commission H 

Other administrative functions mandated of a 

public agency (Form 806, maintaining 

liability/workers comp insurance, etc.)  

Ongoing  Staff H 

 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 



FINAL LAFCO BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024- 2025

ITEM # TITLE

APPROVED     

BUDGET    

FY 2024 

ACTUALS 

Year to Date 

3/11/2024

 PROJECTIONS 

Year End    

FY 2024

FINAL 

BUDGET    

FY 2025

EXPENDITURES

Object 1: Salary and Benefits $882,121 $548,092 $831,222 $862,484 

Object 2: Services and Supplies

5255100 Intra-County Professional $10,000 $0 $10,000 $10,000

5255800 Legal Counsel $82,780 $54,425 $82,000 $85,780

5255500 Consultant  Services $150,000 $55,742 $70,000 $150,000

5285700 Meal Claims $750 $139 $600 $750

5220100 Insurance $8,335 $8,125 $8,335 $6,737

5250100 Office Expenses $5,000 $1,887 $4,000 $5,000

5270100 Rent & Lease $54,766 $40,869 $54,766 $56,416

5255650 Data Processing Services $27,520 $16,832 $27,000 $22,517

5225500 Commissioners' Fee $10,000 $4,400 $10,000 $10,000

5260100 Publications and Legal Notices $1,000 $44 $500 $1,000

5245100 Membership Dues $13,870 $13,936 $13,936 $14,509

5250750 Printing and Reproduction $1,500 $416 $1,500 $1,500

5285800 Business Travel $15,900 $8,557 $15,000 $21,000

5285300 Private Automobile Mileage $1,000 $403 $750 $1,000

5285200 Transportation&Travel (County Car Usage) $600 $0 $200 $600

5281600 Overhead $20,358 $10,173 $20,358 $21,119

5275200 Computer Hardware $4,000 $0 $3,000 $4,000

5250800 Computer Software $4,000 $1,203 $4,000 $4,000

5250250 Postage $500 $26 $300 $500

5252100 Staff/Commissioner Training Programs $2,000 $0 $1,000 $2,000

5701000 Reserves $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $1,296,000 $765,269 $1,158,467 $1,280,912

REVENUES

4103400 Application Fees $30,000 $11,323 $15,000 $25,000

4301100 Interest: Deposits and Investments $6,000 $14,562 $15,000 $6,000

TOTAL REVENUE $36,000 $25,885 $30,000 $31,000

3400150 FUND BALANCE FROM PREVIOUS FY $366,814 $407,582 $407,582 $172,301

NET LAFCO OPERATING EXPENSES $893,186 $331,802 $720,885 $1,077,611

3400800 RESERVES Available $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000

 COSTS TO AGENCIES

5440200 County $297,729 $297,729 $297,729 $359,204

4600100 Cities (San Jose 50% + Other Cities 50%) $297,729 $297,729 $297,729 $359,204

4600100 Special Districts $297,729 $297,729 $297,729 $359,204

5/29/2024

ITEM # 5
Attachment B





$1,077,611

JURISDICTION
REVENUE PER 

2021/2022 REPORT

PERCENTAGE OF 

TOTAL REVENUE

ALLOCATION 

PERCENTAGES

ALLOCATED 

COSTS

County N/A N/A 33.3333333% $359,203.67 

Cities Total Share 33.3333333% $359,203.67 

San Jose N/A N/A 50.0000000% $179,601.84 

Other cities share 50.0000000% $179,601.83 

Campbell $75,467,809 1.9125415% $3,434.96 

Cupertino $129,437,941 3.2802785% $5,891.44 

Gilroy $155,661,855 3.9448575% $7,085.04 

Los Altos $68,948,492 1.7473258% $3,138.23 

Los Altos Hills $21,241,527 0.5383130% $966.82 

Los Gatos $68,358,558 1.7323754% $3,111.38 

Milpitas $184,621,280 4.6787612% $8,403.14 

Monte Sereno $5,176,569 0.1311871% $235.61 

Morgan Hill $118,001,078 2.9904400% $5,370.88 

Mountain View $457,001,226 11.5815447% $20,800.67 

Palo Alto $658,551,528 16.6893293% $29,974.34 

Santa Clara $1,248,643,286 31.6437181% $56,832.70 

Saratoga $43,208,940 1.0950217% $1,966.68 

Sunnyvale $711,623,561 18.0343062% $32,389.94 

Total Cities (excluding San Jose) $3,945,943,650 100.0000000% $179,601.83 

Total Cities (including San Jose) $359,203.67

Special Districts Total Share (Fixed %) 33.3333333% $359,203.66 

Aldercroft Heights County Water District 0.06233% $223.89 

Burbank Sanitary District 0.15593% $560.11 

Cupertino Sanitary District 2.64110% $9,486.93 

El Camino Healthcare District 4.90738% $17,627.49 

Guadalupe Coyote Resource Conservation District 0.04860% $174.57 

Lake Canyon Community Services District 0.02206% $79.24 

Lion's Gate Community Services District 0.22053% $792.15 

Loma Prieta Resource Conservation District 0.02020% $72.56 

Midpeninsula Regional Open Space District 5.76378% $20,703.71 

Purissima Hills Water District 1.35427% $4,864.59 

Rancho Rinconada Recreation and Park District 0.15988% $574.29 

San Martin County Water District 0.04431% $159.16 

Santa Clara Valley Open Space Authority 1.27051% $4,563.72 

Santa Clara Valley Water District 81.44126% $292,539.99 

Saratoga Cemetery District 0.32078% $1,152.25 

Saratoga Fire Protection District 1.52956% $5,494.24 

South Santa Clara Valley Memorial District 0.03752% $134.77 

Total Special Districts 100.00000% $359,203.66

Total Allocated Costs $1,077,611.00

LAFCO COST APPORTIONMENT: COUNTY, CITIES, SPECIAL DISTRICTS
Estimated Costs to Agencies Based on the Final FY 2025 LAFCO Budget

Net Operating Expenses for FY 2025

ITEM 5
Attachment C





 
 

PAGE 1 OF 4 

ITEM # 6 

LAFCO MEETING: June 5, 2024 

TO:    LAFCO 

FROM:  Neelima Palacherla, Executive Officer  
   Dunia Noel, Asst. Executive Officer 
   Emmanuel Abello, Associate Analyst   

SUBJECT:  WEST VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 2024-01 
   (Big Basin)  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

CEQA Action 
1. As Lead Agency under CEQA, determine that the proposal is categorically exempt 

from the provisions of CEQA pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines §15319(a) & (b), 
and §15303(d). 

Project Action 
2. Approve the annexation of approximately 1.23 acres of land (APN 503-48-

029) located within the City of Saratoga, to the West Valley Sanitation 
District. 

3. Waive protest proceedings pursuant to Government Code §56662(a).  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
LAFCO of Santa Clara County received an application, by landowner petition, to 
annex a privately-owned parcel (APN 503-48-029) into the West Valley Sanitation 
District (WVSD) in order to allow WVSD to provide sanitary sewer services. Please 
see Attachment A for an overview map depicting the current WVSD and the City of 
Saratoga boundaries in relationship to the annexation proposal.  

The annexation proposal includes one parcel (APN 503-48-029) of approximately 
1.23 acres in area, located at 21170 Big Basin Way in the City of Saratoga. The 
subject property is located within the city boundary and its Urban Service Area 
(USA). The subject parcel is currently developed with a single-family residence that 
is served by an onsite septic system. The City of Saratoga’s Municipal Code (Article 
7-10-070, Section B11.13.2) requires a property to connect to a public sanitary 
sewer when there is a change of more than 50 percent in ownership interest of a 
real property and that property is located within 200 feet of a public sanitary sewer. 



PAGE 2 OF 4 

The applicants acquired APN: 503-48-029 in 2022, which changed the ownership 
interest of the property by 100 percent. Per WVSD staff the property is within 200 
feet of WVSD’s sewer main. Therefore, the new property owners are seeking a sewer 
service connection from WVSD in order to comply with the above cited section of 
the City of Saratoga’s Municipal Code. In order to receive sewer service from WVSD, 
the property must first be annexed to the District. 

On April 10, 2024, WVSD adopted Resolution No. 24.04.02 indicating that it 
supports the requested annexation of APN 503-48-029 and WVSD staff has 
indicated that it has the ability to provide sewer service to the subject parcel which 
is currently developed with a single-family residence. 

Attachment B (Exhibits “A” and “B”) describes and depicts the boundaries of the 
proposed annexation. 

WAIVER OF PROTEST PROCEEDINGS 
The annexation territory is uninhabited, i.e., fewer than 12 registered voters reside 
within the territory. The annexation proposal has consent from all landowners of 
the property proposed for annexation. LAFCO has not received a request from the 
WVSD or from any other affected local agency, for notice, hearing or protest 
proceeding on the proposal. Therefore, pursuant to GC §56662(a), LAFCO is 
considering this proposal without notice or hearing and may waive protest 
proceedings.  

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

Categorical Exemption 
LAFCO of Santa Clara County is the Lead Agency under the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) for the proposed annexation of APN: 503-48-029 to the West 
Valley Sanitation District. The proposed annexation is exempt under State CEQA 
Guidelines §15319(a) & (b) and §15303(d).  

§15319: Class 19 consists of only the following annexations: 

(a) Annexation to a city or special district of areas containing existing public or 
private structures developed to the density allowed by the current zoning or 
pre-zoning of either the gaining or losing governmental agency whichever 
is more restrictive, provided, however, that the extension of utility services 
to the existing facilities would have a capacity to serve only the existing 
facilities.  

(b) Annexation of individual small parcels of the minimum size for facilities 
exempted by §15303, New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures.  

§15303: Class 3 consists of construction and location of limited numbers of new, 
small facilities or structures, installation of small new equipment and facilities 
in small structures from one use to another where only minor modifications are 
made in the exterior of the structure. The number of structures described in this 



PAGE 3 OF 4 

section are the maximum allowable on any legal parcel. Examples of this 
exemption include but are not limited to: 

(c) (d) Water main, sewage, electrical, gas, and other utility extensions, 
including street improvements, of reasonable length to serve such 
construction. 

CONSISTENCY WITH LAFCO FACTORS AND POLICIES 

Impacts to Agricultural Lands and Open Space 
The subject parcel is not under a Williamson Act Contract and does not contain open 
space or agricultural lands as defined in the Cortese Knox Hertzberg Act. The 
proposed annexation does not impact agricultural or open space lands.  
Logical & Orderly Boundaries 
The subject parcel is within WVSD’s Sphere of Influence and is contiguous to its 
boundary on the north and west. The subject parcel is located in the City of Saratoga 
and within the City’s USA. Please see Attachment A for Overview Map. 

The County Surveyor has reviewed the application and has found that the 
annexation boundaries are definite and certain. The Surveyor has also determined 
that the project conforms to LAFCO’s policies regarding the annexation of roads. The 
proposal will not create an island, corridor, or strip. The County Assessor has 
reviewed the proposal and found that the proposal conforms to lines of assessment. 
Growth Inducing Impacts 
The subject parcel (APN: 503-48-029) is currently developed with a single-family 
residence and no further development is proposed on the property.  

WVSD’s annexation policy generally restricts annexation of lands outside a city’s 
USA boundary consistent with LAFCO’s goal of promoting orderly growth and 
development.   

Properties in the vicinity of the subject territory, which are outside WVSD’s 
boundary but within its Sphere of Influence (SOI), are mostly developed and served 
by onsite septic systems. These properties are located either within the City of 
Saratoga and/or within the City’s USA. Therefore, the City and LAFCO have 
anticipated that the subject parcel and the surrounding parcels will eventually be 
provided with urban services and developed consistent with the City’s rules and 
regulations.   

Annexation of any additional lands to the WVSD would require LAFCO approval and 
LAFCO would conduct the required environmental analysis, including the 
consideration of the growth inducing impacts of such a proposal at that time. 
Ability of District to Provide Services 
WVSD has indicated that it has adequate sewer capacity to provide sanitary sewer 
services to the single-family residence located on the subject property without 
detracting from the existing service levels within its existing boundaries.  



PAGE 4 OF 4 

According to WVSD staff, the applicant can connect to an existing 10-inch WVSD 
sanitary sewer main located near the property and across Caltrans maintained State 
Route 9 Big Basin Way. The owner of APN: 503-48-029 will need to construct a new 
sewer lateral across Big Basin Way to connect to the sewer main. The property 
owners will apply to Caltrans for an encroachment permit to install a sewer lateral, 
once LAFCO has approved the annexation proposal and WVSD has issued the 
connection permit. The existing 10-inch sanitary sewer main has adequate capacity 
to accommodate the flow from the proposed annexation.   

There is adequate treatment capacity in WVSD’s agreement with the Regional 
Wastewater Facility (RWF) to accommodate this annexation.  WVSD’s treatment 
capacity allocation with the RWF is 11.697 million gallons per day.  The actual flow 
to the RWF in FY 2023 was 9.52 million gallons per day.  The average flow from a 
single-family home is 186 gallons per day. Per WVSD staff, the proposed annexation 
will not trigger any sewer related public capital improvements. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A: Overview Map depicting the proposed annexation in relation to 

the West Valley Sanitation District and the City of Saratoga 
boundaries  

Attachment B: Legal Description (Exhibit “A”) and Map (Exhibit “B”) of the 
proposed Annexation West Valley Sanitation District No. 2024-
01 (Big Basin) 

 

 

 



West Valley
Sanitation

District

Saratoga

S
T

O
N

E
R

ID
G

E DR

H
AY

M
EA

DOW
D

R

BIG BASIN WAY

LU
M

B
E

RTOWN LN

TOLLGATE RD

H
ID

D
E

N
V

IE
W

LN

A
M

B
R

IC
KNOLLS RD

BANK
M

ILL
RD

CONGRESS SPRINGS RD

¯
0 150

Feet

·|}þ17

·|}þ85
SARATOGA

LOS
GATOS

Prepared for the Office of the County Surveyor
May 3, 2024

August Hanks, County Surveyor

EXHIBIT A
Annexation No. 2024-01 (Big Basin)

1.23 acres +/-

County of Santa Clara
Department of Planning and Development
County Government Center, East Wing
70 West Hedding St., 7th Floor
San Jose, California 95110

Big Basin - Annexation No. 2024-01

West Valley Sanitation District

Area of Annexation

Incorporated Lands

ITEM # 6 
Attachment A





ITEM # 6 
Attachment B









 
 

PAGE 1 OF 4 

ITEM # 7 

LAFCO MEETING: June 5, 2024 

TO:    LAFCO 

FROM:  Neelima Palacherla, Executive Officer  
   Dunia Noel, Asst. Executive Officer 
   Emmanuel Abello, Associate Analyst   

SUBJECT:  WEST VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 2024-02 
   (High Street)  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

CEQA Action 
1. As Lead Agency under CEQA, determine that the proposal is categorically exempt 

from the provisions of CEQA pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines §15319(a) & (b), 
and §15303(d). 

Project Action 
2. Approve the annexation of approximately 0.66 acres of land (APN 532-23-

034) located within the Town of Los Gatos, to the West Valley Sanitation 
District. 

3. Waive protest proceedings pursuant to Government Code §56662(a).  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
LAFCO of Santa Clara County received an application, by landowner petition, to 
annex a privately-owned parcel (APN 532-23-034) into the West Valley Sanitation 
District (WVSD) in order to allow it to provide sanitary sewer services. Please see 
Attachment A for an overview map depicting the current WVSD and the Town of 
Los Gatos boundaries in relationship to the annexation proposal.  

The annexation proposal includes one parcel (APN 532-23-034) and portion of road 
totaling approximately 0.66 acres in area, located at 17460 High Street in the Town 
of Los Gatos. The subject property is located within the Town boundary and its 
Urban Service Area (USA). The subject parcel is currently developed with a single-
family residence that is served by an onsite septic system and the property owners 
plan to build an accessory dwelling unit (ADU). The current septic system is unable 
to manage the wastewater anticipated to be generated by the planned ADU. 
Therefore, the property owners are seeking to connect to the WVSD’s sewer system 



PAGE 2 OF 4 

nearby. In order to receive sewer service from WVSD, the property must first be 
annexed to WVSD. 

On May 8, 2024, WVSD adopted Resolution No. 24.05.04 indicating that it supports 
the requested annexation for APN 532-23-034 and has the ability to provide sewer 
service to the subject parcel which is currently developed with a single-family 
residence and will include an ADU in the future. 

Attachment B (Exhibits “A” and “B”) describes and depicts the boundaries of the 
proposed annexation. 

WAIVER OF PROTEST PROCEEDINGS 
The annexation territory is uninhabited, i.e., fewer than 12 registered voters reside 
within the territory. The annexation proposal has consent from all landowners of 
the property proposed for annexation. LAFCO has not received a request from the 
WVSD or from any other affected local agency, for notice, hearing or protest 
proceeding on the proposal. Therefore, pursuant to GC §56662(a), LAFCO is 
considering this proposal without notice or hearing and may waive protest 
proceedings.  

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

Categorical Exemption 
LAFCO of Santa Clara County is the Lead Agency under the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) for the proposed annexation of APN: 532-23-034 to the West 
Valley Sanitation District. The proposed annexation is exempt under State CEQA 
Guidelines §15319(a) & (b) and §15303(d).  

§15319: Class 19 consists of only the following annexations: 

(a) Annexation to a city or special district of areas containing existing public or 
private structures developed to the density allowed by the current zoning or 
pre-zoning of either the gaining or losing governmental agency whichever 
is more restrictive, provided, however, that the extension of utility services 
to the existing facilities would have a capacity to serve only the existing 
facilities.  

(b) Annexation of individual small parcels of the minimum size for facilities 
exempted by §15303, New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures.  

§15303: Class 3 consists of construction and location of limited numbers of new, 
small facilities or structures, installation of small new equipment and facilities 
in small structures from one use to another where only minor modifications are 
made in the exterior of the structure. The number of structures described in this 
section are the maximum allowable on any legal parcel. Examples of this 
exemption include but are not limited to: 



PAGE 3 OF 4 

(c) (d) Water main, sewage, electrical, gas, and other utility extensions, 
including street improvements, of reasonable length to serve such 
construction. 

CONSISTENCY WITH LAFCO FACTORS AND POLICIES 

Impacts to Agricultural Lands and Open Space 
The subject parcel is not under a Williamson Act Contract and does not contain open 
space or agricultural lands as defined in the Cortese Knox Hertzberg Act. The 
proposed annexation does not impact agricultural or open space lands.  
Logical & Orderly Boundaries 
The subject parcel is within WVSD’s Sphere of Influence and is contiguous to its 
boundary. The subject parcel is located in the Town of Los Gatos and within the 
Town’s USA. Please see Attachment A for Overview Map. 

The County Surveyor has reviewed the application and has found that the 
annexation boundaries are definite and certain. The Surveyor has also determined 
that the project conforms to LAFCO’s policies regarding the annexation of roads. The 
proposal will not create an island, corridor, or strip. The County Assessor has 
reviewed the proposal and found that the proposal conforms to lines of assessment. 
Growth Inducing Impacts 
The subject parcel (APN: 532-23-034) is currently developed with a single-family 
residence and the property owners plan to construct an ADU on the parcel. 

WVSD’s annexation policy generally restricts annexation of lands outside a city’s 
Urban Service Area boundary consistent with LAFCO’s goal of promoting orderly 
growth and development.   

Properties in the vicinity of the subject territory, which are outside WVSD’s 
boundary but within the District’s Sphere of Influence, are mostly developed and 
served by onsite septic systems. These properties are located either within the 
Town of Los Gatos and/or within the Town’s USA. Therefore, the Town and LAFCO 
have anticipated that the subject parcel and the surrounding parcels will eventually 
be provided with urban services and developed consistent with the Town’s rules 
and regulations.   

Annexation of any additional lands to the WVSD would require LAFCO approval and 
LAFCO would conduct the required environmental analysis, including the 
consideration of the growth inducing impacts of such a proposal at that time. 
Ability of District to Provide Services 
WVSD has indicated that it has adequate sewer capacity to provide sanitary sewer 
services to the single-family residence located on the subject property without 
detracting from the existing service levels within its existing boundaries.  

According to WVSD staff, there is an existing 8-inch WVSD sanitary sewer main 
located on High Street, approximately 600 feet northwest of the subject parcel. The 



PAGE 4 OF 4 

property owners have agreed to extend the public sewer main line by 
approximately 600 feet to reach the subject parcel and to pay for the associated 
construction costs.   

There is adequate treatment capacity in WVSD’s agreement with the Regional 
Wastewater Facility (RWF) to accommodate this annexation.  WVSD’s treatment 
capacity allocation with the RWF is 11.697 million gallons per day.  The actual flow 
to the RWF in FY 2022-23 was 9.53 million gallons per day.  The average flow from a 
single-family home and an ADU is 302 gallons per day. Per WVSD staff, the proposed 
annexation will not trigger any sewer related public capital improvements on the 
part of the District, as the property owners will be responsible for the construction 
costs associated with the extension of the sewer main line and the new sewer 
lateral. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A: Overview Map depicting the proposed annexation in relation to 

the West Valley Sanitation District and the Town of Los Gatos 
boundaries  

Attachment B: Legal Description (Exhibit “A”) and Map (Exhibit “B”) of the 
proposed Annexation West Valley Sanitation District No. 2024-
02 (High Street) 

 

 

 



West Valley
Sanitation

District

Los
Gatos

CYPRESS WAY

JOHNSON AVE

TO
U

R
N

EY
R

D

Q
U

A
R

R
Y

R
D

V
IS

TA
 D

E
L 

M
O

N
T

E

V
IS

TA
 D

E
L 

M
A

R

LOMAALTA AVE

S
P

R
IN

G
 S

T

SUND AVE

JO
H

N
S

O
N

HOLLO
W

JA
R

E
D

LN

H
IG

H
S

T
PHILLIP

S
AV

E

SPRECKLES AVE

TO
U

R
N

E
Y

LO
O

P

¯
0 150

Feet

·|}þ17

LOS
GATOS

Prepared for the Office of the County Surveyor
May 3, 2024

August Hanks, County Surveyor

EXHIBIT A
Annexation No. 2024-02 (High Street)

0.66 acres +/-

County of Santa Clara
Department of Planning and Development
County Government Center, East Wing
70 West Hedding St., 7th Floor
San Jose, California 95110

High Street - Annexation No. 2024-02

Area of Annexation

Incorporated Lands

West Valley Sanitation District

ITEM # 7 
Attachment A





ITEM # 7 
Attachment B









 
 

PAGE 1 OF 2 

ITEM # 8 
 

LAFCO MEETING: June 5, 2024 

TO:    LAFCO 

FROM:  Neelima Palacherla, Executive Officer  
   Dunia Noel, Asst. Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: IMPLEMENTATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM 
LAFCO’S COUNTYWIDE FIRE SERVICE REVIEW  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Accept report and provide direction, as necessary.  

RECEIVED RESPONSES FROM THE CITY OF SANTA CLARA AND CITY OF 
GILROY 
At the April 3, 2024 LAFCO meeting, staff reported on the responses that it had 
received from agencies/organizations concerning implementation of 
recommendations from LAFCO’s Countywide Fire Service Review Report. The 
report noted that the City of Santa Clara had not provided a response and that the 
City of Gilroy’s response lacked detail. The Commission accepted the report and 
directed staff to prepare letters to the Mayors of the Cities of Santa Clara and Gilroy, 
for LAFCO Chair signature, requesting their written response to the Report’s 
recommendations.  

LAFCO staff received a response from the City of Santa Clara on April 12, 2024, and a 
supplemental response from the City of Gilroy on April 22, 2024. Please see 
Attachment A for a copy of both letters. A summary of these responses, along with 
LAFCO staff comments, is provided in Attachment B.  

SARATOGA RESIDENTS’ CONCERNS ABOUT SPEED BUMPS ON 
MENDELSOHN LANE  
At the April 3, 2024, LAFCO meeting, several Saratoga residents expressed concerns 
about the installation of speed bumps on Mendelsohn Lane. In response, the 
Commission directed staff to contact and request that the County clarify and address 
these concerns, as necessary. The Commission also asked to be informed of any 
action taken to resolve this matter. 

On April 8, 2024, staff contacted Deputy County Executive Mills and Santa Clara 
County Fire Protection District Chief Kerdkaew on this matter. Subsequently, staff 
learned that the City of Saratoga has sole authority with regards to the installation 



PAGE 2 OF 2 

of speed bumps on Mendelsohn Lane, a roadway which is located within Saratoga’s 
city limits. LAFCO staff has informed the City of Saratoga of this matter.  

MEETING WITH SANTA CLARA COUNTY CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT ON ADDRESSING AREAS THAT LACK AN IDENTIFIED LOCAL FIRE 
SERVICE PROVIDER 
On May 28, 2024, LAFCO staff held an initial meeting with Chief Kerdkaew and 
Assistant Chief Glass of the Santa Clara County Central Fire Protection District 
(CCFD) to discuss potential boundary changes to the CCFD as recommended in 
LAFCO’s Countywide Fire Service Review Report. At the meeting, the group 
reviewed the recommendations for each of the areas.  LAFCO staff provided a brief 
overview of the sphere of influence amendment and annexation application process 
and typical timeline.  

The group will meet in mid-June, allowing CCFD staff to closely examine these areas, 
hold any discussions with the other service providers, and review documents from 
CCFD’s last major SOI amendment and annexation proposal which was completed 
back in 2010.  

LAFCO staff will hold similar meetings with the South Santa Clara County Fire 
Protection District and Los Altos Hills County Fire District in the upcoming weeks. 
LAFCO staff will continue to keep the Commission informed as implementation 
efforts progress. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A: Response from City of Santa Clara and Supplemental Response 
from the City of Gilroy 

Attachment B: Summary of Responses to Table A: Recommendations for City of 
Santa Clara & Recommendations for the City of Gilroy 

 



1500 Warburton Avenue ● Santa Clara, CA 95050 ● Phone: 408-615-2210 ● Fax: 408-241-6771 ● www.SantaClaraCA.gov 

City Manager’s Office 

April 12, 2024 

Honorable Russ Melton, Chairperson 
LAFCO of Santa Clara County 
777 North First Street, Suite 410 
San Jose, CA 95112 
Email: lafco@ceo.sccgov.org 

CITY OF SANTA CLARA RESPONSE TO THE COUNTYWIDE FIRE SERVICE REVIEW 
REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

Dear Chairperson Melton, 

The City of Santa Clara appreciates the thorough and insightful review of countywide fire 
services conducted by LAFCO. The Santa Clara Fire Department is committed to providing 
exceptional emergency services in our community, and to partnering with our neighboring 
agencies to enhance regional emergency response. Please find below the City of Santa Clara’s 
response to the recommendations contained in the LAFCO Countywide Fire Service Review 
Report. 

Recommendation #8 Facility Replacement and Maintenance Planning: “Establish a 
comprehensive facility replacement plan and a maintenance plan for fire stations.” 

The City agrees with this recommendation. The City of Santa Clara Department of Public Works 
provides repair and maintenance services for City buildings, including fire stations. The Fire 
Department works collaboratively with Public Works to plan for and schedule repairs and 
ongoing maintenance, using a software application that allows end users to directly input repair 
requests. All repair requests for Fire Department facilities are then reviewed and tracked by Fire 
Administration. Routine maintenance is also tracked and scheduled through the same 
application. However, the Fire Department lacks a comprehensive facility replacement plan and, 
as noted in Recommendation 8G below, some fire stations have significant needs. Since 2020, 
the Fire Department, in coordination with Public Works, has sought funding through the City’s 
Capital Improvement Program budget process, for a comprehensive needs assessment and 
study of Fire Department facilities. Unfortunately, the City has significant unfunded Capital 
needs, and this assessment has not been funded. The City has analyzed capital needs citywide 
and assigned a cost to each facility, including fire facilities, and is evaluating the potential for a 
capital facilities bond on the November 2024 ballot.  

Recommendation #8G Santa Clara: “With five of Santa Clara Fire Department’s nine stations 
being over forty years old, there should be a facility replacement plan in place.” 

The City agrees with this recommendation with corrections. Fire Station 8, listed as 47 years 
old, underwent a significant remodel and addition in 2020, which enlarged and modernized the 
station, including bringing it up to current building code and accessibility standards. The City 
also believes that corrections are needed to Figure 192 on page 386 of the report. This chart 
lists the “General Condition” of all fire stations. Only Fire Station 4 received a rating of 

ITEM # 8 
Attachment A

mailto:lafco@ceo.sccgov.org


The Honorable Russ Melton, Chairperson 
Re: City of Santa Clara Response to the Countywide Fire Service Review Report Recommendations 
April 12, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 
 
“Excellent,” and the City believes this to be in error. As noted above, Fire Station 8 has been 
renovated and is now in excellent condition. Fire Station 3 is identical to Station 4 and both were 
built between the years 2006-2008 from the same architectural plans and by the same 
contractor. They are in essentially identical condition and deserving of a rating of “Excellent.” 
The City would argue that Fire Station 6 is also in excellent condition. That leaves four fire 
stations in need of significant renovation or replacement. In 2017, the City commissioned an 
assessment of Fire Station 5 (1961), which resulted in a recommendation for replacement and 
included a comprehensive architectural design for a new 10,658 SF station at a projected cost 
of $9.3 million (2017 dollars). As noted in the report, the City’s Capital Improvement Program 
has significant unfunded Capital needs. The City is currently exploring possible revenue 
strategies for funding the approximately $577 million in infrastructure needs in the Capital 
Improvement Program. 
 
Recommendation #31 Mountain View, Palo Alto, Santa Clara, and CCFD: “Exploring 
options for alternative structures, such as joint powers authorities combining two or more 
neighboring agencies could potentially bring efficiencies and value-added services to Mountain 
View and other smaller fire service providers in Santa Clara County.” 
 
This recommendation for alternative structures seems primarily intended to benefit the smaller 
agencies and the county as a whole. It should be noted that under a consolidation model, Santa 
Clara would be sending aid to other agencies far more often than we receive aid. The 
Department has already documented that Santa Clara provides mutual aid to other jurisdictions 
more than we receive it under the current mutual aid structure. Further consolidation could be 
better for the county but might not be as effective for Santa Clara taxpayers as their Fire 
Department would respond out of the city more often. Santa Clara residents are quite happy 
with the service they receive from the Fire Department, as evidenced by our consistent 98% 
approval ratings. However, there are specialty areas, like HazMat response or confined space 
rescue, that benefit from greater regionalization and interagency cooperation in order to more 
efficiently mitigate these high risk, low frequency incidents. 
 
In conclusion, the City of Santa Clara would like to thank the LAFCO Commissioners, LAFCO 
staff, AP Triton staff, the Countywide Fire Protection Service Review Technical Advisory 
Committee, and the local fire chiefs. Thank you for your efforts toward improving fire service in 
our region. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Jovan D. Grogan 
City Manager 



 

 

City of Gilroy 
7351 Rosanna Street 

GILROY, CALIFORNIA 

95020 

Telephone (408) 846-0202 
FAX: (408) 846-0500 

http://www.ci.gilroy.ca.us 
 
 

Jimmy Forbis 
City Administrator 

 
April 22, 2024 

 

Santa Clara County LAFCO  

777 N. First Street #410  

San Jose, CA 95112  

lafco@ceo.sccgov.org  

 

 

Re: Countywide Fire Service Review Report Responses  

 

Dear LAFCO Commissioners and Neelima Palacherla,  

 

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the Countywide Fire Service Review Recommendations. 

We have the following responses:  

 

Table A 

 

2C Gilroy Units:  

The Chestnut Station has two units cross-staffed with three personnel assigned to the station, and the crew 

has an UHU of 10.9%. The Station 47/Chestnut Station crew has an UHU of 10.9%, specifically Sta.47 

Cross Staffed (2.1%) + E47 (8.8%). 

 

City’s Response 

The City of Gilroy has diligently worked to hire and train fire personnel to staff a fourth fire station to 

provide an effective citywide fire response force, to reduce the response times within the Santa Teresa 

Response (STR) district, and to reduce overall response times throughout the City.  Within the past year, 

the City has hired a total of (6) firefighters to bring the current staffing level to 39-line personnel.  

Numerous industrial work-related injuries have delayed full implementation of staffing the STR Station.  

Once the STR Station is fully staffed, it is anticipated to reduce the Unit Hour Utilization currently 

exceeding 10% at the Chestnut Station.   

 

8A Gilroy:  
With two of Gilroy Fire Department’s three stations being over forty years old, there should be a facility 

replacement plan in place. (Chestnut - 51 years) and (Las Animas - 45 years). In reviewing the city's 

current capital improvement budget, there were no fire facilities identified. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4DAD52C5-37D3-4926-8AB3-AE9402045552

http://www./
mailto:lafco@ceo.sccgov.org


Page 2 - Re: Countywide Fire Service Review Report Responses  

 

 

 

City’s Response 

The Gilroy City Council recently approved funding for upgrades and improvements to the Chestnut and 

Las Animas Fire Stations.  Additionally, a sales tax ballot initiative is being developed for proposal to the 

City’s voters for approval in 2024. If approved, funding will become available for seismic retrofit, 

remodel, station upgrades, and completion of a fourth station.  

 

20 AVL Dispatch of Resources:  

Gilroy, Morgan Hill, San Jose, Sunnyvale, CCFD, and SCFD are not currently utilizing Automatic 

Vehicle Location (AVL) technology to dispatch the closest available resource for emergencies. By 

integrating AVL into the CAD system through GIS mapping, the system can identify and dispatch the 

nearest unit to the incident. AVL Dispatch can help improve overall response times, potentially 

making a significant difference in critical calls. Each of these agencies should implement AVL 

dispatch in their dispatch center. 

 

City’s Response 

Gilroy has recently purchased the technology and equipment to provide AVL capabilities for all frontline 

and reserve apparatus. Software integration with the City’s CAD system will aid in dispatching the closest 

Gilroy fire engine to the emergency incident. However, these advantages of full integration of the City’s 

CAD and AVL systems will be limited to City-owned resources only. Mutual-aid/auto-aid responses using 

AVL will be unavailable until similar capabilities are purchased and implemented by adjacent agencies.    

 

30 Gilroy, Morgan Hill and SCFD:  
Exploring options for alternative service structures, such as joint powers authorities combining 

operations of two or more neighboring agencies, could potentially bring efficiencies and value-added 

services to Morgan Hill, Gilroy, and SCFD. While CAL FIRE provides contractual service of a large-

scale fire agency to Morgan Hill and SCFD, creating a larger local entity consisting of Morgan Hill, 

Gilroy, and SCFD with a unified structure could offer benefits such as increased accountability, 

improved efficiency, and enhanced effectiveness in delivering fire services to the community. While 

reorganization, consolidation, and other shared service structures will likely have efficiencies from 

which agencies can benefit, if they are facing service related constraints, these structure alternatives 

do not provide a singular solution to all constraints to services and must be combined with other 

strategies. It is recommended that SCFD and the cities of Morgan Hill and Gilroy enter into a 

Memorandum of Understanding, in coordination with CAL FIRE, outlining the agencies’ 

commitment to providing long-term cooperative fire services and establishing a joint strategic 

planning team to assess potential cooperative service elements for implementation. 

 

City’s Response 

Regionalization and consolidation of the South County area has been considered repeatedly over the past 

20 years. Recently, the City Administrator sought and was given permission by the Gilroy City Council to 

initiate the exploration of this concept once again, to determine fiscal feasibility, validate efficiencies and 

value-added services, and recommend the best course of action. In the meantime, the GFD continues to 

work with the MHFD and South Santa Clara County Fire District through existing Boundary Drop 

Agreements, Mutual Aid Agreements, and Auto Aid Agreements.  

 

30A Gilroy:  
Considering the staffing and facility constraints specific to the City of Gilroy, collaborating with the 

City of Morgan Hill and SCFD to establish a larger entity may hold particular value. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4DAD52C5-37D3-4926-8AB3-AE9402045552



Page 3 - Re: Countywide Fire Service Review Report Responses  

 

 

 

 

City’s Response 

The GFD agrees with and appreciates the potential advantages of combining service for the South County 

region through participation with a single larger entity that would address increasing costs and needed 

efficiencies. Contracting out also brings the potential for one or more alternative service models to the 

GFD. The City is currently in negotiations to finalize and receive funding to build a permanent fourth fire 

station, the completion of which was contemplated as part of and necessary for the response time goals 

adopted by the Gilroy City Council in 2019. With the completion of the fourth fire station and recent City 

Council approval to initiate the exploration of combined service for South County, we believe there are 

many opportunities underway for significant improvements to GFD services to the Community and our 

residents. 

 

Please reach out to jimmy.forbis@cityofgilroy.org or jim.wyatt@cityofgilroy.org if you have any 

questions. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

  

 

          

              

Jimmy Forbis, Administrator  Jim Wyatt, Fire Chief 

City of Gilroy City of Gilroy 

 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4DAD52C5-37D3-4926-8AB3-AE9402045552

mailto:jimmy.forbis@cityofgilroy.org
mailto:jim.wyatt@cityofgilroy.org




Source: Santa Clara LAFCO’s Countywide Fire Service Review (Adopted October 4, 2023)                     Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
PAGE # 
IN THE 

REPORT 

POTENTIAL 
IMPLEMENTING 

AGENCIES 

AGENCY RESPONSE LAFCO STAFF COMMENTS 

FACILITY REPLACEMENT & MAINTENANCE PLANNING RECOMMENDATIONS 
8 Facility Replacement & Maintenance 

Planning: Establish a comprehensive 
facility replacement plan and a 
maintenance plan for fire stations. Please 
see specifics below. 

Gilroy, Milpitas, 
Morgan Hill, 
Mountain View, Palo 
Alto, San Jose, Santa 
Clara, Sunnyvale and 
LAHCFD 

The City of Santa Clara agrees with this recommendation. The City of Santa 
Clara Department of Public Works provides repair and maintenance services 
for City buildings, including fire stations. The Fire Department works 
collaboratively with Public Works to plan for and schedule repairs and ongoing 
maintenance, using a software application that allows end users to directly 
input repair requests. All repair requests for Fire Department facilities are then 
reviewed and tracked by Fire Administration. Routine maintenance is also 
tracked and scheduled through the same application. However, the Fire 
Department lacks a comprehensive facility replacement plan and, as noted in 
Recommendation 8G below, some fire stations have significant needs. Since 
2020, the Fire Department, in coordination with Public Works, has sought 
funding through the City’s Capital Improvement Program budget process, for a 
comprehensive needs assessment and study of Fire Department facilities. 
Unfortunately, the City has significant unfunded Capital needs, and this 
assessment has not been funded. The City has analyzed capital needs citywide 
and assigned a cost to each facility, including fire facilities, and is evaluating the 
potential for a capital facilities bond on the November 2024 ballot. 

Noted. 

8G Santa Clara: With five of Santa Clara Fire 
Department’s nine stations being over 
forty years old, there should be a facility 
replacement plan in place. (Station 1 - 57 
years), (Station 5 - 61 years), (Station 7 - 
51 years), (Station 8 - 47 years), (Station 9 
- 40 years). The Fire Department’s Capital
Improvement Plan has identified a major
gap in not having a funding source for
major infrastructure needs for stations 1,
5, 7, and 9.

Pages 384-
385, 389 

Santa Clara The City of Santa Clara agrees with this recommendation with corrections. Fire 
Station 8, listed as 47 years old, underwent a significant remodel and addition 
in 2020, which enlarged and modernized the station, including bringing it up to 
current building code and accessibility standards. The City also believes that 
corrections are needed to Figure 192 on page 386 of the report. This chart lists 
the “General Condition” of all fire stations. Only Fire Station 4 received a rating 
of “Excellent,” and the City believes this to be in error. As noted above, Fire 
Station 8 has been renovated and is now in excellent condition. Fire Station 3 is 
identical to Station 4 and both were built between the years 2006-2008 from 
the same architectural plans and by the same contractor. They are in 
essentially identical condition and deserving of a rating of “Excellent.” The City 
would argue that Fire Station 6 is also in excellent condition. That leaves four 
fire stations in need of significant renovation or replacement. In 2017, the City 

City believes that Fire Stations 8, 3, 
and 6 should have been listed as 
“Excellent” in the Report, in terms 
of their “General Condition.”  

It should be noted that the fire 
station ratings in the Report came 
directly from the City at that time, 
using a criterion established by AP 
Triton, LAFCO’s consultant. 
Although it is too late to make 
changes to the Report which was 
adopted in October 2023, all 
responses received from agencies 

SUMMARY OF RESPONSES TO TABLE A: RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE CITY OF SANTA CLARA TO ENHANCE FIRE SERVICE DELIVERY AND RESPONSE 
CAPABILITIES 

ITEM # 8 
Revised Attachment B



 
SUMMARY OF RESPONSES TO TABLE A: RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE CITY OF SANTA CLARA TO ENHANCE FIRE SERVICE DELIVERY AND RESPONSE CAPABILITIES 

Source: Santa Clara LAFCO’s Countywide Fire Service Review (Adopted October 4, 2023)                                                                              Page 2 of 2 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
PAGE #  
IN THE 

REPORT 

POTENTIAL 
IMPLEMENTING 

AGENCIES 

AGENCY RESPONSE LAFCO STAFF COMMENTS 

commissioned an assessment of Fire Station 5 (1961), which resulted in a 
recommendation for replacement and included a comprehensive architectural 
design for a new 10,658 SF station at a projected cost of $9.3 million (2017 
dollars). As noted in the report, the City’s Capital Improvement Program has 
significant unfunded Capital needs. The City is currently exploring possible 
revenue strategies for funding the approximately $577 million in infrastructure 
needs in the Capital Improvement Program. 

are part of the project record. 

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVE RECOMMENDATIONS 
31 Mountain View, Palo Alto, Sunnyvale, 

Santa Clara, and CCFD: Exploring options 
for alternative structures, such as joint 
powers authorities combining two or 
more neighboring agencies (Mountain 
View, Palo Alto, Sunnyvale, Santa Clara, 
and CCFD), could potentially bring 
efficiencies and value-added services to 
Mountain View and other smaller fire 
service providers in Santa Clara County. 
Creating a larger entity with a unified 
structure can offer benefits such as 
increased accountability, improved 
efficiency, and enhanced effectiveness in 
delivering fire services to the community. 
While Mountain View’s services are 
satisfactory and appear to be sustainable, 
there could be opportunities to pool 
resources, share expertise, and optimize 
operations, leading to improved service 
delivery. 

Page 237 
(Mountain 
View); Page 
279 (Palo 
Alto); Page 
391 (Santa 
Clara); Page 
426 
(Sunnyvale); 
and Page 
537 (CCFD) 

Santa Clara This recommendation for alternative structures seems primarily intended to 
benefit the smaller agencies and the county as a whole. It should be noted that 
under a consolidation model, Santa Clara would be sending aid to other 
agencies far more often than we receive aid. The Department has already 
documented that Santa Clara provides mutual aid to other jurisdictions more 
than we receive it under the current mutual aid structure. Further 
consolidation could be better for the county but might not be as effective for 
Santa Clara taxpayers as their Fire Department would respond out of the city 
more often. Santa Clara residents are quite happy with the service they receive 
from the Fire Department, as evidenced by our consistent 98% approval 
ratings. However, there are specialty areas, like HazMat response or confined 
space rescue, that benefit from greater regionalization and interagency 
cooperation in order to more efficiently mitigate these high risk, low frequency 
incidents. 

Noted. 

 



 
SUMMARY OF RESPONSES TO TABLE A: RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE CITY OF GILORY TO ENHANCE FIRE SERVICE DELIVERY AND RESPONSE CAPABILITIES 

Source: Santa Clara LAFCO’s Countywide Fire Service Review (Adopted October 4, 2023)                                                                              Page 1 of 3 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
PAGE #  
IN THE 

REPORT 

POTENTIAL 
IMPLEMENTING 

AGENCIES 

AGENCY RESPONSE LAFCO STAFF COMMENTS 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES OVERVIEW RECOMMENDATIONS 
2 Unit Utilization Hours: San Jose, Palo Alto, Gilroy, and CCFD all have 

units with UHUs of over 10%. These agencies should add additional 
resources to effectively manage the call volume and improve 
response time performance.  

Pages xiii, 
25 

Gilroy, Palo Alto, San 
Jose and CCFD 

The City of Gilroy has diligently worked to hire and 
train fire personnel to staff a fourth fire station to 
provide an effective citywide fire response force, to 
reduce the response times within the Santa Teresa 
Response (STR) district, and to reduce overall 
response times throughout the City. Within the past 
year, the City has hired a total of (6) firefighters to 
bring the current staffing level to 39-line personnel. 
Numerous industrial work-related injuries have 
delayed full implementation of staffing the STR 
Station. Once the STR Station is fully staffed, it is 
anticipated to reduce the Unit Hour Utilization 
currently exceeding 10% at the Chestnut Station. 
 

Noted. 

2C Gilroy Units: The Chestnut Station has two units cross-staffed with 
three personnel assigned to the station, and the crew has an UHU of 
10.9%. The Station 47/Chestnut Station crew has an UHU of 10.9%, 
specifically Sta.47 Cross Staffed (2.1%) + E47 (8.8%). 

Page 123 Gilroy 

FACILITY REPLACEMENT & MAINTENANCE PLANNING RECOMMENDATIONS 
8 Facility Replacement & Maintenance Planning: Establish a 

comprehensive facility replacement plan and a maintenance plan for 
fire stations. Please see specifics below. 

 Gilroy, Milpitas, 
Morgan Hill, 
Mountain View, Palo 
Alto, San Jose, Santa 
Clara, Sunnyvale and 
LAHCFD 

The Gilroy City Council recently approved funding for 
upgrades and improvements to the Chestnut and Las 
Animas Fire Stations. Additionally, a sales tax ballot 
initiative is being developed for proposal to the 
City’s voters for approval in 2024. If approved, 
funding will become available for seismic retrofit, 
remodel, station upgrades, and completion of a 
fourth station. 

Noted. 

8A Gilroy: With two of Gilroy Fire Department’s three stations being 
over forty years old, there should be a facility replacement plan in 
place. (Chestnut - 51 years) and (Las Animas - 45 years). In reviewing 
the city's current capital improvement budget, there were no fire 
facilities identified. 
 
 
 

Pages 128-
129, 133 

Gilroy 



 
SUMMARY OF RESPONSES TO TABLE A: RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE CITY OF GILORY TO ENHANCE FIRE SERVICE DELIVERY AND RESPONSE CAPABILITIES 

Source: Santa Clara LAFCO’s Countywide Fire Service Review (Adopted October 4, 2023)                                                                              Page 2 of 3 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
PAGE #  
IN THE 

REPORT 

POTENTIAL 
IMPLEMENTING 

AGENCIES 

AGENCY RESPONSE LAFCO STAFF COMMENTS 

EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS RECOMMENDATIONS 
20 AVL Dispatch of Resources: Gilroy, Morgan Hill, San Jose, Sunnyvale, 

CCFD, and SCFD are not currently utilizing Automatic Vehicle 
Location (AVL) technology to dispatch the closest available resource 
for emergencies. By integrating AVL into the CAD system through GIS 
mapping, the system can identify and dispatch the nearest unit to 
the incident. AVL Dispatch can help improve overall response times, 
potentially making a significant difference in critical calls. Each of 
these agencies should implement AVL dispatch in their dispatch 
center. 

Pages xvi, 
57 

Gilroy Gilroy has recently purchased the technology and 
equipment to provide AVL capabilities for all 
frontline and reserve apparatus. Software 
integration with the City’s CAD system will aid in 
dispatching the closest Gilroy fire engine to the 
emergency incident. However, these advantages of 
full integration of the City’s CAD and AVL systems 
will be limited to City-owned resources only. Mutual-
aid/auto-aid responses using AVL will be unavailable 
until similar capabilities are purchased and 
implemented by adjacent agencies. 

Noted. 

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVE RECOMMENDATIONS 
30 Gilroy, Morgan Hill and SCFD: Exploring options for alternative 

service structures, such as joint powers authorities combining 
operations of two or more neighboring agencies, could potentially 
bring efficiencies and value-added services to Morgan Hill, Gilroy, 
and SCFD. While CAL FIRE provides contractual service of a large-
scale fire agency to Morgan Hill and SCFD, creating a larger local 
entity consisting of Morgan Hill, Gilroy, and SCFD with a unified 
structure could offer benefits such as increased accountability, 
improved efficiency, and enhanced effectiveness in delivering fire 
services to the community. While reorganization, consolidation, and 
other shared service structures will likely have efficiencies from 
which agencies can benefit, if they are facing service-related 
constraints, these structure alternatives do not provide a singular 
solution to all constraints to services and must be combined with 
other strategies. It is recommended that SCFD and the cities of 
Morgan Hill and Gilroy enter into a Memorandum of Understanding, 
in coordination with CAL FIRE, outlining the agencies’ commitment 
to providing long-term cooperative fire services and establishing a 

Page xviii, 
Page 135, 
Page 201 

Gilroy Regionalization and consolidation of the South 
County area has been considered repeatedly over 
the past 20 years. Recently, the City Administrator 
sought and was given permission by the Gilroy City 
Council to initiate the exploration of this concept 
once again, to determine fiscal feasibility, validate 
efficiencies and value-added services, and 
recommend the best course of action. In the 
meantime, the GFD continues to work with the 
MHFD and South Santa Clara County Fire District 
through existing Boundary Drop Agreements, Mutual 
Aid Agreements, and Auto Aid Agreements. 

Noted. 



 
SUMMARY OF RESPONSES TO TABLE A: RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE CITY OF GILORY TO ENHANCE FIRE SERVICE DELIVERY AND RESPONSE CAPABILITIES 

Source: Santa Clara LAFCO’s Countywide Fire Service Review (Adopted October 4, 2023)                                                                              Page 3 of 3 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
PAGE #  
IN THE 

REPORT 

POTENTIAL 
IMPLEMENTING 

AGENCIES 

AGENCY RESPONSE LAFCO STAFF COMMENTS 

joint strategic planning team to assess potential cooperative service 
elements for implementation. 

30A Gilroy: Considering the staffing and facility constraints specific to the 
City of Gilroy, collaborating with the City of Morgan Hill and SCFD to 
establish a larger entity may hold particular value. 

Page 135 Gilroy The GFD agrees with and appreciates the potential 
advantages of combining service for the South 
County region through participation with a single 
larger entity that would address increasing costs and 
needed efficiencies. Contracting out also brings the 
potential for one or more alternative service models 
to the GFD. The City is currently in negotiations to 
finalize and receive funding to build a permanent 
fourth fire station, the completion of which was 
contemplated as part of and necessary for the 
response time goals adopted by the Gilroy City 
Council in 2019. With the completion of the fourth 
fire station and recent City Council approval to 
initiate the exploration of combined service for 
South County, we believe there are many 
opportunities underway for significant 
improvements to GFD services to the Community 
and our residents. 

Noted. 

 





ITEM #8 
Supplemental Information No. 2 

RE: Communications Relating to Saratoga Residents’ Concerns About Speed 
Bumps on Mendelsohn Lane 

1. Daniel Miranda, Saratoga resident, dated 06/03/2024, providing the following:

• Email correspondence with Saratoga Mayor Yan Zhao dated 02/07/2024

• Santa Clara County Central Fire Standard Details and Speci�ications on Speed
Humps and Speed Tables

2. James Lindsay, Saratoga City Manager, email correspondence with LAFCO staff, dated
6/4/2024

3. Suwanna Kerdkaew, Fire Chief, Santa Clara County Central Fire Protection District,
email dated 06/4/2024





From: Noel, Dunia
To: Abello, Emmanuel
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Re: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting
Date: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 3:46:30 PM
Attachments: Saratoga Mayor email thread.pdf

Screenshot 2024-06-03 at 9.57.48 AM.png
SDS_A-2.pdf
LAFCO item#8.pdf

From: Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net> 
Sent: Monday, June 3, 2024 12:13 PM
To: Humphrey, Sonia <sonia.humphrey@ceo.sccgov.org>; Noel, Dunia <Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org>
Cc: Palacherla, Neelima <Neelima.Palacherla@ceo.sccgov.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting

Ms. Duina Noel, LAFCO Assistant Executive Officer

Thank you for your phone conversation with me today discussing what must be corrected in LAFCO Item#8. It does not accurately represent Saratoga Residents concerns and inaccurately
concludes that “the City of Saratoga has sole authority with regards to the installation speed humps on Mendelsohn Lane”, as you explicitly write in Item#8.

As evidence, I have attached as a PDF document the full email thread of my communications with Saratoga Mayor Yan Zhao and Saratoga City Manager James Linsey, who both state that it is
Santa Clara County Fire who has the authority and APPROVED the installation of speed bumps.

Kindly, reply back and confirm receipt of this information from me.

Sincerely,
Daniel Miranda
Saratoga resident

On Jun 3, 2024, at 10:27 AM, Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net> wrote:

Ms. Sonia Humphrey,

Thank you for taking my call this morning and promising to have Dunia Noel call me directly about Item #8 on the June 5th LAFCO Meeting Agenda.

Ms Dunia Noel,

I look forward to speaking with you.

In advance let me share with you a screenshot of an email response I received from Yan Zhao, Mayor of Saratoga (pasted below). The Mayor's response is 100% counter to what is
stated in LAFCO's Item #8, with respect to who has sole authority for the approval and installation of speed bumps in the WUI (high fire zones) within Saratoga’s City Limits.

I respectfully ask that you raise this issue with LAFCO at the next meeting and clarify who has responsibility to enforce Fire Code SD&S A-2 .

Thank you in advance.

Daniel Miranda
Saratoga Resident
408-835-9300

#1

mailto:Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:Emmanuel.Abello@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:danmiranda@comcast.net
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.sccfd.org/wp-content/uploads/documents/fire_prevention/standards/SDS_A-2-SpeedHumpsSpeed_ables.pdf__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!xfEK_p0zXnk6VcQQVscp0dxtOkYrIOh0mlQ7GcMDa38hKQiP9Et1b4PwJdPN06iKfBU0nwQAQ_r6i6-Jt9VJq1lqSA$



From: Dan danmiranda@comcast.net
Subject: Fwd: Follow-up regarding Mendelsohn Speed Hump Appeal Hearing


Date: February 21, 2024 at 10:11 PM
To: Peter Rutti p.rutti@comcast.net


From: Yan Zhao <yzhao@saratoga.ca.us>
Date: February 7, 2024 at 9:55:53 PM PST
To: Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net>
Cc: Tina Walia <twalia@saratoga.ca.us>, Marc Hynes <hynes.marc@gmail.com>, Trina Whitley <twhitley@saratogafire.org>, Yan Zhao
<yzhao@saratoga.ca.us>, Ernest Kraule <ekraule@saratogafire.org>, Tom Lerone <thomaslerone@gmail.com>, David Adamson MD
<gdadamson@arcfertility.com>, Hobey Birmingham <hmckb@sbcglobal.net>, Peter Rutti <p.rutti@comcast.net>, Hassan Jalalian
<Hjalalian55@gmail.com>, Mark Weisler <mark@weisler-saratoga-ca.us>, Leslie Arroyo <larroyo@saratoga.ca.us>, Charles Aring
<charles.aring@gmail.com>, James Lindsay <jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us>, Leslie Arroyo <larroyo@saratoga.ca.us>
Subject: Re: Follow-up regarding Mendelsohn Speed Hump Appeal Hearing


Hi Daniel,


Thank you again for stopping by to speak with me. I’ve had a chance to speak with City staff to confirm my understanding that the speed
hump planned for Mendelsohn Lane was approved by the Santa Clara County Fire Department.  The City relies on County Fire’s work
and approval as they are the Fire Department that serves the City of Saratoga.


Sincerely,


Yan Zhao, Mayor


City of Saratoga


________________________________
From: Yan Zhao <yzhao@saratoga.ca.us>
Sent: Monday, February 5, 2024 5:01 PM
To: Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net>
Cc: Tina Walia <twalia@saratoga.ca.us>; Marc Hynes <hynes.marc@gmail.com>; Trina Whitley <twhitley@saratogafire.org>; Ernest
Kraule <ekraule@saratogafire.org>; Tom Lerone <thomaslerone@gmail.com>; David Adamson MD <gdadamson@arcfertility.com>;
Hobey Birmingham <hmckb@sbcglobal.net>; Peter Rutti <p.rutti@comcast.net>; Hassan Jalalian <Hjalalian55@gmail.com>; Mark
Weisler <mark@weisler-saratoga-ca.us>; Charles Aring <charles.aring@gmail.com>; James Lindsay <jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us>; Leslie
Arroyo <larroyo@saratoga.ca.us>; Yan Zhao <yzhao@saratoga.ca.us>
Subject: Re: Follow-up regarding Mendelsohn Speed Hump Appeal Hearing


HI Daniel,
Thank you for stopping by my booth to speak with me on Saturday.


I have received a copy of the letter from Saratoga Fire District and the email you sent to James and former mayor Kookie.


I will need some time to do a little bit more research and get back to you.


Best regards,


Yan Zhao, Mayor
City of Saratoga
________________________________
From: Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net>
Sent: Saturday, February 3, 2024 3:02 PM
To: Yan Zhao <yzhao@saratoga.ca.us>
Cc: Tina Walia <twalia@saratoga.ca.us>; Marc Hynes <hynes.marc@gmail.com>; Trina Whitley <twhitley@saratogafire.org>; Ernest
Kraule <ekraule@saratogafire.org>; Tom Lerone <thomaslerone@gmail.com>; David Adamson MD <gdadamson@arcfertility.com>;
Hobey Birmingham <hmckb@sbcglobal.net>; Peter Rutti <p.rutti@comcast.net>; Hassan Jalalian <Hjalalian55@gmail.com>; Mark
Weisler <mark@weisler-saratoga-ca.us>; Charles Aring <charles.aring@gmail.com>
Subject: Follow-up regarding Mendelsohn Speed Hump Appeal Hearing


CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links, especially
from unknown senders.


Mayor Zhao,


It was nice to see you at the Saratoga Farmers’ Market this morning holding “office hours” to provide updates and hear questions from
Saratoga residents.


As promised, I have attached a copy of a letter sent to last December by the Saratoga Fire District (SFD), which you claim you had not
seen before. As specifically stated, the purpose of the letter was to request that the city delay taking any further action towards installation
of traffic control devices on Mendelsohn Lane. I look forward to hearing back from you on the status of this request by the SFD.


In addition, I am forwarding you a previous email thread that I sent to Mr. James Lindsay (and cc’d the Mayor) last November outlining
several concerns with the TSC and the subsequent Appeal Hearing on their approval of speed humps on Mendelsohn Lane. Mr. Lindsay
was essentially non-responsive, but hopefully you can directly respond to the issues raised.


Most importantly, I believe that your vote Against the Appeal, may have been different if you had been presented with correct facts at the







Most importantly, I believe that your vote Against the Appeal, may have been different if you had been presented with correct facts at the
hearing. Specifically, that code  SD&S A-2 PAGE 1-3<https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.sccfd.org%2fwp-
content%2fuploads%2fdocuments%2ffire_prevention%2fstandards%2fSDS_A-2-SpeedHumpsSpeed_ables.pdf&c=E,1,p0aI6yxYUTN2-
prLV2TRpYJYi22ePFs4854VYD-OmrbLmNicYSspufD5l3REfODtNTlcIf95xVl7quDP783nxt7NhhfwibKMAq8cZUQeW-gT&typo=1> applies
directly to all Saratoga streets. In fact, it applies all of Santa Clara County, both incorporated and unincorporated areas. This key point
was asked by Council Member Tina Walia and misrepresented by the TSC, Ms. Emma Burkhalther, at the Appeal Hearing.


I  look forward to your response to all the above.


Thank you,


Daniel Miranda
20151 Rancho Bella Vista
Saratoga, CA 95070


Begin forwarded message:


From: Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net>
Subject: Follow-up regarding TSC interactions and Appeal Hearing
Date: November 7, 2023 at 12:18:17 PM PST
To: jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us
Cc: kookie@saratoga.ca.us, Ernest Kraule <ekraule@saratogafire.org>, Tom Lerone <thomaslerone@gmail.com>, David Adamson MD
<gdadamson@arcfertility.com>, Hobart Birmingham <hmckb@sbcglobal.net>


Mr. James Lindsay
City Manager
City of Saratoga
13777 Fruitvale Avenue
Saratoga, CA 95070


November 7, 2023


Dear Mr. Lindsay,


I am following up on our meeting at your office a week ago on October 31st regarding Traffic and Safety Commission (“TSC”)
interactions, which are summarized in my note below that was sent to you the same day. Have you had the opportunity to investigate
those concerns, as you indicated?


In addition, the Public Appeal Hearing on TSC’s approval of Mendelsohn Lane speed humps has raised two new, important concerns,
that are shared by many of us living in the Mendelsohn Lane area.


1.     First, can you please fact check the following:
The TSC presented a 1-page document titled  Attachment L - County Fire Approval of Speed Table Plans<https://legistarweb-
production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2250419/Attachment_L_-_County_Fire_Approval_of_Speed_Table_Plans.pdf>.
This document clearly states, “Plans are APPROVED with the following conditions (emphasis added).”  The second paragraph of these
conditions states that “installation shall be in accordance with CFC Sec. 503 and SD&S A-2 PAGE 1-
3<https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.sccfd.org%2fwp-
content%2fuploads%2fdocuments%2ffire_prevention%2fstandards%2fSDS_A-2-SpeedHumpsSpeed_ables.pdf&c=E,1,-
Qj0oGd1L8hh3CivoKVK1A46hD8IO9Yiue4qPfKgRCJCFNTkDAdOQ0kRAUKCImuyTkz2FFJhl52OZ7RoozhG0CiO5o_5yBnvViAgLJtF&ty
po=1>.”


On the bottom of page 1 of this 3-page document, it clearly states:
“II. LOCATIONS
A.    Speed Humps/Speed Tables shall not be installed along primary emergency response routes, as determined by the SCCFD
(Emphasis added).”


It is my understanding that Mendelsohn Lane is in fact a primary emergency response route as determined by the SCCFD. If this is
correct, this means the SCCFD has in fact disapproved installing speed humps on Mendelsohn Lane.


2.     Second:
The agenda stated that the Appeal Hearing would be a de novo review. We were all disappointed that this appeared not to be the case.


This is especially the case with Councilman Belal Aftab. He previously was the TSC chairman and had voted in favor of speed humps on
Mendelsohn in that capacity. Councilman Aftab did not show up at the site visit with all the other City Council members on 11/1/2023,
because he said he was so familiar with the issue from his experience on the TSC and therefore heard nothing from those of us who live
on and near Mendelsohn Lane. After the Appeal hearing Councilman Aftab came down from the stage to talk with a group of us in the
audience. When I asked him if he had made up his mind on this appeal before the night’s hearing based on his prior experience, he
answered “yes” directly to me.  It seems clear that Councilman Aftab’s view was that of a TSC member and chair, not an unbiased council
member, something to which, I believe, we as appellants were entitled. As an ethical matter, would it have not been appropriate for him to
recuse himself from voting on this issue?


Thank you in advance for your attention to these issues. We can only have public trust between residents and local government, if we get
the facts correct and have for Saratoga’s citizens an open and transparent process, without real or apparent conflicts of interest.


We look forward to your response on these issues and those previously raised – something to which, I am sure you will agree, members
of our community are entitled.


Sincerely,


Daniel Miranda
20151 Rancho Bella Vista
Saratoga, CA 95070


cc:        Kookie Fitzsimmons, Mayor, City of Saratoga







cc:        Kookie Fitzsimmons, Mayor, City of Saratoga
           Ernest Kraule, Saratoga Fire District Commissioner


On Oct 31, 2023, at 5:17 PM, Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net<mailto:danmiranda@comcast.net>> wrote:


Mr. James Lindsay
City Manager
City of Saratoga
13777 Fruitvale Avenue
Saratoga, CA 95070


October 31, 2023


Dear Mr. Lindsay,


I appreciate you allowing me to meet with you in person today to discuss and provide you with documented evidence of interactions
between Mr. Henry Cole and the TSC. We both agree that these interactions are very concerning from a public trust and ethical point of
view, and have damaged the public trust between the City and the Residents, which we both hope to repair. Any potential material or
financial conflicts of interest still need to be investigated and cleared by you, as you promised you would do within the next week.


Specifically, together we reviewed the timeline of the TSC Special Meeting on 8/22/2023 and the fact that Mr. Cole was able to submit his
recommendations and comments to be incorporated into the agenda before the meeting announcement and agenda was even posted to
the public. No other resident was given this inside advance notice of the meeting or the opportunity to submit input before the Agenda
was posted and distributed to the TSC Commissioners for consideration.


Secondly, we both reviewed Mr. Cole’s written point-by-point rebuttal to Mr. Lerone’s Appeal Application of the TSC approval for speed
humps on Mendelsohn. Mr. Cole submitted his written rebuttal on 10/24/2023, two days before the Appeal Agenda and TSC Staff rebuttal
was official posted to the public on 10/26/2023. Comments submitted by Mr. Cole concerning TSC communications with the Fire District
before they were made official indicate his inside connection and direct ongoing communications within the TSC.


I have cc’d fellow residents, Mr. Tom Lerone, and Dr. David Adamson, since I also shared hard copies of their written letters to the City
with you. We, as well as all the residents in our community deserve an explanation of how and why any individual completely unaffected
by proposed speed humps appears to have so much influence over committee actions and decisions. What are the relationships between
this individual not in the Area of Influence with the consultant engineer for Saratoga, with the Saratoga staff, and with the TSC?
Disclosures of these relationships are essential to avoid the current appearance of potentially multiple conflicts of interest. The
relationship(s) are opaque yet of much concern regarding potential undue influence.


Sincerely,


Daniel Miranda
20151 Rancho Bella Vista
Saratoga, CA 95070


winmail.dat

















 


SD&S A-2/ne/05.21.20  Speed Humps and Speed Tables        1 of 3 


Serving Santa Clara County and the communities of Campbell, Cupertino, Los Altos,  
Los Altos Hills, Los Gatos, Monte Sereno, and Saratoga. 


SANTA CLARA COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
14700 Winchester Blvd., Los Gatos, CA 95032 | (408) 378-4010 | www.sccfd.org  


   
STANDARD DETAILS & SPECIFICATIONS Spec No A-2 
 Rev. Date 07/01/20 
SUBJECT: Speed Humps and Speed Tables Eff. Date 12/12/18 
 Approved By __ ___ 
 Page __1__ of __3__ 


	
	


SCOPE 
 


This Standard applies to the design and installation of Speed Humps and/or Speed 
Tables where approved by the Fire Code Official. 
 
 


DEFINITIONS 
 


SCCFD: Shall refer to the Santa Clara County Fire Department. 
 
Speed Hump: A Speed Hump is a raised traffic calming device placed across a 
roadway to reduce vehicle speed and volume. 
 
Speed Table: A Speed Table is a variation of a Speed Hump. It is similar to a Speed 
Hump except that it is flat-topped between ramped sections so as to raise the entire 
wheelbase of a vehicle to reduce traffic speed and/or to accommodate a crosswalk. 
 
 


REQUIREMENTS 
 
I. GENERAL 


A. Speed Humps/Speed Tables shall be approved by the SCCFD prior to 
installation. 


B. For public streets, Speed Humps/Speed Tables must be approved for installation 
by the local City/Town prior to obtaining the Fire Department approval. 


 
II. LOCATIONS 


A. Speed Humps/Speed Tables shall not be installed along primary emergency 
response routes, as determined by the SCCFD. 



Daniel Miranda








 
 


PAGE 1 OF 2 


ITEM # 8 
 


LAFCO MEETING: June 5, 2024 


TO:    LAFCO 


FROM:  Neelima Palacherla, Executive Officer  
   Dunia Noel, Asst. Executive Officer 


SUBJECT: IMPLEMENTATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM 
LAFCO’S COUNTYWIDE FIRE SERVICE REVIEW  


STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Accept report and provide direction, as necessary.  


RECEIVED RESPONSES FROM THE CITY OF SANTA CLARA AND CITY OF 
GILROY 
At the April 3, 2024 LAFCO meeting, staff reported on the responses that it had 
received from agencies/organizations concerning implementation of 
recommendations from LAFCO’s Countywide Fire Service Review Report. The 
report noted that the City of Santa Clara had not provided a response and that the 
City of Gilroy’s response lacked detail. The Commission accepted the report and 
directed staff to prepare letters to the Mayors of the Cities of Santa Clara and Gilroy, 
for LAFCO Chair signature, requesting their written response to the Report’s 
recommendations.  


LAFCO staff received a response from the City of Santa Clara on April 12, 2024, and a 
supplemental response from the City of Gilroy on April 22, 2024. Please see 
Attachment A for a copy of both letters. A summary of these responses, along with 
LAFCO staff comments, is provided in Attachment B.  


SARATOGA RESIDENTS’ CONCERNS ABOUT SPEED BUMPS ON 
MENDELSOHN LANE  
At the April 3, 2024, LAFCO meeting, several Saratoga residents expressed concerns 
about the installation of speed bumps on Mendelsohn Lane. In response, the 
Commission directed staff to contact and request that the County clarify and address 
these concerns, as necessary. The Commission also asked to be informed of any 
action taken to resolve this matter. 


On April 8, 2024, staff contacted Deputy County Executive Mills and Santa Clara 
County Fire Protection District Chief Kerdkaew on this matter. Subsequently, staff 
learned that the City of Saratoga has sole authority with regards to the installation 







PAGE 2 OF 2 


of speed bumps on Mendelsohn Lane, a roadway which is located within Saratoga’s 
city limits. LAFCO staff has informed the City of Saratoga of this matter.  


MEETING WITH SANTA CLARA COUNTY CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT ON ADDRESSING AREAS THAT LACK AN IDENTIFIED LOCAL FIRE 
SERVICE PROVIDER 
On May 28, 2024, LAFCO staff held an initial meeting with Chief Kerdkaew and 
Assistant Chief Glass of the Santa Clara County Central Fire Protection District 
(CCFD) to discuss potential boundary changes to the CCFD as recommended in 
LAFCO’s Countywide Fire Service Review Report. At the meeting, the group 
reviewed the recommendations for each of the areas.  LAFCO staff provided a brief 
overview of the sphere of influence amendment and annexation application process 
and typical timeline.  


The group will meet in mid-June, allowing CCFD staff to closely examine these areas, 
hold any discussions with the other service providers, and review documents from 
CCFD’s last major SOI amendment and annexation proposal which was completed 
back in 2010.  


LAFCO staff will hold similar meetings with the South Santa Clara County Fire 
Protection District and Los Altos Hills County Fire District in the upcoming weeks. 
LAFCO staff will continue to keep the Commission informed as implementation 
efforts progress. 


ATTACHMENTS 


Attachment A: Response from City of Santa Clara and Supplemental Response 
from the City of Gilroy 


Attachment B: Summary of Responses to Table A: Recommendations for City of 
Santa Clara & Recommendations for the City of Gilroy 


 







 

Begin forwarded message:
 
From: Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net>
Subject: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting
Date: June 1, 2024 at 2:14:32 PM PDT
To: Ernie Kraule <ekraule@aol.com>, Marc Hynes <hynes.marc@gmail.com>, Trina Whitley <twhitley@saratogafire.org>, sonia.humphrey@ceo.sccgov.org
Cc: Tom Lerone <thomaslerone@gmail.com>, Peter Rutti <p.rutti@comcast.net>, Charles Aring <charles.aring@gmail.com>, Mark Weisler <mark@weisler-
saratoga-ca.us>, Hassan Jalalian <Hjalalian55@gmail.com>, David Adamson MD <gdadamson@arcfertility.com>, Rosemary Adamson <equal3@icloud.com>,
Hobey Birmingham <hmckb@sbcglobal.net>, JoAnne Birmingham <jmbirmingham@gmail.com>, Eva R Freund Miranda <evamiranda@comcast.net>,
laurel.weisler@gmail.com, Chris Rutti <c.rutti@comcast.net>, aring.kh@gmail.com, Christine Lerone <christinelerone@gmail.com>
 
Hi Ernie, Marc, and Trina,
 
Today I received an email from Sonia Humphrey, LAFCO Clerk, cc'd, with a link to a copy of the staff report from their meeting on 4/3/2024, at which you and several of us
attended and commented publicly.
 
In case you have not yet seen it, attached is a copy of LAFCO Item #8 - IMPLEMENTATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM
LAFCO’S COUNTYWIDE FIRE SERVICE REVIEW.
 
Do you agree with the statement pasted below from this document, indicating that SCCFD has no authority over the implementation of Speed Bumps in Saratoga? Isn’t
this in direct conflict with the SCCFD regulation SD&S A-2 (also attached)?
 

SARATOGA RESIDENTS’ CONCERNS ABOUT SPEED BUMPS ON
MENDELSOHN LANE
                                                                                                                                              
At the April 3, 2024, LAFCO meeting, several Saratoga residents expressed concerns
about the installation of speed bumps on Mendelsohn Lane. In response, the
Commission directed staff to contact and request that the County clarify and address
these concerns, as necessary. The Commission also asked to be informed of any
action taken to resolve this matter.
On April 8, 2024, staff contacted Deputy County Executive Mills and Santa Clara
County Fire Protection District Chief Kerdkaew on this matter. Subsequently, staff
learned that the City of Saratoga has sole authority with regards to the installation
of speed bumps on Mendelsohn Lane, a roadway which is located within Saratoga’s
city limits. LAFCO staff has informed the City of Saratoga of this matter.

 
Thanks in advance for help clarifying this important issue. I hope the record will be set straight at the next LAFCO meeting on June 5th.
 
Sincerely,
Daniel Miranda
Saratoga resident
 

 

 

mailto:danmiranda@comcast.net
mailto:ekraule@aol.com
mailto:hynes.marc@gmail.com
mailto:twhitley@saratogafire.org
mailto:sonia.humphrey@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:thomaslerone@gmail.com
mailto:p.rutti@comcast.net
mailto:charles.aring@gmail.com
mailto:mark@weisler-saratoga-ca.us
mailto:mark@weisler-saratoga-ca.us
mailto:Hjalalian55@gmail.com
mailto:gdadamson@arcfertility.com
mailto:equal3@icloud.com
mailto:hmckb@sbcglobal.net
mailto:jmbirmingham@gmail.com
mailto:evamiranda@comcast.net
mailto:laurel.weisler@gmail.com
mailto:c.rutti@comcast.net
mailto:aring.kh@gmail.com
mailto:christinelerone@gmail.com


From: Dan danmiranda@comcast.net
Subject: Fwd: Follow-up regarding Mendelsohn Speed Hump Appeal Hearing

Date: February 21, 2024 at 10:11 PM
To: Peter Rutti p.rutti@comcast.net

From: Yan Zhao <yzhao@saratoga.ca.us>
Date: February 7, 2024 at 9:55:53 PM PST
To: Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net>
Cc: Tina Walia <twalia@saratoga.ca.us>, Marc Hynes <hynes.marc@gmail.com>, Trina Whitley <twhitley@saratogafire.org>, Yan Zhao
<yzhao@saratoga.ca.us>, Ernest Kraule <ekraule@saratogafire.org>, Tom Lerone <thomaslerone@gmail.com>, David Adamson MD
<gdadamson@arcfertility.com>, Hobey Birmingham <hmckb@sbcglobal.net>, Peter Rutti <p.rutti@comcast.net>, Hassan Jalalian
<Hjalalian55@gmail.com>, Mark Weisler <mark@weisler-saratoga-ca.us>, Leslie Arroyo <larroyo@saratoga.ca.us>, Charles Aring
<charles.aring@gmail.com>, James Lindsay <jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us>, Leslie Arroyo <larroyo@saratoga.ca.us>
Subject: Re: Follow-up regarding Mendelsohn Speed Hump Appeal Hearing

Hi Daniel,

Thank you again for stopping by to speak with me. I’ve had a chance to speak with City staff to confirm my understanding that the speed
hump planned for Mendelsohn Lane was approved by the Santa Clara County Fire Department.  The City relies on County Fire’s work
and approval as they are the Fire Department that serves the City of Saratoga.

Sincerely,

Yan Zhao, Mayor

City of Saratoga

________________________________
From: Yan Zhao <yzhao@saratoga.ca.us>
Sent: Monday, February 5, 2024 5:01 PM
To: Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net>
Cc: Tina Walia <twalia@saratoga.ca.us>; Marc Hynes <hynes.marc@gmail.com>; Trina Whitley <twhitley@saratogafire.org>; Ernest
Kraule <ekraule@saratogafire.org>; Tom Lerone <thomaslerone@gmail.com>; David Adamson MD <gdadamson@arcfertility.com>;
Hobey Birmingham <hmckb@sbcglobal.net>; Peter Rutti <p.rutti@comcast.net>; Hassan Jalalian <Hjalalian55@gmail.com>; Mark
Weisler <mark@weisler-saratoga-ca.us>; Charles Aring <charles.aring@gmail.com>; James Lindsay <jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us>; Leslie
Arroyo <larroyo@saratoga.ca.us>; Yan Zhao <yzhao@saratoga.ca.us>
Subject: Re: Follow-up regarding Mendelsohn Speed Hump Appeal Hearing

HI Daniel,
Thank you for stopping by my booth to speak with me on Saturday.

I have received a copy of the letter from Saratoga Fire District and the email you sent to James and former mayor Kookie.

I will need some time to do a little bit more research and get back to you.

Best regards,

Yan Zhao, Mayor
City of Saratoga
________________________________
From: Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net>
Sent: Saturday, February 3, 2024 3:02 PM
To: Yan Zhao <yzhao@saratoga.ca.us>
Cc: Tina Walia <twalia@saratoga.ca.us>; Marc Hynes <hynes.marc@gmail.com>; Trina Whitley <twhitley@saratogafire.org>; Ernest
Kraule <ekraule@saratogafire.org>; Tom Lerone <thomaslerone@gmail.com>; David Adamson MD <gdadamson@arcfertility.com>;
Hobey Birmingham <hmckb@sbcglobal.net>; Peter Rutti <p.rutti@comcast.net>; Hassan Jalalian <Hjalalian55@gmail.com>; Mark
Weisler <mark@weisler-saratoga-ca.us>; Charles Aring <charles.aring@gmail.com>
Subject: Follow-up regarding Mendelsohn Speed Hump Appeal Hearing

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links, especially
from unknown senders.

Mayor Zhao,

It was nice to see you at the Saratoga Farmers’ Market this morning holding “office hours” to provide updates and hear questions from
Saratoga residents.

As promised, I have attached a copy of a letter sent to last December by the Saratoga Fire District (SFD), which you claim you had not
seen before. As specifically stated, the purpose of the letter was to request that the city delay taking any further action towards installation
of traffic control devices on Mendelsohn Lane. I look forward to hearing back from you on the status of this request by the SFD.

In addition, I am forwarding you a previous email thread that I sent to Mr. James Lindsay (and cc’d the Mayor) last November outlining
several concerns with the TSC and the subsequent Appeal Hearing on their approval of speed humps on Mendelsohn Lane. Mr. Lindsay
was essentially non-responsive, but hopefully you can directly respond to the issues raised.

Most importantly, I believe that your vote Against the Appeal, may have been different if you had been presented with correct facts at the



Most importantly, I believe that your vote Against the Appeal, may have been different if you had been presented with correct facts at the
hearing. Specifically, that code  SD&S A-2 PAGE 1-3<https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.sccfd.org%2fwp-
content%2fuploads%2fdocuments%2ffire_prevention%2fstandards%2fSDS_A-2-SpeedHumpsSpeed_ables.pdf&c=E,1,p0aI6yxYUTN2-
prLV2TRpYJYi22ePFs4854VYD-OmrbLmNicYSspufD5l3REfODtNTlcIf95xVl7quDP783nxt7NhhfwibKMAq8cZUQeW-gT&typo=1> applies
directly to all Saratoga streets. In fact, it applies all of Santa Clara County, both incorporated and unincorporated areas. This key point
was asked by Council Member Tina Walia and misrepresented by the TSC, Ms. Emma Burkhalther, at the Appeal Hearing.

I  look forward to your response to all the above.

Thank you,

Daniel Miranda
20151 Rancho Bella Vista
Saratoga, CA 95070

Begin forwarded message:

From: Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net>
Subject: Follow-up regarding TSC interactions and Appeal Hearing
Date: November 7, 2023 at 12:18:17 PM PST
To: jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us
Cc: kookie@saratoga.ca.us, Ernest Kraule <ekraule@saratogafire.org>, Tom Lerone <thomaslerone@gmail.com>, David Adamson MD
<gdadamson@arcfertility.com>, Hobart Birmingham <hmckb@sbcglobal.net>

Mr. James Lindsay
City Manager
City of Saratoga
13777 Fruitvale Avenue
Saratoga, CA 95070

November 7, 2023

Dear Mr. Lindsay,

I am following up on our meeting at your office a week ago on October 31st regarding Traffic and Safety Commission (“TSC”)
interactions, which are summarized in my note below that was sent to you the same day. Have you had the opportunity to investigate
those concerns, as you indicated?

In addition, the Public Appeal Hearing on TSC’s approval of Mendelsohn Lane speed humps has raised two new, important concerns,
that are shared by many of us living in the Mendelsohn Lane area.

1.     First, can you please fact check the following:
The TSC presented a 1-page document titled  Attachment L - County Fire Approval of Speed Table Plans<https://legistarweb-
production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2250419/Attachment_L_-_County_Fire_Approval_of_Speed_Table_Plans.pdf>.
This document clearly states, “Plans are APPROVED with the following conditions (emphasis added).”  The second paragraph of these
conditions states that “installation shall be in accordance with CFC Sec. 503 and SD&S A-2 PAGE 1-
3<https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.sccfd.org%2fwp-
content%2fuploads%2fdocuments%2ffire_prevention%2fstandards%2fSDS_A-2-SpeedHumpsSpeed_ables.pdf&c=E,1,-
Qj0oGd1L8hh3CivoKVK1A46hD8IO9Yiue4qPfKgRCJCFNTkDAdOQ0kRAUKCImuyTkz2FFJhl52OZ7RoozhG0CiO5o_5yBnvViAgLJtF&ty
po=1>.”

On the bottom of page 1 of this 3-page document, it clearly states:
“II. LOCATIONS
A.    Speed Humps/Speed Tables shall not be installed along primary emergency response routes, as determined by the SCCFD
(Emphasis added).”

It is my understanding that Mendelsohn Lane is in fact a primary emergency response route as determined by the SCCFD. If this is
correct, this means the SCCFD has in fact disapproved installing speed humps on Mendelsohn Lane.

2.     Second:
The agenda stated that the Appeal Hearing would be a de novo review. We were all disappointed that this appeared not to be the case.

This is especially the case with Councilman Belal Aftab. He previously was the TSC chairman and had voted in favor of speed humps on
Mendelsohn in that capacity. Councilman Aftab did not show up at the site visit with all the other City Council members on 11/1/2023,
because he said he was so familiar with the issue from his experience on the TSC and therefore heard nothing from those of us who live
on and near Mendelsohn Lane. After the Appeal hearing Councilman Aftab came down from the stage to talk with a group of us in the
audience. When I asked him if he had made up his mind on this appeal before the night’s hearing based on his prior experience, he
answered “yes” directly to me.  It seems clear that Councilman Aftab’s view was that of a TSC member and chair, not an unbiased council
member, something to which, I believe, we as appellants were entitled. As an ethical matter, would it have not been appropriate for him to
recuse himself from voting on this issue?

Thank you in advance for your attention to these issues. We can only have public trust between residents and local government, if we get
the facts correct and have for Saratoga’s citizens an open and transparent process, without real or apparent conflicts of interest.

We look forward to your response on these issues and those previously raised – something to which, I am sure you will agree, members
of our community are entitled.

Sincerely,

Daniel Miranda
20151 Rancho Bella Vista
Saratoga, CA 95070

cc:        Kookie Fitzsimmons, Mayor, City of Saratoga



cc:        Kookie Fitzsimmons, Mayor, City of Saratoga
           Ernest Kraule, Saratoga Fire District Commissioner

On Oct 31, 2023, at 5:17 PM, Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net<mailto:danmiranda@comcast.net>> wrote:

Mr. James Lindsay
City Manager
City of Saratoga
13777 Fruitvale Avenue
Saratoga, CA 95070

October 31, 2023

Dear Mr. Lindsay,

I appreciate you allowing me to meet with you in person today to discuss and provide you with documented evidence of interactions
between Mr. Henry Cole and the TSC. We both agree that these interactions are very concerning from a public trust and ethical point of
view, and have damaged the public trust between the City and the Residents, which we both hope to repair. Any potential material or
financial conflicts of interest still need to be investigated and cleared by you, as you promised you would do within the next week.

Specifically, together we reviewed the timeline of the TSC Special Meeting on 8/22/2023 and the fact that Mr. Cole was able to submit his
recommendations and comments to be incorporated into the agenda before the meeting announcement and agenda was even posted to
the public. No other resident was given this inside advance notice of the meeting or the opportunity to submit input before the Agenda
was posted and distributed to the TSC Commissioners for consideration.

Secondly, we both reviewed Mr. Cole’s written point-by-point rebuttal to Mr. Lerone’s Appeal Application of the TSC approval for speed
humps on Mendelsohn. Mr. Cole submitted his written rebuttal on 10/24/2023, two days before the Appeal Agenda and TSC Staff rebuttal
was official posted to the public on 10/26/2023. Comments submitted by Mr. Cole concerning TSC communications with the Fire District
before they were made official indicate his inside connection and direct ongoing communications within the TSC.

I have cc’d fellow residents, Mr. Tom Lerone, and Dr. David Adamson, since I also shared hard copies of their written letters to the City
with you. We, as well as all the residents in our community deserve an explanation of how and why any individual completely unaffected
by proposed speed humps appears to have so much influence over committee actions and decisions. What are the relationships between
this individual not in the Area of Influence with the consultant engineer for Saratoga, with the Saratoga staff, and with the TSC?
Disclosures of these relationships are essential to avoid the current appearance of potentially multiple conflicts of interest. The
relationship(s) are opaque yet of much concern regarding potential undue influence.

Sincerely,

Daniel Miranda
20151 Rancho Bella Vista
Saratoga, CA 95070

winmail.dat





 

SD&S A-2/ne/05.21.20  Speed Humps and Speed Tables        1 of 3 

Serving Santa Clara County and the communities of Campbell, Cupertino, Los Altos,  
Los Altos Hills, Los Gatos, Monte Sereno, and Saratoga. 

SANTA CLARA COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
14700 Winchester Blvd., Los Gatos, CA 95032 | (408) 378-4010 | www.sccfd.org  

   
STANDARD DETAILS & SPECIFICATIONS Spec No A-2 
 Rev. Date 07/01/20 
SUBJECT: Speed Humps and Speed Tables Eff. Date 12/12/18 
 Approved By __ ___ 
 Page __1__ of __3__ 

	
	

SCOPE 
 

This Standard applies to the design and installation of Speed Humps and/or Speed 
Tables where approved by the Fire Code Official. 
 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 

SCCFD: Shall refer to the Santa Clara County Fire Department. 
 
Speed Hump: A Speed Hump is a raised traffic calming device placed across a 
roadway to reduce vehicle speed and volume. 
 
Speed Table: A Speed Table is a variation of a Speed Hump. It is similar to a Speed 
Hump except that it is flat-topped between ramped sections so as to raise the entire 
wheelbase of a vehicle to reduce traffic speed and/or to accommodate a crosswalk. 
 
 

REQUIREMENTS 
 
I. GENERAL 

A. Speed Humps/Speed Tables shall be approved by the SCCFD prior to 
installation. 

B. For public streets, Speed Humps/Speed Tables must be approved for installation 
by the local City/Town prior to obtaining the Fire Department approval. 

 
II. LOCATIONS 

A. Speed Humps/Speed Tables shall not be installed along primary emergency 
response routes, as determined by the SCCFD. 

Daniel Miranda





From: Noel, Dunia
To: Abello, Emmanuel
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting
Date: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 3:47:38 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
RE Saratoga Speed Bumps (Mendelsohn Lane) Questions- Request from County Supervisor LAFCO Commissioner Otto Lee.msg

From: James Lindsay <jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 11:44 AM
To: Noel, Dunia <Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting

Hello Dunia,

I don’t have anything to add to my earlier email (attached) except links documenting County Fire and City Council approval.

November 1, 2023 Saratoga City Council Meeting Agenda - Item 2.1 Mendelsohn Speed Table Appeal
Attachment L – County Fire approval letter

Take care,
James Lindsay

From: Noel, Dunia <Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org> 
Sent: Monday, June 3, 2024 11:37 AM
To: James Lindsay <jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us>
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

Hi James,
Trying to get some final clarity on this issue. Please see email thread below from the Saratoga City property owner who mentions message from Saratoga Mayor saying speed bumps are District
decision, but District says it is a City’s responsibility/decision. What is the City’s current position on this? Thanks.
-Dunia

**If you have an inquiry, we encourage you to contact us by email at LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org.**

Dunia Noel
Assistant Executive Officer, Santa Clara LAFCO
777 North First Street, Suite 410, San Jose, CA 95112
(408) 993-4704 | Twitter: @SantaClaraLAFCO | www.SantaClaraLAFCO.org

From: Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net> 
Sent: Monday, June 3, 2024 10:27 AM
To: Humphrey, Sonia <sonia.humphrey@ceo.sccgov.org>; Noel, Dunia <Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting

Ms. Sonia Humphrey,

Thank you for taking my call this morning and promising to have Dunia Noel call me directly about Item #8 on the June 5th LAFCO Meeting Agenda.

Ms Dunia Noel,

I look forward to speaking with you.

In advance let me share with you a screenshot of an email response I received from Yan Zhao, Mayor of Saratoga (pasted below). The Mayor's response is 100% counter to what is stated in
LAFCO's Item #8, with respect to who has sole authority for the approval and installation of speed bumps in the WUI (high fire zones) within Saratoga’s City Limits.

I respectfully ask that you raise this issue with LAFCO at the next meeting and clarify who has responsibility to enforce Fire Code SD&S A-2 .

Thank you in advance.

Daniel Miranda
Saratoga Resident
408-835-9300

#2

mailto:Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:Emmanuel.Abello@ceo.sccgov.org
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.saratoga.ca.us/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Agenda/_11012023-1161__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!yOppUDdganbTkJYtjr5Qiez6gGZggn3O833qv-Y5DjnAe6HNmV1zTg2QIp_Yx6vJUiJK4yrilvdU9sClZIceSW5U9HY$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2250419/Attachment_L_-_County_Fire_Approval_of_Speed_Table_Plans.pdf__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!yOppUDdganbTkJYtjr5Qiez6gGZggn3O833qv-Y5DjnAe6HNmV1zTg2QIp_Yx6vJUiJK4yrilvdU9sClZIceLjPaA2Q$
mailto:Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us
mailto:LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/twitter.com/SantaClaraLAFCO__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!yOppUDdganbTkJYtjr5Qiez6gGZggn3O833qv-Y5DjnAe6HNmV1zTg2QIp_Yx6vJUiJK4yrilvdU9sClZIceuXMjlbA$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.santaclaralafco.org/__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!yOppUDdganbTkJYtjr5Qiez6gGZggn3O833qv-Y5DjnAe6HNmV1zTg2QIp_Yx6vJUiJK4yrilvdU9sClZIcebTLtJM4$
mailto:danmiranda@comcast.net
mailto:sonia.humphrey@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.sccfd.org/wp-content/uploads/documents/fire_prevention/standards/SDS_A-2-SpeedHumpsSpeed_ables.pdf__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!wf5QAlR3D0ZmSAx01ezAS1h7Ij8HkYelrByhJ-cLvEPwleqrG_eWzmkKDK1P1Gqp0UH82RVzHqlfqRfrF-p2gSZ0ZQ$



RE: Saratoga Speed Bumps (Mendelsohn Lane) Questions- Request from County Supervisor/ LAFCO Commissioner Otto Lee

		From

		James Lindsay

		To

		Noel, Dunia

		Cc

		Palacherla, Neelima; John Cherbone; Leslie Arroyo

		Recipients

		Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org; Neelima.Palacherla@ceo.sccgov.org; jcherbone@saratoga.ca.us; larroyo@saratoga.ca.us



Hello Dunia,





Thank you for the referral. County Fire, Saratoga Fire District, and the City are all very familiar with Dan and Peter’s concerns. They lost an appeal before the City Council last year and the installation of the speed humps was recently completed.





Sincerely,





James Lindsay





From: Noel, Dunia <Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, May 28, 2024 4:54 PM
To: James Lindsay <jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us>
Cc: Palacherla, Neelima <Neelima.Palacherla@ceo.sccgov.org>
Subject: Saratoga Speed Bumps (Mendelsohn Lane) Questions- Request from County Supervisor/ LAFCO Commissioner Otto Lee





CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.





Hello James:





We would like to refer, for your consideration, the concerns raised by Saratoga residents (Peter Rutti, Daniel Miranda, others ) at the April 3, 2024 LAFCO Meeting under Item #6, regarding the installation of speed bumps on Mendelsohn Lane in the City of Saratoga. Video: https://youtube.com/live/zsCRd7wOut0?feature=share (see speakers starting at 55:05, and particularly Daniel Miranda starting at 1:03:50 who discusses the confusion quite extensively and Peter Rutti at 1:07:16 who also raises concerns)





They indicated that the street is designated as an evacuation route and is in a Very High Fire Hazard wildland-urban interface area. There appears to be some confusion about whether the speed bumps are allowed, what the process was for approving them, and who permits and enforces such requirements on that street. 





County Supervisor/LAFCO Commissioner Otto Lee requested that the appropriate party address these residents’ concerns, as necessary. It is now our understanding that the City has authority on this matter, as the road in question is located within the city limits.





If you want to contact the property owners, here is the information that we have for them:





-Daniel Miranda (danmiranda@comcast.net) at 20151 Rancho Bella Vista





-Peter Rutti (no email provided, has lived on Mendelsohn Lane for 38 years)





Thanks.





-Dunia





**If you have an inquiry, we encourage you to contact us by email at LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org.**





Dunia Noel





Assistant Executive Officer, Santa Clara LAFCO 





777 North First Street, Suite 410, San Jose, CA 95112





(408) 993-4704 | Twitter: @SantaClaraLAFCO | www.SantaClaraLAFCO.org
















image001.png

image001.png







Begin forwarded message:

From: Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net>
Subject: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting
Date: June 1, 2024 at 2:14:32 PM PDT
To: Ernie Kraule <ekraule@aol.com>, Marc Hynes <hynes.marc@gmail.com>, Trina Whitley <twhitley@saratogafire.org>, sonia.humphrey@ceo.sccgov.org
Cc: Tom Lerone <thomaslerone@gmail.com>, Peter Rutti <p.rutti@comcast.net>, Charles Aring <charles.aring@gmail.com>, Mark Weisler <mark@weisler-saratoga-ca.us>,
Hassan Jalalian <Hjalalian55@gmail.com>, David Adamson MD <gdadamson@arcfertility.com>, Rosemary Adamson <equal3@icloud.com>, Hobey Birmingham
<hmckb@sbcglobal.net>, JoAnne Birmingham <jmbirmingham@gmail.com>, Eva R Freund Miranda <evamiranda@comcast.net>, laurel.weisler@gmail.com, Chris Rutti
<c.rutti@comcast.net>, aring.kh@gmail.com, Christine Lerone <christinelerone@gmail.com>

Hi Ernie, Marc, and Trina,

Today I received an email from Sonia Humphrey, LAFCO Clerk, cc'd, with a link to a copy of the staff report from their meeting on 4/3/2024, at which you and several of us attended
and commented publicly.

In case you have not yet seen it, attached is a copy of LAFCO Item #8 - IMPLEMENTATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM
LAFCO’S COUNTYWIDE FIRE SERVICE REVIEW.

Do you agree with the statement pasted below from this document, indicating that SCCFD has no authority over the implementation of Speed Bumps in Saratoga? Isn’t this in direct
conflict with the SCCFD regulation SD&S A-2 (also attached)?

SARATOGA RESIDENTS’ CONCERNS ABOUT SPEED BUMPS ON
MENDELSOHN LANE

At the April 3, 2024, LAFCO meeting, several Saratoga residents expressed concerns
about the installation of speed bumps on Mendelsohn Lane. In response, the
Commission directed staff to contact and request that the County clarify and address
these concerns, as necessary. The Commission also asked to be informed of any
action taken to resolve this matter.
On April 8, 2024, staff contacted Deputy County Executive Mills and Santa Clara
County Fire Protection District Chief Kerdkaew on this matter. Subsequently, staff
learned that the City of Saratoga has sole authority with regards to the installation
of speed bumps on Mendelsohn Lane, a roadway which is located within Saratoga’s
city limits. LAFCO staff has informed the City of Saratoga of this matter.

Thanks in advance for help clarifying this important issue. I hope the record will be set straight at the next LAFCO meeting on June 5th.

Sincerely,
Daniel Miranda
Saratoga resident

mailto:danmiranda@comcast.net
mailto:ekraule@aol.com
mailto:hynes.marc@gmail.com
mailto:twhitley@saratogafire.org
mailto:sonia.humphrey@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:thomaslerone@gmail.com
mailto:p.rutti@comcast.net
mailto:charles.aring@gmail.com
mailto:mark@weisler-saratoga-ca.us
mailto:Hjalalian55@gmail.com
mailto:gdadamson@arcfertility.com
mailto:equal3@icloud.com
mailto:hmckb@sbcglobal.net
mailto:jmbirmingham@gmail.com
mailto:evamiranda@comcast.net
mailto:laurel.weisler@gmail.com
mailto:c.rutti@comcast.net
mailto:aring.kh@gmail.com
mailto:christinelerone@gmail.com


From: James Lindsay
To: Noel, Dunia
Cc: Palacherla, Neelima; John Cherbone; Leslie Arroyo
Subject: RE: Saratoga Speed Bumps (Mendelsohn Lane) Questions- Request from County Supervisor/ LAFCO

Commissioner Otto Lee
Attachments: image001.png

Hello Dunia,
Thank you for the referral. County Fire, Saratoga Fire District, and the City are all very familiar
with Dan and Peter’s concerns. They lost an appeal before the City Council last year and the
installation of the speed humps was recently completed.
Sincerely,
James Lindsay
From: Noel, Dunia <Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, May 28, 2024 4:54 PM
To: James Lindsay <jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us>
Cc: Palacherla, Neelima <Neelima.Palacherla@ceo.sccgov.org>
Subject: Saratoga Speed Bumps (Mendelsohn Lane) Questions- Request from County Supervisor/
LAFCO Commissioner Otto Lee

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

Hello James:
We would like to refer, for your consideration, the concerns raised
by Saratoga residents (Peter Rutti, Daniel Miranda, others ) at the
April 3, 2024 LAFCO Meeting under Item #6, regarding the
installation of speed bumps on Mendelsohn Lane in the City of
Saratoga. Video: https://youtube.com/live/zsCRd7wOut0?
feature=share (see speakers starting at 55:05, and particularly
Daniel Miranda starting at 1:03:50 who discusses the confusion
quite extensively and Peter Rutti at 1:07:16 who also raises
concerns)

They indicated that the street is designated as an evacuation route
and is in a Very High Fire Hazard wildland-urban interface area.
There appears to be some confusion about whether the speed
bumps are allowed, what the process was for approving them, and
who permits and enforces such requirements on that street.

County Supervisor/LAFCO Commissioner Otto Lee requested that

mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=USER9A0FA794
mailto:Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:Neelima.Palacherla@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:jcherbone@saratoga.ca.us
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=50fa760b3ea143ac95ed6921f9435394-Guest_33fc8
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/youtube.com/live/zsCRd7wOut0?feature=share__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!1VO_7vv0I7aqUrFkLrBsfrjY38UOYyNhnp0DHs40JmTvwbwyfkOwcPZYvvYHAJzxFNU8ejiSmQ5V5xM9btvWDlC937FfAwxx$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/youtube.com/live/zsCRd7wOut0?feature=share__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!1VO_7vv0I7aqUrFkLrBsfrjY38UOYyNhnp0DHs40JmTvwbwyfkOwcPZYvvYHAJzxFNU8ejiSmQ5V5xM9btvWDlC937FfAwxx$



the appropriate party address these residents’ concerns, as
necessary. It is now our understanding that the City has authority
on this matter, as the road in question is located within the city
limits.

If you want to contact the property owners, here is the information
that we have for them:

-Daniel Miranda (danmiranda@comcast.net) at 20151 Rancho Bella
Vista
-Peter Rutti (no email provided, has lived on Mendelsohn Lane for
38 years)

Thanks.

-Dunia
**If you have an inquiry, we encourage you to contact us by email at LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org.**

Dunia Noel
Assistant Executive Officer, Santa Clara LAFCO
777 North First Street, Suite 410, San Jose, CA 95112
(408) 993-4704 | Twitter: @SantaClaraLAFCO | www.SantaClaraLAFCO.org

mailto:danmiranda@comcast.net
mailto:LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://twitter.com/SantaClaraLAFCO__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!yOppUDdganbTkJYtjr5Qiez6gGZggn3O833qv-Y5DjnAe6HNmV1zTg2QIp_Yx6vJUiJK4yrilvdU9sClZIceuXMjlbA$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.santaclaralafco.org/__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!yOppUDdganbTkJYtjr5Qiez6gGZggn3O833qv-Y5DjnAe6HNmV1zTg2QIp_Yx6vJUiJK4yrilvdU9sClZIcebTLtJM4$


From: Noel, Dunia
To: Abello, Emmanuel
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting
Date: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 4:17:36 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
signature.png

From: Suwanna Kerdkaew <suwanna.kerdkaew@sccfd.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 4:10 PM
To: Noel, Dunia <Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org>
Cc: Brian Glass <brian.glass@sccfd.org>; Palacherla, Neelima <Neelima.Palacherla@ceo.sccgov.org>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting

Good afternoon Dunia,

I appreciate the additional information from the City Manager.  This is a complex situation, as written codes, intent and authority may seem very straight forward, but in essence, definitions
of emergency routes is intended to be directed towards usage regarding our emergency vehicles and the challenges they may have due to traffic calming measures the cities/towns
implement.

Please see this information below:

Code
CFC 503.4.1 Traffic calming devices. Traffic calming devices shall be prohibited unless approved by the fire code official.

Intent
This response references the 2021 IFC Code and Commentary, Volume 1 for clarification of intent. Significant portions of this reference are taken directly from the IFC
Code and Commentary. It is not the intent of CFC Section 503.4.1 for the fire code official to prohibit all traffic calming devices in all locations. 

Section 503.4.1 prohibits installation of traffic calming devise on fire apparatus access roads unless approved by the fire code official, but it does not specify how
this will be achieved for various jurisdictions. Each jurisdiction had its own traffic pattern emergency response challenges. The purpose of this requirement is to
ensure that the fire department is part of the decision-making process. 

In most jurisdictions, the design and construction or review and approval of traffic calming devices is the responsibility of the municipal public works, transportation or
engineering department. The fire code official and the appropriate governmental engineering staff must work closely with one another to ensure that traffic calming
devices, where approved, meet traffic engineering needs and have the least impact on response times to emergencies. Traffic official and fire code officials share
the responsibly to ensure that all public interests are properly considered in their decision-making process since both sets of officials have detailed
regulations to provide for those interests. 

The section of Mendelsohn in question is not a recognized primary route and it was evaluated by County Fire’s GIS analyst at the time of project
submission. It has also been evaluated after installation for access/egress limitations and operational challenges. No operational concerns exist related to
the installations on Mendelsohn. 

I will be at the County Bldg in interviews for the duration of the day tomorrow.  I believe that the response City Manager Lindsey provided and the response directly above is the "meat and
potatoes" of County Fire's response with the calming measure in question in Saratoga.

Suwanna L. Kerdkaew
Fire Chief  
14700 Winchester Blvd. Los Gatos, CA 95032
408.341.4411 - office

 Proudly serving the communities of Campbell, Cupertino, Los Altos, Los Altos Hills, Los Gatos, Monte Sereno and Saratoga 

From: "Dunia Noel" <Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org>
To: "Suwanna Kerdkaew" <Suwanna.Kerdkaew@sccfd.org>
Cc: "Brian Glass" <brian.glass@sccfd.org>, "Neelima Palacherla" <Neelima.Palacherla@ceo.sccgov.org>
Sent: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 12:10:53 PM
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting

Hello Chief Kerdkaew,
Just letting you know that we received the following email (see below) this morning from Saratoga’s City Manager. Thanks.
-Dunia

From: James Lindsay <jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 11:44 AM
To: Noel, Dunia <Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting

Hello Dunia,

I don’t have anything to add to my earlier email (attached) except links documenting County Fire and City Council approval.

November 1, 2023 Saratoga City Council Meeting Agenda - Item 2.1 Mendelsohn Speed Table Appeal
Attachment L – County Fire approval letter

Take care,
James Lindsay

From: Noel, Dunia <Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org> 
Sent: Monday, June 3, 2024 11:37 AM
To: James Lindsay <jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us>
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

Hi James,

#3

mailto:Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:Emmanuel.Abello@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:Suwanna.Kerdkaew@sccfd.org
mailto:brian.glass@sccfd.org
mailto:Neelima.Palacherla@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us
mailto:Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.saratoga.ca.us/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Agenda/_11012023-1161__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!yOppUDdganbTkJYtjr5Qiez6gGZggn3O833qv-Y5DjnAe6HNmV1zTg2QIp_Yx6vJUiJK4yrilvdU9sClZIceSW5U9HY$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2250419/Attachment_L_-_County_Fire_Approval_of_Speed_Table_Plans.pdf__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!yOppUDdganbTkJYtjr5Qiez6gGZggn3O833qv-Y5DjnAe6HNmV1zTg2QIp_Yx6vJUiJK4yrilvdU9sClZIceLjPaA2Q$
mailto:Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:jlindsay@saratoga.ca.us





Trying to get some final clarity on this issue. Please see email thread below from the Saratoga City property owner who mentions message from Saratoga Mayor saying speed bumps are District
decision, but District says it is a City’s responsibility/decision. What is the City’s current position on this? Thanks.
-Dunia
 
**If you have an inquiry, we encourage you to contact us by email at LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org.**

 
Dunia Noel
Assistant Executive Officer, Santa Clara LAFCO
777 North First Street, Suite 410, San Jose, CA 95112
(408) 993-4704 | Twitter: @SantaClaraLAFCO | www.SantaClaraLAFCO.org
 

 
From: Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net> 
Sent: Monday, June 3, 2024 10:27 AM
To: Humphrey, Sonia <sonia.humphrey@ceo.sccgov.org>; Noel, Dunia <Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting

 
Ms. Sonia Humphrey,
 
Thank you for taking my call this morning and promising to have Dunia Noel call me directly about Item #8 on the June 5th LAFCO Meeting Agenda.
 
 
Ms Dunia Noel,
 
I look forward to speaking with you.
 
In advance let me share with you a screenshot of an email response I received from Yan Zhao, Mayor of Saratoga (pasted below). The Mayor's response is 100% counter to what is stated in
LAFCO's Item #8, with respect to who has sole authority for the approval and installation of speed bumps in the WUI (high fire zones) within Saratoga’s City Limits.
 
I respectfully ask that you raise this issue with LAFCO at the next meeting and clarify who has responsibility to enforce Fire Code SD&S A-2 .
 
Thank you in advance.
 
Daniel Miranda
Saratoga Resident
408-835-9300
 

 
 

mailto:LAFCO@ceo.sccgov.org
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/twitter.com/SantaClaraLAFCO__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!yOppUDdganbTkJYtjr5Qiez6gGZggn3O833qv-Y5DjnAe6HNmV1zTg2QIp_Yx6vJUiJK4yrilvdU9sClZIceuXMjlbA$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.santaclaralafco.org/__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!yOppUDdganbTkJYtjr5Qiez6gGZggn3O833qv-Y5DjnAe6HNmV1zTg2QIp_Yx6vJUiJK4yrilvdU9sClZIcebTLtJM4$
mailto:danmiranda@comcast.net
mailto:sonia.humphrey@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:Dunia.Noel@ceo.sccgov.org
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.sccfd.org/wp-content/uploads/documents/fire_prevention/standards/SDS_A-2-SpeedHumpsSpeed_ables.pdf__;!!P4LiPV1inDXhLQ!wf5QAlR3D0ZmSAx01ezAS1h7Ij8HkYelrByhJ-cLvEPwleqrG_eWzmkKDK1P1Gqp0UH82RVzHqlfqRfrF-p2gSZ0ZQ$


Begin forwarded message:

From: Dan Miranda <danmiranda@comcast.net>
Subject: LAFCO written response to residents concerns raised at April Meeting
Date: June 1, 2024 at 2:14:32 PM PDT
To: Ernie Kraule <ekraule@aol.com>, Marc Hynes <hynes.marc@gmail.com>, Trina Whitley <twhitley@saratogafire.org>, sonia.humphrey@ceo.sccgov.org
Cc: Tom Lerone <thomaslerone@gmail.com>, Peter Rutti <p.rutti@comcast.net>, Charles Aring <charles.aring@gmail.com>, Mark Weisler <mark@weisler-saratoga-ca.us>,
Hassan Jalalian <Hjalalian55@gmail.com>, David Adamson MD <gdadamson@arcfertility.com>, Rosemary Adamson <equal3@icloud.com>, Hobey Birmingham
<hmckb@sbcglobal.net>, JoAnne Birmingham <jmbirmingham@gmail.com>, Eva R Freund Miranda <evamiranda@comcast.net>, laurel.weisler@gmail.com, Chris Rutti
<c.rutti@comcast.net>, aring.kh@gmail.com, Christine Lerone <christinelerone@gmail.com>

Hi Ernie, Marc, and Trina,

Today I received an email from Sonia Humphrey, LAFCO Clerk, cc'd, with a link to a copy of the staff report from their meeting on 4/3/2024, at which you and several of us attended
and commented publicly.

In case you have not yet seen it, attached is a copy of LAFCO Item #8 - IMPLEMENTATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM
LAFCO’S COUNTYWIDE FIRE SERVICE REVIEW.

Do you agree with the statement pasted below from this document, indicating that SCCFD has no authority over the implementation of Speed Bumps in Saratoga? Isn’t this in direct
conflict with the SCCFD regulation SD&S A-2 (also attached)?

SARATOGA RESIDENTS’ CONCERNS ABOUT SPEED BUMPS ON
MENDELSOHN LANE

At the April 3, 2024, LAFCO meeting, several Saratoga residents expressed concerns
about the installation of speed bumps on Mendelsohn Lane. In response, the
Commission directed staff to contact and request that the County clarify and address
these concerns, as necessary. The Commission also asked to be informed of any
action taken to resolve this matter.
On April 8, 2024, staff contacted Deputy County Executive Mills and Santa Clara
County Fire Protection District Chief Kerdkaew on this matter. Subsequently, staff
learned that the City of Saratoga has sole authority with regards to the installation
of speed bumps on Mendelsohn Lane, a roadway which is located within Saratoga’s
city limits. LAFCO staff has informed the City of Saratoga of this matter.

Thanks in advance for help clarifying this important issue. I hope the record will be set straight at the next LAFCO meeting on June 5th.

Sincerely,
Daniel Miranda
Saratoga resident

mailto:danmiranda@comcast.net
mailto:ekraule@aol.com
mailto:hynes.marc@gmail.com
mailto:twhitley@saratogafire.org
mailto:sonia.humphrey@ceo.sccgov.org
mailto:thomaslerone@gmail.com
mailto:p.rutti@comcast.net
mailto:charles.aring@gmail.com
mailto:mark@weisler-saratoga-ca.us
mailto:Hjalalian55@gmail.com
mailto:gdadamson@arcfertility.com
mailto:equal3@icloud.com
mailto:hmckb@sbcglobal.net
mailto:jmbirmingham@gmail.com
mailto:evamiranda@comcast.net
mailto:laurel.weisler@gmail.com
mailto:c.rutti@comcast.net
mailto:aring.kh@gmail.com
mailto:christinelerone@gmail.com




 

PAGE 1 OF 3 

 

  
LAFCO MEETING: June 5, 2024 
TO:    LAFCO 
FROM:  Neelima Palacherla, Executive Officer 
  Dunia Noel, Asst. Executive Officer 
 Emmanuel Abello, Associate Analyst 
SUBJECT:  CALAFCO RELATED ACTIVITIES 

 

9.1 REPORT ON THE 2024 CALAFCO STAFF WORKSHOP (APRIL 24 – 26, 
2024) 

For Information Only. 
LAFCO staff attended the 2024 Annual CALAFCO Staff Workshop in Pleasanton 
(April 24 - April 26), hosted by Alameda LAFCO. The workshop was attended by 
approximately 103 participants representing LAFCOs across the state, and provided 
various practical and hands-on courses, as well as roundtable discussions and 
professional development sessions. Sessions included: 

• A mobile workshop on Sustainable Growth: From Grounds to Grapes with 
Public Wastewater 

• LAFCO Trivia (covering a wide range of topics specific to LAFCO for LAFCO 
staff with differing levels of knowledge and experience) 

• “Trust Me” – What’s the Big Deal? Presenting case studies on trust as a 
component for positive change and outcomes 

• Write it Like You Mean It: Using Precise Language to Accurately Inform Your 
Stakeholders 

• Making Sausage: The Recipe for Changing the Law 

• Going Back to the Basics of Your Staff Report Map with GIS 

• Successful District Reorganization: A Whole That is Greater Than the Sum of 
Its Parts 

• A Picture is Worth 1,000 Numbers: Modernizing Fiscal Indicators 

• Clerks’ 101: “It’s a Career, Not a Pitstop” 

• Are You Sure Your Website and Online Documents are ADA Compliant? 

ITEM # 9 



PAGE 2 OF 3 

 

• Lessons Learned: Detachment of Two Water Districts From the San Diego 
County Water Authority 

CALAFCO has posted workshop handouts on its website at www.calafco.org.  

Attending the annual CALAFCO Workshop is included in LAFCO’s work plan for staff 
professional development.  

9.2 2024 CALAFCO ANNUAL CONFERENCE (OCTOBER 16 – 18, 2024) 

Recommendation 
Authorize commissioners and staff to attend the Annual Conference and direct that 
associated travel expenses be funded by the LAFCO Budget for Fiscal Year 2025.  

Discussion 
The upcoming CALAFCO Annual Conference will be held at the Tenaya Lodge in Fish 
Camp, CA from Wednesday, October 16th to Friday, October 18th. The Conference 
provides an annual opportunity for commissioners and staff to gain additional 
knowledge about changes in LAFCO legislation, LAFCO policies and practices, and 
the latest issues facing LAFCOs, counties, cities, and special districts across the state.  
The Conference brings together approximately 250 LAFCO Commissioners and staff 
from around the state to discuss the latest issues and share knowledge and best 
practices. Further details will be made available late summer.  

9.3 NOMINATIONS TO THE CALAFCO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Recommendation 
Nominate interested Commissioners and provide further direction to staff, as 
necessary. 

Discussion 
Nominations for the 2024/2025 CALAFCO Board of Directors are now open. Santa 
Clara LAFCO is part of the Coastal Region. Within the Coastal Region, nominations 
are being accepted for “County Member” and “District Member.” The deadline for 
LAFCO to submit nominations is Monday, September 16th. Please see Attachment A 
for details. 

Serving on the CALAFCO Board is a unique opportunity to work with other LAFCO 
commissioners throughout the state on legislative, fiscal and operational issues that 
affect LAFCOs, counties, cities, and special districts. The Board meets four to five 
times each year, with half of the meetings currently held virtually and rest being 
held at alternate sites around the state. Any LAFCO commissioner or alternate 
commissioner is eligible to run for a CALAFCO Board seat. 

 

http://www.calafco.org/


PAGE 3 OF 3 

 

9.4 DESIGNATE VOTING DELEGATE AND ALTERNATE FOR 2024 
CALAFCO BOARD OF DIRECTORS ELECTION 

Recommendation 
Appoint voting delegate and alternate voting delegate for 2024 CALAFCO Board of 
Directors Election. 

Discussion 
Elections for the 2024/2025 CALAFCO Board of Directors will occur on Thursday, 
October 17, 2024, at CALAFCO’s Annual Conference at the Tenaya Lodge in Fish 
Camp. Each LAFCO must designate a voting delegate and alternate who is 
authorized to vote on behalf of their LAFCO. The nomination form for the voting 
delegate and alternate is included in Attachment A. 

ATTACHMENT 

Attachment A: Memo from CALAFCO re: Nominations Period Now Open for 
2024/2025 CALAFCO Board of Directors (dated May 21, 2024)  

 

 





1451 River Park Drive, Ste. 185, Sacramento, CA 95815 

(916) 442-6536

www.calafco.org 

Date: May 21, 2024 

To: Local Agency Formation Commission Members and 
Alternate Members 

From: Kenneth Leary, Committee Chair 
CALAFCO Board Election Committee 
CALAFCO Board of Directors 

RE: Nomination Period Now Open for 2024/2025 CALAFCO Board of Directors 

The Nomination Period is now open for the fall elections of the CALAFCO Board of Directors for 
the following seats: 

CENTRAL REGION COASTAL REGION NORTHERN REGION SOUTHERN REGION 

County Member 
District Member 

County Member 
District Member 

City Member 
Public Member 

City Member 
Public Member 

Please inform your Commission that the CALAFCO Election Committee will be accepting 
nominations for the above-cited seats until:   

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2024 

Should your Commission nominate a candidate, please return the completed Nomination 
Form and Candidate’s Résumé Form by the deadline. Completed nomination forms and all 
materials must be RECEIVED by CALAFCO by the deadline. 

Electronic filing of nomination forms is highly encouraged to facilitate the recruitment process. Please 
email to info@calafco.org. However, hard copy forms and materials may also be mailed to: 

Election Committee c/o Executive Director 
California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions 
1451 River Park Drive, Suite 185 
Sacramento, CA 95815 

2 24 
CALAFCO 

ELECTIONS 

Serving on the CALAFCO Board is a unique 
opportunity to work with other commissioners 
throughout the state on legislative, fiscal, and 
operational issues that affect us all. The Board 
meets four to five times each year, generally 
virtually. However, strategic plan retreats and 
other meetings may be scheduled in-person and 
will alternate around the state. A job 
description is attached that more fully discusses 
director responsibilities and time commitment. 

Board terms span a two-year period, with no 
term limits, and any LAFCO commissioner or 
alternate commissioner is eligible to run for a 
Board seat.  

Elections will be  conducted during Regional 
Caucuses at the CALAFCO Annual Conference 
prior to the Annual Membership Meeting on 
Thursday, October 17, 2024 at the Tenaya 
Lodge in Fish Camp, California.  

ITEM 9
Attachment A

mailto:info@calafco.org


Complete nominations received by the September 16th deadline will be included in the Election 
Committee’s Report that will be distributed to LAFCO members. Candidate names will be listed in the 
report, and on the ballot, in the order nominations are received. The Election Committee Report will be 
distributed no later than October 3, 2024, with ballots made available to Voting Delegates at the Annual 
Conference.  

Nominations received after the deadline will be returned; however, nominations may be made from the 
floor during the Regional Caucuses or during at-large elections, if required, at the Annual Membership 
Meeting.  

For those member LAFCOs who cannot send a representative to the Annual Meeting, an electronic 
ballot will be made available if requested in advance. Ballot requests must also be received no later than 
Monday, September 16, 2024, with completed absentee ballots due by no later than Thursday, October 
10, 2024.  

If you have any questions about the election process, please contact CALAFCO Executive Director René 
LaRoche at rlaroche@calafco.org or by calling 916-442-6536. 

Members of the 2024/2025 CALAFCO Election Committee are: 

Kenneth Leary, Committee Chair Napa LAFCO (Coastal Region) 

Bill Connelly Butte LAFCO (Northern Region) 

Kimberly Cox San Bernardino LAFCO (Southern Region) 

Anita Paque Calaveras LAFCO (Central Region) 

To assist you in this consideration, you will find attached for your reference a copy of the CALAFCO 
Board Member Job Description, the CALAFCO Board of Directors Nomination and Election 
Procedures and Forms, and the current listing of Board Members and corresponding terms of 
office. 

I sincerely hope that you will consider joining us! 

Attachments.

NOMINATION/ELECTION PROCESS DEADLINES AND TIMELINES 

• May 21 – Nomination Announcement and packet sent to LAFCO

membership and posted on the CALAFCO website.

• September 16 – Completed Nomination packet due

• September 16 –Request for an absentee/electronic ballot due

• September 16 – Voting delegate name due to CALAFCO

• October 3 – Distribution of the Election Committee Report (includes all

completed/submitted nomination papers)

• October 3 – Distribution of requested absentee/electronic ballots.

• October 10 – Absentee ballots due to CALAFCO

• October 17 - Elections

Local Agency Formation Commission    Page 2 

CALAFCO Board of Directors Nominations May 21, 2024 



 

 
 
 

CALAFCO Board Member Job Description, Approved: 4/12/2024 
Last Revised: 4/12/2024 

Page 1 of 2 

 
 

Board Member Job Description 

California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO) 
Member of the Board of Directors 

 
 
Mission 

As a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization, CALAFCO supports LAFCOs by promoting efficient and 
sustainable government services based on local community values through legislative advocacy 
and education. 
For more information, please see CALAFCO’s website at www.calafco.org. 

Values 

The underlying values that define our organization are: dependability, efficiency, honesty, and 
transparency. 

Duties 

Board members have the following legal duties: 

1. Duty of Care: Ensuring prudent use of all assets including financial, facility, people, and 
good will. 

2. Duty of Loyalty: Ensuring that the association’s activities and transactions are, first and 
foremost, advancing its mission; Recognizing and disclosing conflicts of interest; Making 
decisions that are in the best interest of the association and not in the best interest of an 
individual board member, or any other individual or entity. 

3. Duty of Obedience: Ensuring that the association obeys applicable laws and regulations; 
follows its own bylaws and policies; and that it adheres to its stated corporate 
purposes/mission. 

Position 

The Board is a governing body and is expected to support the work of CALAFCO by providing 
mission-based leadership and strategic governance. While day-to-day operations are led by 
CALAFCO’s Executive Director (ED), the Board-ED relationship is a partnership and the 
appropriate involvement of the Board is both critical and expected. Board Members are tasked 
with the Leadership, Governance, and Oversight of the association. Responsibilities include, but 
are not limited to: 

 Representing CALAFCO to stakeholders; acting as an ambassador for the organization 
to regional members and California legislators. 



 
 

Board Member Job Description 

 
CALAFCO Board Member Job Description, Approved: 4/12/2024 

Last Revised: 2/19/2024 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 Approving policies that provide the appropriate authority and guidance for/to the ED 
in the administration of the organization. 

 Serving as a trusted advisor to the ED.  
 Participating in strategic planning retreats. 
 Reviewing agenda and supporting materials, and communicating question to the 

Executive Director, prior to board and committee meetings. 
 Weighing the organization’s outcomes against strategic plan initiatives. 
 Approving CALAFCO’s annual budget, financial reports, and business decisions; being 

informed of, and meeting all, legal and fiduciary responsibilities. 
 Assisting the ED and board chair in identifying and recruiting other Board Members to 

ensure CALAFCO’s commitment to a diverse board and staff that recognizes the 
differing perspectives among LAFCOs. 

 Partnering with the ED and other board members to ensure that board resolutions are 
carried out. 

 Serving on committees or task forces and taking on special assignments, as needed. 

Board Terms/Expected Participation 

CALAFCO’s Board Members are elected during regional caucuses held at the association’s 
annual meeting, and serve two-year terms.  

Regular board meetings are held quarterly, special meetings are called as needed, strategic 
planning retreats are held every two years, committee meetings are called at different times 
during the year, and legislative canvasing in Sacramento may be needed. Two absences, within 
a calendar year, from any regularly scheduled board meetings constitutes a resignation of the 
Board member. 

Qualifications 

Board Members must be seated LAFCO Commissioners at their local level.  

This is an extraordinary opportunity for an individual who is passionate about the importance of 
the role that LAFCOs play in the sustainable growth of a region, and who has a track record of 
leadership. His/her accomplishments will allow him/her to interface effectively with the state 
legislature, as well as attract other well-qualified, high-performing Board Members. 

Remuneration 

Service on CALAFCO’s Board of Directors is without remuneration. Administrative support, 
travel, and accommodation costs are typically provided by a director’s home LAFCO. 



Board of Directors Nomination and Election 
Procedures and Forms 

 
The procedures for nominations and election of the CALAFCO Board of Directors [Board] are designed to 
assure full, fair and open consideration of all candidates, provide confidential balloting for contested 
positions and avoid excessive demands on the time of those participating in the CALAFCO Annual 
Conference. 
 

The Board nomination and election procedures shall be: 
 
1. APPOINTMENT OF AN ELECTION COMMITTEE: 

 
a. Following the Annual Membership Meeting the Board shall appoint an Election Committee of 

four members of the Board. The Election Committee shall consist of one member from each 
region whose term is not ending. 

 
b. The Board Chair shall appoint one of the members of the Election Committee to serve as 

Committee Chair. The CALAFCO Executive Director shall either serve as staff to the Election 
Committee or appoint a CALAFCO regional officer to serve as staff in cooperation with the 
Executive Director. 
 

c. Each regional officer shall serve as staff liaison to the Election Committee specifically to assist 
in conducting the election as directed by the Executive Director and Committee.  
 

d. Goals of the Committee are to encourage and solicit candidates by region who represent 
member LAFCOs across the spectrum of geography, size, and urban-suburban-rural population, 
and to provide oversight of the elections process. 

 
2. ANNOUNCEMENT TO ALL MEMBER LAFCOs: 

 
a. No later than four months prior to the Annual Membership Meeting, the Election Committee 

Chair shall send an announcement to each LAFCO for distribution to each commissioner and 
alternate. The announcement shall include the following: 

 
i. A statement clearly indicating which offices are subject to the election. 

 
ii. A regional map including LAFCOs listed by region. 

 
iii. The specific date by which all nominations must be received by the Election Committee. 

The deadline shall be no later than 30 days prior to the opening of the Annual Conference. 
Nominations received after the closing date shall be returned to the proposing LAFCO 
marked “Received too late for Election Committee action.” 

 
iv. The names of the Election Committee members and the name of their LAFCO, regional 

representation, email address and phone number. The name, email address and phone 
number of the Executive Director shall also be included. 

 
v. The email address and physical address to send the 

nominations forms. 
 

vi. A form for a Commission to use to nominate a candidate 
and a candidate resume form of no more than one page 
each to be completed for each nominee.  
 

vii. The specific date by which all voting delegate names are 
due. 

 
viii. The specific date by which absentee ballots must be requested, the date CALAFCO will 

 

Key Timeframes for 

Nominations Process 

Days*  

120 Nomination announcement 

30 Nomination deadline 

14 Committee report released 

*Days prior to annual membership meeting

  

 

These policies and procedures were adopted by the CALAFCO Board of Directors on 12 January 2007 and amended on 9 November 2007, 8 February 2008, 13 
February 2009, 12 February 2010, 18 February 2011, 29 April 2011, 11 July 2014, 27 October 2017, 11 May 2018, 24 July 2020, 30 April 2021,  
30 July, 2021, and 21 January, 2022. They supersede all previous versions of the policies. 

 



distribute the absentee ballots, and the date by which they must be received by the 
Executive Director.  

  
b. A copy of these procedures shall be posted on the web site. 

 
3. THE ELECTION COMMITTEE: 

 
a. The Election Committee and the Executive Director have the responsibility to monitor 

nominations and help assure that there are adequate nominations from each region for each 
seat up for election. No later than two weeks prior to the Annual Conference, the Election 
Committee Chair shall distribute to the members the Committee Report organized by regions, 
including copies of all nominations and resumes, which are received prior to the end of the 
nomination period. 

 
b. At the close of the nomination period, the Election Committee shall prepare regional ballots. 

Each region will receive a ballot specific to that region. Each region shall conduct a caucus at 
the Annual Conference for the purpose of electing their designated representatives. Caucus 
elections must be held prior to the annual membership meeting at the Conference. The 
assigned regional officers along with a member of the Election Committee shall tally ballots at 
each caucus and provide the Election Committee the names of the elected Board members and 
any open seats. In the event of a tie, the regional officer and Election Committee member shall 
immediately conduct a run-off ballot of the tied candidates.   

 
c. Make available sufficient copies of the Committee Report for each Voting Delegate by the 

beginning of the Annual Conference. Only the designated Voting Delegate, or the designated 
Alternate Voting Delegate shall be allowed to pick up the ballot packet at the Annual 
Conference.  
 

d. Make available blank copies of the nomination forms and resume forms to accommodate 
nominations from the floor at either the caucuses or the annual meeting (if an at-large election 
is required). 
 

e. Advise the Executive Director to provide “CANDIDATE” ribbons to all candidates attending the 
Annual Conference. 
 

f. Advise the Executive Director to provide “VOTING DELEGATE” ribbons to all voting delegates 
attending the Annual Conference.  
 

g. Post the candidate statements/resumes organized by region on a bulletin board or other easily 
accessible location near the registration desk. 

 
h. Regional elections shall be conducted as described in Section 4 below. The representative from 

the Election Committee shall serve as the Presiding Officer for the purpose of the caucus 
election and shall be assisted by a regional officer from a region other than their own, as 
assigned by the Executive Director  
 

i. Following the regional elections, in the event that there are open seats for any offices subject 
to the election, the Election Committee Chair shall notify the Chair of the Board of Directors 
that an at-large election will be required at the annual membership meeting and to provide a 
list of the number and category of seats requiring an at-large election. 

 
4. ELECTRONIC BALLOT FOR LAFCO IN GOOD STANDING NOT ATTENDING ANNUAL MEETING 

Limited to the elections of the Board of Directors 
  

a. Any LAFCO in good standing shall have the option to request an electronic ballot if there will be 
no representative attending the annual meeting. 

 
b. LAFCOs requesting an electronic ballot shall do so in writing to the Executive Director no later 

than 30 days prior to the annual meeting. 
 

c. The Executive Director shall distribute the electronic ballot no later than two weeks prior to the 
These policies and procedures were adopted by the CALAFCO Board of Directors on 12 January 2007 and amended on 9 November 2007, 8 February 2008, 13 
February 2009, 12 February 2010, 18 February 2011, 29 April 2011, 11 July 2014, 27 October 2017, 11 May 2018, 24 July 2020, 30 April 2021,  
30 July, 2021, and 21 January, 2022. They supersede all previous versions of the policies. 

 



annual meeting. 
 

d. LAFCO must return the ballot electronically to the Executive Director no later than three 
working days prior to the annual meeting. 

 
e. LAFCOs voting by electronic ballot may discard their electronic ballot if a representative is able 

to attend the annual meeting. 
 

f. LAFCOs voting under this provision may only vote for the candidates nominated by the Election 
Committee as noted on the ballot and may not vote in any run-off elections.  

 
5. AT THE TIME FOR ELECTIONS DURING THE REGIONAL CAUCUSES OR ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP 

MEETING: 
 

a. The Presiding Officer shall: 
 

i. Review the election procedure with the membership of their region. 
 

ii. Present the Election Committee Report (previously distributed). 
 

iii. Call for nominations from the floor by category for those seats subject to this election:  
 

1. For city member. 
 

2. For county member. 
 

3. For public member. 
 

4. For special district member. 
 

b. To make a nomination from the floor, a LAFCO, which is in good standing, shall identify itself 
and then name the category of vacancy and individual being nominated. The nominator may 
make a presentation not to exceed two minutes in support of the nomination. 

 
c. When there are no further nominations for a category, the Presiding Officer shall close the 

nominations for that category. 
 

d. The Presiding Officer shall conduct a “Candidates Forum”. Each candidate shall be given time to 
make a brief statement for their candidacy. If a candidate is absent from the regional caucus, 
they may ask someone in their region to make a brief statement on their behalf. 
 

e. The Presiding Officer shall then conduct the election: 
 

i. For categories where there are the same number of candidates as vacancies, the Presiding 
Officer shall: 

 
1. Name the nominees and offices for which they are nominated. 

 
2. Call for a voice vote on all nominees and thereafter declare those unopposed 

candidates duly elected. 
 

ii. For categories where there are more candidates than vacancies, the Presiding Officer 
shall: 

 
1. Poll the LAFCOs in good standing by written ballot. 

 
2. Each LAFCO in good standing may cast its vote for as many nominees as there are 

vacancies to be filled. The vote shall be recorded on a tally sheet.  

These policies and procedures were adopted by the CALAFCO Board of Directors on 12 January 2007 and amended on 9 November 2007, 8 February 2008, 13 
February 2009, 12 February 2010, 18 February 2011, 29 April 2011, 11 July 2014, 27 October 2017, 11 May 2018, 24 July 2020, 30 April 2021,  
30 July, 2021, and 21 January, 2022. They supersede all previous versions of the policies. 

 



3. Any ballots submitted electronically for candidates included in the Election 
Committee Report shall be added to the tally. 

 
4. With assistance from the regional officer, tally the votes cast and announce the 

results. 
 

iii. Election to the Board shall occur as follows: 
 

1. A majority of the total number of LAFCOs in a given region are required for a 
quorum. Returned absentee ballots shall count towards the total required for a 
quorum. 

 
2. The nominee receiving the majority of votes cast is elected. 
 
3. In the case of no majority, the two nominees receiving the two highest number of 

votes cast shall face each other in a run-off election. Electronic ballots are not 
included in the tally for any run-off election(s). 

 
4. In case of tie votes: 

 
a. A second run-off election shall be held with the same two nominees. 
 
b. If there remains a tie after the second run-off, the winner shall be determined 

by a draw of lots. 
 

6. ADDITIONAL PROCEDURES 
 

a. For categories where there are more candidates than vacancies, names shall be listed on the 
ballot in the order the nomination was received and deemed complete. 

 
b. The Election Committee Chair shall announce and introduce all Board Members elected during 

the Regional Caucuses at the annual business meeting. 
 
c. In the event that Board seats remain unfilled after a Regional Caucus, an election will be held 

immediately at the annual business meeting to fill the position at-large. Nominations will be 
taken from the floor and the election process will follow the procedures described in Section 4 
above. Any commissioner or alternate from a member LAFCO may be nominated for at-large 
seats.  

 
d. Seats elected at-large become subject to regional election at the expiration of the term. Only 

representatives from the region may be nominated for the seat.  
 
e. As required by the Bylaws, the members of the Board shall meet as soon as possible after 

election of new Board members for the purpose of electing officers, determining meeting 
places and times for the coming year, and conducting any other necessary business. 

 
7. LOSS OF ELECTION IN HOME LAFCO 

 
Board Members and candidates who lose elections in their home office shall notify the Executive 
Director within 15 days of the certification of the election. 

 
8. FILLING BOARD VACANCIES 

 
Vacancies on the Board of Directors may be filled by appointment by the Board for the balance of 
the unexpired term. Appointees must be from the same category as the vacancy, and should be 
from the same region.  

  

These policies and procedures were adopted by the CALAFCO Board of Directors on 12 January 2007 and amended on 9 November 2007, 8 February 2008, 13 
February 2009, 12 February 2010, 18 February 2011, 29 April 2011, 11 July 2014, 27 October 2017, 11 May 2018, 24 July 2020, 30 April 2021,  
30 July, 2021, and 21 January, 2022. They supersede all previous versions of the policies. 

 



 

CALAFCO’s Four Regions 



The counties in each of the four regions consist of the following:  

 

Northern Region Coastal Region 
Butte Alameda 
Colusa Contra Costa 
Del Norte Marin 
Glenn Monterey 
Humboldt Napa 
Lake San Benito 
Lassen San Francisco 
Mendocino San Luis Obispo 
Modoc San Mateo 
Nevada Santa Barbara 
Plumas Santa Clara 
Shasta Santa Cruz 
Sierra Solano 
Siskiyou Sonoma 
Sutter Ventura 
Tehama  
Trinity CONTACT: Dawn Longoria  
Yuba Napa LAFCO 
 dawn.longoria@napa.lafco.ca.gov  
CONTACT: Steve Lucas 
Butte LAFCO 
slucas@buttecounty.net Central Region 
 Alpine  
 Amador  
 Calaveras  
Southern Region El Dorado 
Orange Fresno 
Los Angeles Inyo 
Imperial Kings 
Riverside Madera 
San Bernardino Mariposa 
San Diego Merced 
 Mono 
CONTACT: Gary Thompson Placer 
Riverside LAFCO Sacramento 
gthompson@LAFCO.org   San Joaquin 
 Stanislaus 
 Tulare 
 Tuolumne 
 Yolo   
 
 CONTACT: José Henriquez 
 Sacramento LAFCO 
 henriquezj@saccounty.net



CURRENT BOARD MEMBERS AND TERMS 
  

NAME REGION TYPE & TERM 

Bill Connelly 
Butte 
Northern 

County 
(2025) 

Kimberly Cox 
San Bernardino 
Southern 

District 
(2025) 

Rodrigo Espinosa 
Merced 
Central 

County 
(2024) 

Yxstian Gutierrez 
Riverside 
Southern 

County 
(2025) 

Blake Inscore, Secretary 
Del Norte 
North 

City 
(2024) 

Gay Jones, Treasurer 
Sacramento 
Central 

District 
(2024) 

Kenneth Leary 
Napa 
Coastal 

Public 
(2025) 

Gordon Mangel 
Nevada 
Northern 

District 
(2025) 

Michael McGill  
Contra Costa  
Coastal 

District 
(2024) 

Derek McGregor 
Orange 
Southern 

Public 
(2024) 

Margie Mohler, Chair Napa 
Coastal 

City 
(2025) 

Anita Paque 
Calaveras 
Central 

Public 
(2025) 

Wendy Root Askew 
Monterey 
Coastal 

County 
(2024) 

Josh Susman 
Nevada 
Northern 

Public 
(2024) 

Tamara Wallace  
El Dorado 

Central 

City 
(2025) 

Acquanetta Warren, Vice-Chair 
San Bernardino 
Southern  

City 
(2024) 



 

Board of Directors 

2024/2025 Nomination Form 
(Must accompany the Candidate Résumé Form) 

 
Nomination to the CALAFCO Board of Directors 

 
 
In accordance with the Nominations and Election Procedures of CALAFCO,  

  LAFCO of the   Region  

Nominates   

for the (check one)   City   County  Special District   Public 

Position on the CALAFCO Board of Directors to be filled by election at the next Annual 

Membership Meeting of the Association. 

 
 
 

   
LAFCO Chair 

 
 

   
Date 

NOTICE OF DEADLINE 

 

Nomination Packets must be received by September 16, 

2024 to be considered by the Election Committee.  

 

Send completed nominations to 

info@calafco.org 

Or, mail to: 

CALAFCO Election Committee 

CALAFCO 

1451 River Park Drive, Ste. 185 

Sacramento, CA 95815 

 

 

Date Received  

  

mailto:info@calafco.org


 
 

Board of Directors 
2024/2025 Candidate Résumé Form 

(Complete both pages) 
 

Nominated By:    LAFCO Date:   

Region (please check one):  ❑ Northern  ❑ Coastal  ❑ Central  ❑ Southern 
 
Category (please check one):  ❑ City  ❑ County  ❑ Special District  ❑ Public 

Candidate Name   

 Address   

 Phone Office   Mobile   

 e-mail    
 
Personal and Professional Background: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LAFCO Experience: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CALAFCO or State-level Experience: 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Received  

  



Availability: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Other Related Activities and Comments: 
 
 

 
 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NOTICE OF DEADLINE 

 

Complete Nomination Packets must be received by 

September 16, 2024 to be considered by the Election 

Committee.  

 

Send completed nominations to 

info@calafco.org 

Or, mail to: 

CALAFCO Election Committee 

CALAFCO 

1451 River Park Drive, Ste. 185 

Sacramento, CA 95815 

 

mailto:info@calafco.org


 

Board of Directors 

2024/2025 Nomination Form 
(Must accompany the Candidate Résumé Form) 

 
Nomination to the CALAFCO Board of Directors 

 
 
In accordance with the Nominations and Election Procedures of CALAFCO,  

  LAFCO of the   Region  

Nominates   

for the (check one)   City   County  Special District   Public 

Position on the CALAFCO Board of Directors to be filled by election at the next Annual 

Membership Meeting of the Association. 

 
 
 

   
LAFCO Chair 

 
 

   
Date 

NOTICE OF DEADLINE 
 

Nomination Packets must be received by September 16, 
2024 to be considered by the Election Committee.  
 
Send completed nominations to 
info@calafco.org 
Or, mail to: 

CALAFCO Election Committee 
CALAFCO 
1451 River Park Drive, Ste. 185 
Sacramento, CA 95815 

 
 

Date Received  

  

mailto:info@calafco.org


 
 

Board of Directors 
2024/2025 Candidate Résumé Form 

(Complete both pages) 
 

Nominated By:    LAFCO Date:   

Region (please check one):   Northern   Coastal   Central   Southern 
 
Category (please check one):   City   County   Special District   Public 

Candidate Name   

 Address   

 Phone Office   Mobile   

 e-mail    
 
Personal and Professional Background: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LAFCO Experience: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CALAFCO or State-level Experience: 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Received  

  



Availability: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Other Related Activities and Comments: 
 
 
 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NOTICE OF DEADLINE 
 

Complete Nomination Packets must be received by 
September 16, 2024 to be considered by the Election 
Committee.  
 
Send completed nominations to 
info@calafco.org 
Or, mail to: 

CALAFCO Election Committee 
CALAFCO 
1451 River Park Drive, Ste. 185 
Sacramento, CA 95815 

 

mailto:info@calafco.org




 
1451 River Park Drive, Ste 185 

Sacramento, CA 95815 
(916) 442-6536 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLEASE RETURN COMPLETED FORM BY SEPTEMBER 16, 2024 TO: 
René LaRoche via email to: rlaroche@calafco.org 

 
Late submissions will NOT be accepted. 

NOMINATION OF 2024 CALAFCO VOTING DELEGATE 
 
The Local Agency Formation Commission of the below named county, 
hereby nominates and names the following Commissioners as its duly 
authorized voting delegate and alternate for purposes of the 2024 CALAFCO 
Board of Directors election to be held on Thursday, October 17, 2024, 
during the CALAFCO Regional Caucus and Annual Meeting in Fish Camp, 
California.  
 

County Name: 
      

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Delegate: 
      

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Alternate: 
      

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Appointment Authorized by: 
      

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Name of individual comple�ng form on behalf of the LAFCo: 
      

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Will your delegate or alternate be atending the CALAFCO Annual Conference? 

Yes:               No: 
 

mailto:rlaroche@calafco.org




������������	
�����������������������������������
�� �� ��� !"���#��������������������������"���# !
��$��%�����&��������������������������
��$� %�����&�!'�����(������)�*����������������������������'���� (����� )�*���!"��+�����,���������������������������"��+���� ,��!-#.��(������������������������������-#.� (�����!/��*�&�%��$����������������������������/��*�& %��$���!0���&�)�����������������������������0���& )����!1�$����$��2�&����������������������������1�$����$� 2�&���!%����$���-#.��
�������������������������������%����$�� -#.� 
������!%���*��#���3�������������������������%���*��#��� !(���&����4�5�����������������������������(���&�� �4 5����!678��9	�'����,������������ ��������!:�;	�67��8<	�=�>7�	7<?�@	A�<	��	7B�C>?�DEDF�GHI7J��IK�L;���I�:>9	���	�M>�	N
H	��IK	��I��		�?I����	7	N0��+��������������3OO����4������O�����������������������!�

PQDRQDFB�SETSU�6C V><�W�6����IW�XI8><�6Y	�8?�ZI7[>��I��VI[[����I���\�@	A�<	��	7

���K�TQQ8><>W8I]I7YQ8I��	��]K�K̂K>Y	_�	A�<	��	7̀:>9	a��	aM>�	a SQDS

ITEM # 11.1



�����������������	��	
����������������	���������		����������	
�������	����	�����������	��	
����	��	������	���������������	����������������������	����	�� �����������������������	����!�������������	����������
����������������	
����
������������"����������� ��	���#
�����������	���������		������$��	����	
����	������	
�	������	�������������		����	����������� ��
���������	
���� ��	��������	�������������������������������	
��������		����������������������	�����������	
����������������	�����	�� �������	�	
���� ��	�������	�����	����!�����
�������	
�	�	
����	����	������	�������������������!�������� ���!�	�� �		��������������������������������	����!��
����%���������!��������&��������������������'�������(	������� �������	
�����	)�������������	�����	�� ������	������*)�!��	���	������������������	������������	�����	����
��������������	����%���������+,-.�/0�/01�23//14566-,7,8-090:;6-0</=</9131>1,;=?<=@47=//=:AB��)������������������������C�������������������DE�F��������)������
	


GHDIHDJ!�KELKM��N �������������������������������	���������������"�������		��


		��LHH�����������H���	��	��
�O����P������		��Q)���R	
�R��	�R DHDK



�����������	�
����������������������������������������������

�
���������������������������������������������

��������������������������������������  !������������"����#���������������������$�#��������
��������������������������

������%��"�����#��������

�����������&�������
�
'����������(����)������$������"�(�������������%��)���������������������������������������������   *���������"���������������(����)�����������)��������������������������������"�����(�����������������+�$��������"��������,�(�-���&�������
�
'������������������.��������������$���"�����
�������������������������

������������������"��#��������
�
'���������������������������"��������(������������������������������
��������������+�$������/����������������0123�45�456�784469:;;21<1=25>5?@;25A4BA4>686C61@BDABE9<B44B?FG��
��

H�������������/��$"��������$��������������������������%��+�����(��I����������������"�������������������������������J������
������KL$M�����������K�������$����
�������������$������������������'������$�����"�������������"�����"�����)�����������"�������"�������������������������������������
���������I��������������$���'"���������"����"��������������������J�������������������.���������NM��$��������������������������������$�����������$���"�����������$�"������������$����������O$����&����M��������������������������������"���"����
������������������

��������������"���������$����������+��������$���$�����������"��P����������$���������"�$�������$���������'"���������Q�RS?94�T<12B�7UVWWG:�X4B681ASB�T?144�5=Y161�Z[R\]>�+������������������O$������������������������������������"���K+$�����$����������K�L$��%����

���Q�.�����$�����O$M�����������'����������
������$'O���
���������
�������������������"�
�����������������$"��������+��������������������""#�������������������̂�XB25A_�T<12B�7ÙWG:�\?a941<�\?1S@�5=bScB?9S_B�Z[R\]��������"P��
��
������������������
�O������K��

�����"��������'������L���$��J����H��IK���������������������#�"����������L$��%����

���Q��"�����$������������������"�������������
�����O$M�����������.�����$��������M�$���(�""�������������"̂�d8S?_�T<12B�7UeWG:�f59B�\>�gBA?ShiBj�5=�X12?1kBA45�Z[R\]��L���P��'�������I������$����������lm�����������n��������������"�m�""��o����"������O$��%���������������$������
���������#�"���������L$��%����

���Q�)��$���$"���
��������������������"���
�������������������"����)������L��p̂q5i�21A�9BB�1<<�5=�48B�BA4?SB9�8B?B>�784469:;;21<1=25>5?@;@1<<B?a>686CS_DVVGJ���""��$��������������������I���$��������������$����"���������������������$���������������I���������"���������"������������������������$����$���"���$���������������������"�I��������J�����
�������"������""��������������'����������r������.��'������+�������������"���$�

st�ut�!��v Qvw��� ��"���������������"����������
��������

��������#�n���"�����

�����Qtt��"�������t�����������x���y����"�����z+���{���{����{ wt�v



����������	��
���������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������
�����������
�������������������
����
������������������������������� ��
����
�!���������������������
�
�������
�
�����������������������
��������������������������������"����������������������������
�
�������������������������
#
������������������������������������ $%$& '����������()*+�,-�,-.�/0,,.1233*)4)5*-6-783*-9,:9,6.0.;.)8:<9:=14:,,:7>?��@��������A���$� �������
������%����
������ ���������
���B����������������������
���������������C���������������
�D���������������$��
��EF������EG���������������"�����@��������������������������������������H�
������������
��������������
��������������������
���������
��������
��
������������������@
�����
#������������������
�������������
������
������������������
��
�������������
�����
���������������������������
��������������
����������
�������������������������#���'����������������������������
���
�������������#�������������������
���������������
����������������
�������������������������������#������������
������I���@�����J
�������������������������
#
������������
#
�������
��������������������������K��@������
�������$��
�����������������������������������������������
�������������������
#���������� 
������%
#�����������
����������������������L����
�������������������������K�������D��'�������������������@�����J
��������
������#�����������������
���
���������������
�������������������
����'�����������������������������������C����������������
�����������MM��
�����#
�����������N����
���������
�������������
����������
�����������������������
�
�����������������������D������K
������������������
����������������������B�"�����
����
�
���������������������
������$C$������
�������������
���������������������������������
�����������
��������
�����%$& '���
#
�����
������
������������O'��
��������
#
���
����������
������������������������������������%$& '��
��������������&�����������
����������
���
���
����������������������
����
�����
�"���C
���������������������
��������#������������������
��������!�������
�������
#�H��������������
#����
�����
�������������������������������������������������
�
������'�������������������
���������������������
�����������������������������������
������
#����
��������������$���������������������������
���������������
������������������
������
����������
���������#�������������
M����������������������������
��P���#���������������������#������������������������������������������
#�����
����
���
������������
�����
�����P�����������������������������
��������#��������
��������������L�������
���������L�����������
��������������
#������������������������
���
M��������
�
�

QRESREF��TUVTW�$K  ��
��$�������%�����$������&�����
��� ���
��
����N�A���������

�����VRR�����������R�����������X����Y����������Z"�#�[���[C���[ FRET



����������	
�������
���������������
��
������	�����������������������
������������������������������

����
������������
����
������������
��������� ���������

�����������������������������������	���������������������������!����������������������
��"���������

�������
��
����������� �����
���������������	
���#���������
��������������������	
�����������
������������
��
#��
���������
����������������$��������%����������	
�����������&����"����
��������' ��
�������������
��������
���������������������
�����������	
���(
�
����

�
&����������
�����
�������������������� ��������
������


������������'��
�������������)��������������
����������*����������������
�����������
�� ��+������������
�������������
��������� ��������������������������
������
��,���"�	�������-����%� ���������
��
������������$����
�������� ��������������������������������+�
�����������
����
��������
�����(
�%�����.��	
�������������
�����������������������
��
����������
�������������������������
�����������������������	������������
���������������������������������
��
������������������������������	�����������������������������������	������������������

����
�
�� ��������	����������������������������������������/0123�456�601�7483904:�;0464�<=>>18?�@48�A481�2=BCDC�:04649EF066:9GHH2=>=@24E48IHI=>>18?E:0:JDCKLMNO=23�64�64:�F066:9GHH2=>=@24E48IH24B61B6E:0:J:=I1KB1P9>16618QN��R�������������S��
���������
��.�������,����R���
+

TUVWUVX��YZ�Y[��R ������

�������������������������������

��
�)�S��
������

����
�UU�����������U�����������\����]���
������̂%� �_���_-���_ TUVY



��������	�
�������������������������������������	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������!�����������������������������������������������������������������������"��������������������������������"�������������#�����$��������������������%����������������������������������������&������������������������������������������	��������������������������"�����������������&������������������������������������������������&������������%��������&�����������������������������
	�	�
�����������'	�������	������� ���� ��������������������������������������������������	�����������������������$����&��������
���"�����������&����������&���������������������� (�)*+�������������������������������������������������
����������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(����� ����������������,�������������&�����������������������������������������&��������$���&������-����������������������������������&�� (�)*+��.���������������������&�
	�	�
�����/0//�1��!��������������������"�������&���������'�2���������������3�&������������	��������������������������4���������������������#�����������������������(����������������������������������������������"����������������������������#���������������'5���������� ������%���	����������������������������&��$���������������������6� ������%�����	�
������������������������������$��������"���������������������������� �����(��������,%����-����������������������������������5������������������2�������� ������%�������������������������������������5����7�
���������8����������������������$�������9��/0/:'�;<=>�?@�?@A�BC??ADEFF=<G<H=@I@JKF=@L?ML?IACANA<KMOLMPDGM??MJQR��
��

���������	�������

6S/)S/:��90T9*�	� 
�����	�������������	����������������
�����������7�U���������

����TSS�����������S���������V���W����������X �$�Y���Y����Y ZS/9



���������	�
������������������������
����������
�����������������
�����
���
����
����������������������� !""#$��%��&'(& #)"*�+,-./������0�
�1��2��������
�3����0���
���00�����
42���56����������78��
��9�
��
��9�������������:�0�
����������������������������	�
�������������;���0�
���9�����������9������������������������00�
�3��
�<���������0�
�:���	���=�����>��������
�?@A7��
��9�����������
B�
��=������99��C�0���3�7DE��������
��?;D@F�9������:�����������������00�
�3��
��������
��
�����������=;���
����>���
�������0�
����>��>�
������������4����6��C9�
������������;����
����3��
��09����
�����>��
������������	��:����9����������
���;���	�����
�
�������9������
��9�
��
�3;������
��>���������
�����
���00���������

����
�:�G��
��H��3��
��������
��
����
��
�����
�EFE?;���������0�
�����
3�G��
��H��3��
�����������	��;��������
������9����
<���0>��������������������������������
������
����������I���9�����
��;�����3;������
�
���
��0�
���0�
�9�������:�J�����9��I����
��
���=��������0�
���
��9��09���������������
3>3�2���5���9���������	�
���9�����������K����=:�J���������=���0�
��������������������������
�����
�=����;�����L�
������
�=����������9��0��3�������:�M�=����;�������E?�0�������=������
����
����������;��
�3��
��0���������������3�
�=;�=������0�N���3�>��
��7FODF�3�������;����
�����
�3�9�������������������;��
��
��������
������
���9����0�
�=���
����
�C�EF3�������0��
��
������>���=�����������:�J��������=;����9����
�����EFEE;�9�����������09����
������
��3����������=����������1���9�����
�;��
����������;��
����09���
���=����������3���
�������
������00�
��������������
�������������������87�0�
��;�9������
���=�����=�
��=������������
�������3�����������
����:��������=������
�EFEF;���	����
���������������
��=���������>�����9����>���0���������������������=�
��������
���:�J�������
�������
��=����9������>������0����
�EFE?����������������������G��
��H��3�K�9��:�J���=�����������
�������
�ECE�0���
������C9����������>������������
�:�G���
������	���������3����������0���
�����������=�������;�2���5�
�����������������������
�����
�������
�
����P����3�0�
���9������������������	��1�����0���:�������0�
���9�����;�2���5��������0��
���������
;�0�
����
�����������1�9�������;��
�=���
�����
�����2���5O�������P�����
�;�9������
������00�
����
�:Q
����
���3;��9�
�����������
;����������
��99����������:��
��������������������=����0������P��
��
�����������
��
�����3���9����;��
�����������1������������09�������������=��9�>������������=������3�����:�J�������=�
���������9��09���2���5�����
������0����������0�������:���
�
������
���
�����������������
����������=��3�������������	���0���
��=�������;���������1��R�����������������������9�������������������
��=���������
�����EFE8:���
����;������	���R��������������������������9���������������
����������9�����
�E?S�����
�����
�������3���
��
�:���������9�3������99���������
������;����������
����
������������;�������
���������
���P�������������P�������0��
���������
�����09����0�
�:�K����
�L�
�����������3�������������
;2���5����������00�
�����
����
��������������
������	����
����G����
0�
�����A78DA:?�������������P����=���������������������00�
�3:�Q
�����
��
�������
�����3������������
����������;�2���5��������
�������9������R����0���
��������	�����9����
�������B����������������������;��
�����
�������
��=����;��
�>���3��0�����������=���P����0�
�;��
��0��
�
����
�
����������:����9������������1���������������9�����
�E?S�������
;�=�����
�����99��C�0���3�T@�0�����
��
���
��
��������������9���

AUE@UEV;�?F�?8��	 ���������
����2��������
�3����0���
���00�����
��O�<�=�����

�9��UU�������:���U��
�
:9�9W9���X
�=�����Y����Z��Z���Z DUE?



���������	���
��
����������
���	
�
�������
�����	���������	����	���������
���
�
�������	�
��������
�����
���������������
���

���������
�������
���
����
������
�
���������
��������������	����������������������
�������	�����
�  !"���������������#������
������	�����������������	������
#���
���
������	�������
����� �����
�������
�����������������������������
������������������
���������������������	�������������$
	�������%&'�����
�����
������������������	��
��������
����������������#
��������������		
�����( )��������
���
������������*�#
���
�����
�&+,-.�� ������������
��������
�����
���
���	
����
#�
�	
�������
������	��������
�������
�	��
��
�	�����	��
�#�	
����#�����
��	�
�	�
���������������������
#���
�������������������
�����	��������������������
����#
���
����
������������������������������
�
�����������	��#
���
����
����
����������
�
���
���
��	��
��
��
�#�	
�
��	�
�	�
���!���
���
�	���
���/��������������������
��
	������#�����

���������	
����	
�%.%0��������
���
������
��������������
�"�����	���
��	�
�	�
�����
��
����������������
�"�����	����������������������������
�����#����
������
������
�����1�
�	��������
���	����%.����
��������
����
2����
����������
�����
�������
����
��������������

���
��
���������
���������
���	����������������

����	�������
����������
2���
�
��������#��������������������
���������������
��3�����	
���
�
��

����������#
���
��
���
"�����	����4�#��������4
��!��
��5�����(���0����%.%,������������������������
���)
������������6��
�����������#
�"7(!"�1�
��������������
��
����������������
������
�#
3�������
�
��������
��������
2���
���*�#
���
�����
�&+-8&�0��"��������������
��"7(!"�/�������"��
	��������
�	�����
���
9����
������#������
������������	������#���������	�����������������  !"�����
����
���
	������
����#������������
����������
�����
�����
�������
����
���
�#�	
������
�"
��7���	����������1�
�����������	
�������
��������������
������
�������������
�"�����	����	�����
�������
�����
������
�"�����	����������
���������������	
��������3:���������"7(!"���#����
�������	����	���$��	���
����
���	����
����������
	������������������
������
�����������
�����������	���
�����
�#�	
�
��#
����1�
����
�������
��
�������  !"����
���������������������������
�����
�"�����	�;��������������	����
��
������
����������
��
��3�
�������"
��7�������
��
������������
��
�������
�������	��
�����1�
�<���
�����������=����4������#
5 ����
��	�����
�	�����<���������������>?@ABCCDE�@F�GH�>CIJCDKBDL

&M%NM%,��0.50-��( ����������������	�����
�	������������������������3�4
���
��
�

�����5MM	����	�����M	���
������O���
P�
���
��
�Q �#
R��
R"��
R SM%0



��������������	�
��
�������������������������
�����
���	���
�������������
���������
���
����
�������������������������������
�����������
����������������
������������
����������
�� ����
���
�������
���������
���
�����������!�
���"������
��
���������
���
�#����������$��
������������������������������	��
�
������#������
���
���������
���������������������������������
������������������������
���
���������
���������������
���
����������
��������	�
��
��������������
���������
�������������������������
����
����
��������������������������	������������
�������
������������������
������������������
��
���%&'�(&)&*+,-�.&/0&+1�2-003)455'''63&'+&)&*+,-67+85)-7+09+&*:)5;<;=5<=5>>5*?&+@,*/)9+*0&90-&@+9A&:&+*B9)0*0&9*/:9B7,*B987C&+/?&/0)9B&))937)@0@C&BD90-*/9*9A&'9D&*+)9*875E���F�������GHGI�����������J�GHI�����
�����������
��
�KL������
�����������������������	�����
�
�����������
�����������MN�������
���
��
�������������������
�����
�������O�
������������������������	�������������
����������������������
�����������
�����P����������
������
��
���������������������������������
�������������������"�������������������������
���������
����������
���������
������������������
�����Q�������Q
��������������
��������R��������S�#��	�
��������������������
�����
���
����
���
��
�#��������������
������
���
������������T
������T���
����
������
������
���������������
���������� ���
����U���
��������
���������
������������������
���������!�
���"����
�����������
�
��������
������
�����	����T���
���������

������������������������������
���������V���
�����������	�������
���������������������������������
������������������������
����T�����
����������������
����������	� ������������
���������������
���
����������������
���
����
�����
�����������
���������
�
�������������
��������������
��������������	
���������
��������������������
����������
���
�
��
���������!�
���"�������
����� ��������!�
�����������������
����
�����
��������
�������������������W.7??@))@7/&+�XY0+&*,-�Z77B[7\W���������������
�������������
�����
����T�������
��	�
�
��#��������
������
����
��������������
�����������
�����������������
��������
�������
�������������������������!����
��
������
��������
�������������������������
�������T���
�	������������
����
����T����
������	�
��
���������]+*/:�̂:&/0@0DW����
���������
��������
�
����
�������������������������������	��#��	��������
���������������������������������!�
����
�������
����������
��������������������������������
����������
���������������
��������#�����������������
�������T���
���������
���������������
�
��
�����������!�
���"��������_3:*0&:�̀ &[�a\3&+@&/,&4� ����������
����
����
��	�
����������������������
�������������������
���������U���������
�����
������
���	���
�������
����������������
��
�����
��	���
������������������������
���������������������b�#�����V���
�����
���
������������
��
���������
�������������
��$���������������	��������
�������Q������c��������
���!�
���RQc�S�������������
����������������������������������
�#�������U����������
����
��������a/-*/,&:�%Y[B@,�̀ 7+d)-73�e0+*0&8@&)4�F������	������������f��
��������������
��������
���������������
�����$
"�������
��
�
����������������
�����������	�
������������
����������
�
��������
�����
����������
�������������������������
�������������������� ����������
�������������������
����������
��������"����������

JgGLgGK��NHWNI��b ��������������������������������
����������������U�h�	���

��

�

��Wgg�����������g���
��
���������i��	���

��jQ���k
��kF�
�k LgGN



��������	
�������	���������������	�����	�������	�����������	������ �������	�����	����������	��	���	��������!"���������	#�������!	��$��������"����������"	�����	������"	��������������	%���&	'()*+�	�����,����	�������-����������	��	��������	��	��.��� �����������&	/�	���	����"	����������	�.����	���	��������������&011����2�	34����	
�5��	6��78�	������	�����������!	�����������	���������	��	���	������"'()*+�	������	�������	�9������	������	�����	������������	��	���	������ ��������	���	���%��������&	*�����	�	������!	��������	�9	�$�	��	�����	$��%�!	�����	�����	��������"������	���	��9���������&:����	�����	%�!	9�������"	+*	'()*+	�������	��	��������������	�������	$���	�������,����.�	�����	��	�����	�����	��������	�99�������!	���	�99�������!&	;���	�.����	��������	����"	!���'()*+	���	��	���	����&)��	�	���%	��	+*	'()*+�	��������������	����"	�����	�2<����=�4>?@AB�47��7�?�A�4�5<?CDCE?DF?�GHIJG�KG4>><6��7CDCD=A51	L���A<??�2<����=�4>?@AB�47��7�?�A�4�5<?CDCE?DF?�GHIJG�KG4>><6��7CDCD=A51MN���	�4	0OA���	@��7	P4�Q��	0OA����7R	S	�4T��4>�	�	U�@	G��PVWXYZ[[\]	X̂	_ZY	VZY à	ba]	cbd̀ebaa\	f\d̀YaZY àg	hVig	fajkl����	���	��"	��������	�����������	9���	��������	��m�������	*���9�����	���	���%���	��	�����������	�������������!	,�����	���	non��	���!&	;���	����������������������	��	���	����"	����	,���	���	#�������"	$���������	�	��������!	�.����	$���	���!	���	�.�������	��,�����	�	��$	���!p	q���	����������!"	��$	��	!�������������	�#������	��	��������	9�����	��������������p/�	������,��	rsrt"	���	u��#���	*����!	'()*+v�	*���������	����������!	�����	��	����������	�������������	���	�������� �����	�9	���	q�������	w����	*�������!	��������	x�������yzqw*�x{|"	��%���	��	���	o��	���!	��	���	u��#���	*����!	���	���	not��	���!	��	*���9�����	����u��!&	/�	���	,���	$���	����	�	������	�����	���	����	��������!	���������	��	�������������"$���	u�����	}����!v�	�������	��	���	����	�������9��	�������������	,��%	��	rs~~&	w�$	x��	q�������	w����	������	���	m�$���	*��!p:���%�	u�����	}����!v�	�������������	�99����	,����	��������!	������	,!	���	���������	����	9����������	���	��������	�����	�������"	qw*�x	���	�������	�9	��������	�����	����	9��$���	��,�������	�	���!&	m���,�!	-	���	��	�����	�9	9��������	��������������	-	$����	,���	�����������������	9��������	���������!	������	�����	�������������"	q�������	w����	������!	���	9���	�������������	��.��	��	�����	��	9���	���������	���������	��������	��	���	�9	���	*�xv�	�$�	�������!

��r��rn"	~s�~t	(q *���9	(���	�9	'����	(����!	)��������	*����������	-	m�$�������

������������9��&�����������&���p�������$�����������������x���� ~s�r~



����������	���
���������	��������������	���	�������������������������������������������������������������������	��������������������� !�"��#��$�������%������
�����	���������������&���������	������	���������������������'	������'����������
��	�������(��������������)��������������*������������+���������������������&������
��,����	���������������������$��������������
����������#�����������������	���	������	�����������	���	������������&�����������������	���	��-����.
���������������/001!�.����������/020!����'����
�����/001 �������������&��������������&����������	��&�������
�,�3��3&���,������������	�����&�������������������������������!������

������������
����������������������������������	����
��	��
����������������&����	�������"�!�����	���	�����������&�������������������	����	��������������������	����������������	��������������������	�����������	����
���&���������%�������	��������4���"5�260�������	�������(���������*7���������	���������������!��	���������������������)�����������������������������������
�����������������������������
��	��������8��	�������������������������
�������	����������������!�	��	��������&����������������&��$��������������!��������������	���������������������������������������/009��-�/02:!��	�������������������������������������&���������;<=>?<�@ABB�CDE�FGH?IJ�KECLMJFI??NOPQQRRRST>BAUHV=A>TA?WUA=>=T<STHXQYZ[\\];@CDE[\̂ CLE_CKSǸUM��	��	���������������������������	��������������
��	����	����
��������	�������������������	��������������
�����������"5�260*�-��	���������������������
���
������!��	����������������������������
�������	��������������������������	���������������������������
��	����������90�����������	�����������������������������/02:321��'	�����	���������
�,�����
�������������������	��������&��������
���������������!�����������������������������������������������	���������������	��������������������
����!�����	����������!�&����������������������������	����	�����

����������
�����������	����	���������������	������������	������������������������5��
����a�-��������%����������������)���������������	���&����
����	���������������������������	��"��������	�����������������!�����	�������������������������	�
����������	��������������������������
����������������������������������(������/bc!000�������������������	����������������

�������������������������������5��/0//!���������������	�������������������������&��&����/6�������!���������621!000�d����	������	����������������	���������������������������������������������������&���������	��	���������!����������������
�������	��&����&��������3������������������������������������������	��2b��
��������������	�������������������	���������������&���������
��� !����������	��e0��
�����������������������������������������������&��������������
�f9�
���������������f20�
���������	��������������g����!��	��������������	������&�����������������&��������������������������5��������������/0//��	������������������������
��������
������f2e�
�������'����
�� ����������f:2
������������� !�����	�������������b�����������������������������������������!��	����	������������������/0������������������!����
�'����
��+�������������
�����������������
�26�
�����������60���/0//!����.������������������&��	�����	�
�	���������600�����������������������!������

�����������������������������������&�������������	�����&���������	���	����������	���&�����������	����������������&�����h���������������������������&�����%7)+��-�����������d���������������)��������������)�������7��������g	��/006�d������+��%���������7��������)������	��i%7)j �id���������	������%�7����������-�����������j���������	�������������	�����&��&����������������������
����&�����������!����	���
��
�
�i������������20k��������

�����j�'��	��������������	����	���%7)d��������	������
����������������+�������������������������������������	��������������������	����
����

bh/ch/9!�20a26��� ����������������������������
�������

�������3�(���������

	����ahh�����������h�������	�*����l���������m"���n�	�n4���n 22h/2



�����������	�	
�����������������������������	
�������������������������������������������	
���������	��������������	
�	����������������������	����������������	��
��	�����	�����������	������� ���!"�����������	
�	���	����	
�	���������������	��	�#�������
���	�� ��	������������$����	
���	 ���������	������	�%� ��������	�����������	���������������������������������	
�������� �����	���!�

&	������������#��	����	�������� ���	������������"������������	���
�����	�� ��	�����	����������������'���	����(����� �����	�����������������	�����������!�)
�������	�����������	�������������������	�����
���������	
��*������	���� ���������	
�� ���	�����	���������������
������	����������������	��������	
����	������#���	�������������!�*+�*+,"-.��/�����/������0�'�#���1���2��������������*����3/�����'/4�56789::;<�7=�>9??9@A�B?9CD8@AE�F5BE�GAC!*+�*+,"-����������������������	��������	���������������	��������������������'��������/������4��� �%����������������	�	������$����	���!�&���������	���%�*+�*+,"-%�������	����
�� �	
�4/H%�&��!%����	��	�����������������	������$����	������������������'/4�����/-&�����	�!�)
�������	���
�������������	�����%�������������	��	��������#�	����%��
������������%��������'/4���	������	����%���	���	���������������������������������%���������������	������������������'/4�!�H����������������������	��������%�	
�������� ��������*+�*+,"-�����������	
��������������
������������	�����������'/4�!

�I�JI�K%�L�0LM�+' "�����+�������*�����+������,����	����"�����������3�N� ���		��


		��0II�������!���I���	��	!�
�O����P�� ���		��Q/��R	
�RS�	�R L�I�L



���������	
������
������
���
��������
��
���
������
���
������
��
��������	����	��
����
�������
����
��
�������
 ���
��������
��������
�����
������
��
����������������
���
�������!
����������
�	���
�������!
���
�����
�������
��������������������
 ���
���
���
����	��
��
�����"����
��
����
��
�������	
�������������!�������
����������#��	!
���
��������
���$�
���
���
���#������
��������
%&'(
)*
)*+
,-))+./00'&1&2'*3*450'*6)76)3+-+8+&57967:.17))74;<

=����
����� �����
�����
>��
�������������
���
?@��!
=����
�����
���	�
�����!�������
A"�����
B������
��C������!
���
�������
�������
D��E����!
��
$���
������
�����
A���B���F�!
$��
��
��
�$
�����
��
������
�����
>�������
�������������
��������������!
�����!
���
������	$�
����	
��
������
��������!
���
���������
���
���
�$��
����	
������
���
$��
���
$��������G-&6(
H*IJ
K-&L4
M*-174J
2*4
N7L65
.I'-
&O7OL'&)7O
PQN&..&O*4
*6
N7-&12
*2
KPRPSKTQ7QN74.U
=����
����	
���$B����	
��
=����V�
�����
?W!
WXWY!
����	!
����
�������
�	����
������
��
��
Z��#����!������
�������
[
�������!
���
��
������
��������
 �
=����
����
��������
���������
���$
��
��
\)4&)75L'
]1&6
,-))+./00'&1&2'*3*450\)4&)75L'̂]1&6.<
$����
�����

_̀WàWY!
?Xb?@
�� �����
����
��
�����
�	���
���������
�����������
�
c$�����

�����b̀̀����������	̀����������d��	e�$�����f���g��gB��g ?@̀W?



�������������	
���
�	���������������
���
�����	���������������
	��
����
������������������������	��	�����
������������
�����
�
�����������	�����������������
�����������
	������	�����
	
	���������	�������������
�����������������	����������������
�����	����
�	�
�����������������
�	��������
����������	�
������������
��
�	����
	�	�����	��������������	��������������	���	��
	� �	������!�
�����������"���
��"������#!������$����%��	�����&����	�#�������	$��'����	�"�	���#(������	$���	��������&�������#!�	����$���������	����
	����
��������	����
	����	������������������
���
�������
�	�
���
	����
�������
������������
���)�����*�����"����� ��+����
��
�	��,	��
	�������	�
	��
�	������*����������
�	�����������	�������	
	������!�
���������������������)���
	���-��������
��
�	������������	��
�
������������������������
�
	������
���������
	��*�����������������	�������	�
�
�
�
��������	��������������-�������
��
�	�������������	����������������*��������
	�����������
����������
���������������������������	����������.����������������
	����������������)%��������������������������������
	�������
���/������
������
	���*�������������������
�����������	
�
�������
���
	��	������		�������
	������������������
���
�	�����������
��	�������
	������������	���������������
	���*�)0������	��	�������������������������	��	������	��������������
	����
	��������������
�
���
�	�������������
	������������	����
��	�1����	��������#�1�$����	�����
���
�	���	������
����������%����������
	�	�
�������������
������������������������
��
�	2���
�����������
�����������&
�������	��������	�
	������������*�����
������
�
	����������
�����
	�	�
����������	�����34����
���+
����������������
��������
������
	
	���	����������������	�����������������*����������������������������	����15�6768)6769�����������
���
�����-�������������������������������������
������������3�+���
�����
	������������-����	��
���
	� ���������-����������������
���������	�������������������������������������	������:;<6�8=<����
���
	�����������>�?@�!�A���-����	���������������������������������������
��������������	���
��������	���	��
	�����������	�������������B�����	����97@�0�1!���	�������
������������C�>D@���	����	�������B������	��!�0�1!��E���
�����
�	�����C��	��>@�
	��������	������������	����*���������4��	����������:;66�D8;���	������B�����	���8?@�������	����	��������B�������	��!�0�1!��EC�87@�
	������		���34��	����#�����
������4����
����
��������	����
	
������������B�	�������
	����	�����	������������4����	��������
	���������$C�<@����������������
	��#���������	������	���������	��3���	��+3���
��	��$C�9@��������
��F������
	���4��	���C�>@��������
����
�������
���C�6@�����������������
�	�������
����#�����	��	�������$C�G?@�����*������4��	���C��	��G?@�������������-�������	�������	���
	��������	�����:6>D�9>D���������	�������������!�	�
	��	�����	�
	����	�
���
�	����������	��	�������	���
	�����-����	���&
����	���������������	���4������������	����
	�����15�6768)6;�����������������4
������:>7�;6<��������	��������
������������
����4��	����#�4����
	����	�
	��	��$�����:68�89D�������	����������
	���
��������������
	����������
�����������������������.���"����	
���
�	!�
������"���
��"����������������	������	���������������������
�����������	�
������	��	����������������
������	���	�
������������
�������������
����
����������������������������������	
���
�	��������
	��
�
����&�����B���������������
�������	���
�	��HIJ�KLMLNKO�PQRST�QU�VWSJXYQSZ�[RW\YRW\Z�R�]̂RSYJS_̀�[JJYW\a�ZXIJT̂_Jb�aJ\JSR__̀�[JJYW\a�W\�YIJ�[Q\YIZ�QUcR\̂RS̀b�LdSW_b�ĉ_̀b�R\T�OXYQeJSf�PQRST�PSWJU�Ẑ[[RSWgJZ�hJ̀�RaJ\TR�WYJ[Z�R\T�TWZX̂ZZWQ\�YQdWXZf�LTTWYWQ\R_[JJYW\a�W\UQS[RYWQ\�XR\�eJ�UQ̂\T�W\�YIJ�RaJ\TR�dRXhJYZ�iIWXI�RSJ�IQ̂ZJT�W\�YIJ�jJ[eJSZkO\_̀�ZJXYWQ\�QU�YIJKLMLNKO�iJeZWYJ�RY�lmnmolpqprstupmrvwxsyzvm{�|}~~�{�ttlmnmolpqprstupmrvwxsyzvm{�b�QS�iIWXI�[R̀�eJSJ]̂JZYJT�è�XQ\YRXYW\a�YIJ���JX̂YW�J�VWSJXYQS�RY�rnmrpl}y�lmnmolpqprs�|�m�n~p�rnmrpl}y�lmnmolpqprs�{���yl~�upmrv�xsyzvm��y��y{~�f�

;F6=F68��?7�?>��" !��
�����	����0��������	���1����
�	�!�
��
�	��)�(���������

������FF�����������F��	��	�����������	�������������������+���� ?8F6?



������������	
�������������������������
��������������������������� !�"��#$% !��&� %��'��(�%� %��'��(� '%�)*+��%� %��'��,-.��)*'!.�*/�0 1�) +2�%� �$ +!�34� +�1�!4)4�!4*4��$�+�*%��'�!.�������� !�"��$+*3���� ��5*!.3. )5�+��*/�!.�������� !4+��+ 3�%�!*�)��!��!+�'��'!�%� %��'����'�!�!4!�%�!*��'�4+��!.���)**!.$+*�+����*'�*/������� !�*',�-.��)*�!����'�/�3 '!�*/�!.*���%� %��'���*334++�%�*'�0 1�67!.(8.�3.�) +2�%�!.��� �!�% 1�/*+�� 3.�9*4���!*�$ ���5�����!. !�8�+��:'!+*%43�%��'�!. !�9*4��,; �� ���51�!.���%� %��'��3*)$��!���!.��/�+�!�$. ���*/�!.�������� !�"��$+*3���(� '%�!.��5����!.�'�)*"��*'�!*�!.��*!.�+�9*4��,�<�����4' 5���!*�$ ���*4!�*/�!.��*+���' !�'��.*4���51�!.�%� %��'�(� 4!*) !�3 ��1�%���4'%�+���! 5���.�%�=*�'!�+4���,�**2�'�� .� %(�>4'��?@!.(����!.��� �!�% 1�!*�$ ��� �/�' ��<4%��!�<���(� '%�>4'��6A!.����!.�/�' ��% 1�/*+� ������� !�"��)� �4+��!*�B4 ��/1�/*+��'3�4��*'�*'�!.��C*"�)5�+�@!.�D�'�+ �E��3!�*'�5 ��*!,- F$ 1�+�;+*!�3!�*'� '%�D*"�+')�'!�G33*4'! 5���!1�G3!H$� 2�'��*/������� !�"��)� �4+��(�*'��$ +!�34� +�$+*$*� ��!. !�. ��� +'�+�%� !!�'!�*'�*"�+�!.�$ �!�/�8�1� +�����!.��- F$ 1�+�;+*!�3!�*'� '%�D*"�+')�'!�G33*4'! 5���!1�G3!,�&��$�!�3 ++1�'��!.��8*+%�IG3!J��'��!��!�!��(��!�����)$*+! '!�!*�'*!��!. !�!.������ �"*!�+K%+�"�'��'�!� !�"�$+*$*� ��8.�3.(�4'%�+�G+!�3���::�*/�*4+��! !��L*'�!�!4!�*'(�/4'3!�*'��*4!��%��*/�8. !�8��!.�'2�*/ ��!.��'*+) �������� !�"��$+*3���,�	M����
��������N������O��P��Q����O����R�N�����
�N�N�N��NP���������S�R�T������N�O���������N�UO���
�����R�N�����OT���O�N��VWWW�XR��
�YTX�N��Y��N�R�Z���N�T������[��N����N��
�����	
�����������N�������U�������T����O�\Y]̂ ŴWM_\Y��O��̀:/�$ ���%�51�!.��"*!�+�(�!.���'�!� !�"��8*4�%�3. '���!.��! F !�*'�$+*3�������'�/�3 '!�1�51+�B4�+�'��"*!�+� $$+*" ��/*+� '1�'�8�! F�*+�/��,�-.��(�*/�3*4+��(�. ���45�! '!� ���)$��3 !�*'�/*+��GaLb�$+*3������ '%� ����*3 ���*"�+')�'!�(� '%����3�!�%� �H4$+�)��L*4+!�3 ��,�-.�4'%�+�1�'�����4��5�/*+��!.��3*4+!����!. !�!.���'�!� !�"�����)*+��!. '� �L*'�!�!4!�*' � )�'%)�'!�c8.�3.����$�+)����5���/*+��'�!� !�"��̀� '%(��'�!� %(�3*'�!�!4!��� �L*'�!�!4!�*' �+�"���*'�c8.�3.����'*!�$�+)����5��,̀�b+ �� +�4)�'!��8�+��) %��5�/*+��!.��L*4+!�*'�0 1�d!.,<*!.���%���. "��+�B4��!�%�!. !�!.��L*4+!�+�'%�+��!��%�3���*'�5�/*+��>4'��6A(�8.�3.����!.�%� %��'��/*+�!.��H�3+�! +1�*/�H! !��!*�3�+!�/1�L ��/*+'� e����'�+ �����3!�*'�5 ��*!,H4))�+�f�3���-.�������� !4+�g��H4))�+�+�3��������3.�%4��%�!*�5���'�*'�>4�1�h+%(�3*'!�'��'!�4$*'�!.��433���/4��$ �� ���*/�!.��<4%��!�<���,�-.��+�3����8����$+*"�%�������� !*+��8�!.� �5+��/�+��$�!�5�/*+��+�3*'"�'�'��*'�G4�4�!�@!.,�-.��+�) �'%�+�*/�G4�4�!�8����!.�'�5��%�%�3 !�%�!*3*'��%�+�'�� ���+�) �'�'��5�����!.+*4�.�!.��+���3*'%�.*4��,�G'1�5�����!. !�$ ���5*!.�.*4����8���.� %�!*�!.��D*"�+'*+�!*����'�*+�"�!*,�D�"�'�!.��"*�4)��*/�� �!K)�'4!��5����(�!.��D*"�+'*+�. �4'!���H�$!�)5�+�hi!.�!*� 3!�*'�5�����!. !�.��+�3��"�%�$+�*+�!*�H�$!�)5�+�?�!,LG�GaLb�H$*'�*+�%�<����LG�GaLb��$*'�*+�%�5�����3*'!�'4��!*�) 2��$*��!�"��$+*�+�����'�!.�������� !�"��$+*3���,j��kVll�cG���)5�1��*3 ��D*"�+')�'!�L*))�!!��̀��*3 �� ��'31�/*+) !�*'�3*))����*'m%��!+�3!�m�$+*$�+!1�! F(�8*4�%�3� +�/1�!. !�!.�� %�" �*+�)�$+*$�+!1�! F�+�"�'4��%�!�+)�' !�*''��%�5��4'%�+! 2�'�*'�1��'�!.*����'�! '3���8.�+�� �$+*$*� ���'3�4%���!.��/*+) !�*'�*/� %��!+�3!� '%�!.�� $$��3 '!�������2�'�� ��. +��*/�!.��?n� %�" �*+�)�$+*$�+!1�! F��,�-.���5���

@o6po67(�?im?h�G0 L ��/�G��'�*/��*3 ��G��'31�a*+) !�*'�L*))����*'��K�C�8���!!�+

.!!$�moo3 � /3*,*+�o3*'!�'!,$.$q$ ��r'�8���!!�+sH "�t!.�t& !�t ?@o6?



���������������	
	���������	��������������	����	���	������������������������������������������������������
	����	�������� !!���������������������������������������������"������������������#��������"������������������	��������$��� %���&'�()*+�,�������-����"����
��"��������	���"���	��	��.�	�����	�	"��	����	���������������/��������������	�������	��	���������������� 0  �������������������"	�	�������������������/�����������������	1������������	����2�����	�	"��	����
����������3����	���������	"	��������"��"�����������������	����	���	��	�
�2�����������"	��	���������������/�����������������	�	
���������4	�
��	������������5�����	"�������������������6�	��������	�����������������������#��������������������������	��	�����	
	��������������������������	������������/�������	����	������4	�
��	�������#������7�����	"�������������	�����6	��������	����8���������	���������������������	������	�
����������������	����������	�
���	�������������/�������������������	����3�����	�"�����������������������	�����������������������������	"�������	����������	����9�"���������������������	����������"����/��������
	����	�������������	"��	�����������	����	�����	������	������������5����"�	�������������"	��	�������	���':;<�=>�=>?�@A==?BCDD;:E:F;>G>HID;>J=KJ=G?A?L?:IKMJKNBEK==KHOP������"	����$������#���"�����Q���$������R���
�����"��������������������#	���������"	�����������.������#���������8	�����S�����"	�����������	�
������T�������6����������	�
������UBBVH:�&>F=N:HK��������Q��W��������"��������������������	
	�	1��������������������"����������/���������	�
�	���	������	�
���������	�������	��������	�"���������	"	��"	����/��������	�������	����"��"4�������	������	"�����A==?BCDDNNNG:BBVH:B>F=N:HKG;>XD�@A==?BCDDNNNG:BBVH:B>F=N:HKG;>XDP�YZJX:J�[�UBB>;Z:=KB�\>JBVE=ZJI�����	���������	�
�����	"������������	��������	"	�������	"�����	������������������	�����"�����	��������	"��	������"���	�
�������]̂ ����������������/���"�	���������
�������	����	������	�	�����������������������_����	����_���	��"����4	�
��	���"���	����"	�	����������"	����	���	"�����������	�������
���������
���������4�������������"���������
�������"����	��"�����9�"����̀��"���"����a������%bc�db��0dbd�����	��������	����������	����e"��"���������3���T���������������	�����	���fKJJKgh�i:=KH�\>JBVE=ZJIj�kk\�������l����������_���	��"��	�������m������������
��"	����������������/������������8	��
����	�����������/����"��������$#n����������������������������
��"	����̀��"������������������T�������6�����������	�
����A==?BCDDE:F;>X:==KHBG;>XD�@A==?BCDDE:F;>X:==KHBG;>XDP�,��o]��������	��������3���-iKE;>XKj�KpKHh>JKq

lm %m r��b0.b���$ ���	������������"����
��"��/�����	�������	��	������Q���������

�����.mm"����"����
m"����������s��
�t����������u#���v���vw���v bcm b



���������	
����������������������������������������������������������������� ������!�������������"���#��$��������%�&�'%(��)�����������������������#���*���������������������� �����������������������!���������������������!������������%�&�'%(��������+�������),�"���������$�������������������-./0123�42.5/60�781195:;;<=>=?<6@6.A;B2CD2.EF/.2<16./25G�������F/A/1=>�42.5/60@781195:;;<=>=?<6@6.A;3/.2<16.H@989GIJKLMNOJMJP�QRSTUVRNT�W�XTLNKYZP�[I	\]̂_̀ab�cJKd�eYVfYg�h\ij]_k\]\l��̀ m̂nà_m�opmj_ibql��hrn�j__\s]bqn�jsb�ja\]̂�tkn_�j�ubv�̀]hjìu\s]̀j�v̀_m�wbbx�byxbs_̀nb�̀]�_mb�h\s_bnbz{]\yz�bs_|}bŝ��~_���mb��̀sa�~kssb]_iq�nbs�bn�jn�̂b]bsji~\k]nbi�_\�_mb�hjij�bsjnl��jxjl��j]��̀b̂\�j]w�k}j�	��h�n�j]w�jn�ji_bs]j_b�~\k]nbi�_\�nb�bsji\_mbs�	��h�n�\]�aj__bsn�jn�_\�vm̀~m�_mb̀s�̂b]bsji~\k]nbin�mj�b�~\]uì~_n�\u�̀]_bsbn_���mb��̀sarnj__\s]bqn�jin\�nbs�b�jn�nxb~̀ji�~\k]nbi�_\�	��h�n�_ms\k̂m\k_�_mb�n_j_b�j]w�mj�b�wbbxì_̀̂j_̀\]�byxbs_̀nb�sbxsbnb]_̀]̂�	��h�n�̀]�~\ks_��\s�a\sb�̀]u\saj_̀\]l�xibjnb�nbb�_mb̀s�vb}ǹ_b�j_������T�KL��OUP�TNN���������T�KL��OU��\s�~\]_j~_�_mba�j_����z���z������Yg�UJM��UUJ�RLNYU���̀i�bs��nn\~̀j_b�aba}bs�ǹ]~b�����l��bs�n\]�nn\~̀j_bn�xs\�̀wbn�~ibjsl�~\]~̀nb�j]jiqǹn�u\sxsbxjsj_̀\]�\u�̂\�bs]j]~b�n_kẁbn�̀]~ikẁ]̂�ẁn_s̀~_u\saj_̀\]l�~\]n\ìwj_̀\]�j]w�ẁnn\ik_̀\]nl�j]w�mjnby_b]ǹ�b�byxbs̀b]~b�~\axib_̀]̂�̀]~\sx\sj_̀\]�n_kẁbn��yxbs_̀nb�jin\�̀]~ikwbn�ajs�b_�j]jiqǹnl�xk}ì~�ĵb]~q}kŵb_�u\sb~jn_̀]̂�j]w�wba\̂sjxm̀~�m\kǹ]̂�j]jiqǹn�̀]nkxx\s_�\u����n���̀n~ji�j]w�ù]j]~̀ji�j]jiqǹn�\u�vj_bs�j]w�vjn_bvj_bs�nqn_banl�̀]~ikẁ]̂�ij]n�u\s��bs�̀~b�u\s�j]]byj_̀\]n�j]w�u\saj_̀\]n���\s�a\sb�̀]u\saj_̀\]l�~\]_j~_��̀~mjsw�bs�n\]�j_�s̀~mjsw�}bs�n\]jnn\~̀j_bn�~\a���\k�~j]�jin\��̀ǹ_�_mb̀s�vb}ǹ_b�j_����fYg�UJMLUUJ�RLNYU��JV���TNN��������fYg�UJMLUUJ�RLNYU��JV�ITLUY��YURSMP��M���\k]wbw�̀]������}q�hms̀n�hmjnbl�hsbj_̀�b��̀sb~_\s�j]w��s̀]~̀xjilhmjnb��bǹ̂ ]�̀n�j��j]��̀b̂\�}jnbw�ùsa�nxb~̀jì|̀]̂�̀]�}sj]ẁ]̂~\]nki_j_̀\]�j]w�wbǹ̂ ]�nbs�̀~bn�u\s�}kǹ]bnnbn�j]w�\ŝj]̀|j_̀\]n_ms\k̂m\k_�_mb��]̀_bw��_j_bn��hmjnb��bǹ̂ ]�mjn�}k̀i_�j]�̀axsbnǹ�bsbxk_j_̀\]�u\s�xs\wk~̀]̂�buub~_̀�b�wbǹ̂ ]�_mj_�̂b_n�_mb̀s�~ìb]_n�sbnki_nu\s�_mb̀s�}kǹ]bnnbn�

�������l��� ����� hjìu��nn]�\u�	\~ji��̂b]~q��\saj_̀\]�h\aànǹ\]n�z��bvnib__bs

m__xn ��~jiju~\�\ŝ�~\]_b]_�xmx¡xĵb¢]bvnib__bs£�j�b¤_mb¤�j_b¤ �����



��������������	
�����	����������������������������������������������������� �!"
#"
��	$!"
#��	"$%�&
'��	#(���)����*�����+��	,$����-./0/110....�"
��#�	�)�
	�2)�
	�)����3��	,$%)"#%��4�5������������������6�7����������������8����9����6�����: ��
�;<=>?@A�?<BCD=�*"E$�F�G�#��
+	��
	)��G�#��
 �;D@H>@A�?<BCD=�*"E$�F�G�#��
+	��
	)��G�#��
 �=D?>I<?=�?<BCD=�*	�F�G�#��
�E��	)�G�#��
�HDJ>I<?=�?<BCD=�*	�F�G�#��
�E��	)�G�#��


K$$"E$)�#�$��LM&KN+�OPO*QR&ST�S&GRSKQR&S��ONR&+�&�OSO+Q���*KPKU*&�M"�
3�O��)�	"$��$"#	$��	"$�(�
	"3�"!!	)	���F�"(�$�3"$�G�F�V.������$�����N�)
E	�#�$���$3�S"#	$��	"$�(�)W��������$��"E���"�����OX�)E�	Y��&!!	)�
�%�O��)�	"$��!"
�����!"��"�	$,��������	������)"$3E)��3�3E
	$,����#�#��
�)�E)E�����3�"$�Q�E
�3�F'�&)�"��
�.Z'�V[V\�������*KPKU*&�K$$E���*"$!�
�$)���"�������3��������Q�$�F��P"3,�'�]E��"E��	3��̂"��#	���S��	"$�����
WL�TOKQTL
UE���3���	����$3�	$��
E)�	"$��)�$����!"E$3�	$�����S"#	$��	"$��(�)W����$3�!"
#����	)�����_��7�̀�����������������6�7������<6������a���a@���b�����a@����� %T�$3�)"#(����3�S"#	$��	"$�(�(�
�"
W��"�����OX�)E�	Y��+	
�)�"
�����6�����c�6�7����������6����6�����c�6�7�����8�̀_d��94�����<6�������=��������� Q���3��3�	$��!"
�
�)�	(���F�*KPKU*&�	��G"$3�F'�T�(��#��
�.-'�V[V\%�K*eROfOGOSQ�KgKN+TS"#	$��	"$��!"
�����K$$E���*KPKU*&�K)�	�Y�#�$��K��
3���
�����"���	$,�	$Y	��3������	��	#�%K��
3�)���,"
	����
�LD̀ ����������;@A@h;D�i�6̀�����D̀ ����������;@A@h;D�@����������j��_��D̀ ����������;�����������D̀ ����������A@h;D�k��7�������6A�7������@���b������@����A����6������7�����l����@������������j�5��B����<m�66�������k̀ _6��H��b���@����n�7����������k����������7@���̀6�̀��6�����D����H����A���������k��b��������7�H����6n����7���C���b�����n

opV/pV\'�.[L.1�KG *��	!�K��$�"!�P")���K,�$)F�U"
#��	"$�*"##	��	"$��0�S��������


���(�Lpp)���!)"%"
,p)"$��$�%(�(q(�,�r$��������
sT�Y�t���t+���t .upV.



������������	
����������	��������������������������������	��	������������������������	����
���������	����������	���	������������������������ 	���������������!"#$%&'$"%(�#)('�*+�()*#$''+,�'"�-'+.+�/)0&(�&'�����1������	��2	���3������4�����1������	��2	��5��6���7����8������������	���9������	���:�*;�-&')<,&;=>)?)('�@A=�BCBDEF"<�#"<+�$%G"<#&'$"%=�HI+&(+�,"J%I"&,�'K+�>J&<,�!"#$%&'$"%L&0M+'����������23�����4NN�������2���N�������	�O�	�O���������	�O�9����:��PQR�LQ-ST!U-VWVXYSTZV�QFFTXV[�\�T]LV[T>/X"%'&0'�L&)I&�U<&G�G"<�H&<'$0)I&<(E_̂̀Ca�@b@\DAAb�"<���1�������2����3������4��1�������2���:>!>/c-S�T�\�F[V-!Q-&I&<;�[&%?+d�e@=f̀AgeD=_DC>HHI$0&'$"%�h+&,I$%+d�i	��jk
�jljm
�m4ll�� P"*�h+(0<$H'$"%dnopqrpst�u�vupwoxy�rq�uttwz{so{xt�|{}op�wsso}wuxo�t|~opvwtwr{�w{vr�vw{z�potoup���u{u�ytwt��~�u{{w{z��ovu�|uxwr{��u{}�u}sw{wtxpuxwvo�}|xwot������r��{u�ytx���wt�u{�o{xpy��ovo�~rtwxwr{�w{�x�o�����r��{u�ytx���uttwqw�uxwr{�topwot���{�|s�o{xt�po�owvo�xpuw{w{z���povwo��u{}�}wpo�xwr{w{�x�o��rs~�oxwr{�rq�uttwz{so{xt��h$<+0'��)+('$"%(�'"�>#&%,&�QI$.&(�&'�̂bb�a�̀CC\C̀CD=�"<�+#&$I��������1����	���	����2���3������4�������1����	���	����2���:F)II�,+'&$I(�0&%�*+�G")%,�$%�'K+�i���8�����3��8:3�����4NN�������2���N������N�����NjljmO�	�����O�O��������	���������j2���:�������������3�����4NN�������2���N��	��	�2���5����7	�9��������:��X&I+%,&<�"G�V.+%'(�o�r��upo�to�o�xo}���������ovo{xt�xr�x�o�o{}�rq�x�o�youp���rp�u��rs~�oxo��|~�xr�}uxo�wtxw{z��~�outo���o���x�o������������� �¡¢�£¤¥¥¦§̈©©����ª��¢�¡«©����� �¡¢¦¤¦¬h>SV VZV!SPY!V�ADS=��dCC�>] X>/>FXQ�/+?$(I&'$.+�X"##$''++�̂Z$<')&Ia

b®B�®BD=�ACdA@�>] X&I$G�>((%�"G�/"0&I�>?+%0;�F"<#&'$"%�X"##$(($"%(�\�!+J(I+''+<

K''H(d®®0&I&G0"E"<?®0"%'+%'EHKH̄H&?+°%+J(I+''+<±-&.+²'K+²h&'+² A�®BA



��������	
������ ����������������������������������� ��!��������"
������ ��������#���$��%�&���'����������(������� ��!��)�*���+�$
������ �����������������������������
��%�(��$�$����� ��!��)�*��+��� &,�&�-.,���'"������(���/��$��.���(����(�& �*,0�,�#,1��2�" &,�&�-.,����������#���$����3��.���(����(�0�'4����& �*,0�,�#,1��2�" &,�&�-.,������(��1�5����(�������&����(����(�����& �*,0�,�#,1��2�" �����$�6������7 �����(����'���(�'8�3��(����3�����9����#,1����" &,�&�-.,���3��(����#�������%���#���$����3��,��'���(�& �����#,1��2�":�;�" ���������(( ����(%���('�����������!����#,1��<�" ���������(( ���# ��(���������(�����������!����#,1��;�" ��������#���$��%�&���'����������(�����������!.��,�#,1����
������ �����������������������������
��%�(��$�$����� ��!&,�,�#,1�2�"
������ �����������������������������
��%�(��$�$����� ��!�=>?@�AB�ABC�DEAACFGHH?>I>J?BKBLMH?BNAONAKCECPC>MOQNORFIOAAOLST��

U8��8�V
����+��� ����%����(��%���'������('6���������(����������(��:�.�/�������

"��5��88'���%'�9���8'�(��(�95"5W5���X(�/�������Y*���Z�"�Z&���Z �8��



����������	
���� ��������������������������������������������������� �!�������

"��#�
���������$�����������$#"#%#���&��!�������'(�)�*�"�*+���* �����





By By KATE TALERICOKATE TALERICO |  | ktalerico@bayareanewsgroup.comktalerico@bayareanewsgroup.com | Bay Area News Group | Bay Area News Group

PUBLISHED: PUBLISHED: April 21, 2024 at 6:00 a.m.April 21, 2024 at 6:00 a.m. | UPDATED:  | UPDATED: April 22, 2024 at 2:28 a.m.April 22, 2024 at 2:28 a.m.

Development continues to eat up agricultural land in Morgan Hill, Calif., Wednesday, Feb. 26, 2020,Development continues to eat up agricultural land in Morgan Hill, Calif., Wednesday, Feb. 26, 2020,
leaving Andy’s Orchard (center left) as one of the few operating farms. But it, too, could soon becomeleaving Andy’s Orchard (center left) as one of the few operating farms. But it, too, could soon become
housing if a proposal submitted through the builder’s remedy goes through. (Karl Mondon/Bay Area Newshousing if a proposal submitted through the builder’s remedy goes through. (Karl Mondon/Bay Area News
Group)Group)

NEWSNEWS  HOUSINGHOUSING

It’s not just skyscrapers and high-It’s not just skyscrapers and high-
density — ‘builder’s remedy’ is alsodensity — ‘builder’s remedy’ is also
bringing more urban sprawlbringing more urban sprawl
Developers propose hundreds of single-family homes inDevelopers propose hundreds of single-family homes in
agricultural land and hillsides on the edges of the Bay Areaagricultural land and hillsides on the edges of the Bay Area

 • • NewsNews

ITEM 11 .2

https://www.mercurynews.com/author/kate-talerico/
mailto:ktalerico@bayareanewsgroup.com
https://www.mercurynews.com/news/
https://www.mercurynews.com/news/housing/


Outside Morgan Hill in southern Santa Clara County, an orchard could be razed for 320 single-familyOutside Morgan Hill in southern Santa Clara County, an orchard could be razed for 320 single-family

homes. On a pasture on the northern edge of Benicia, cows could give way to 1,080 houses. On ahomes. On a pasture on the northern edge of Benicia, cows could give way to 1,080 houses. On a

quiet, tree-lined, two-lane road cutting through Sonoma County wine country, there could soon bequiet, tree-lined, two-lane road cutting through Sonoma County wine country, there could soon be

traffic from 514 homes.traffic from 514 homes.

In a development pattern reminiscent of the 1960s, homebuilders are proposing these houses —In a development pattern reminiscent of the 1960s, homebuilders are proposing these houses —

and thousands more — on farmland and grassy hills on the outskirts of the Bay Area.and thousands more — on farmland and grassy hills on the outskirts of the Bay Area.

And because of state housing law, local governments and concerned environmental groups may beAnd because of state housing law, local governments and concerned environmental groups may be

powerless to stop them.powerless to stop them.

RELATED: RELATED: Builder’s remedy was supposed to ‘Manhattanize’ the Bay Area. So where are allBuilder’s remedy was supposed to ‘Manhattanize’ the Bay Area. So where are all

the houses?the houses?

Density and infill have been the ideals for development among California housing advocates inDensity and infill have been the ideals for development among California housing advocates in

recent years as the state finally starts to make progress building more housing amid a direrecent years as the state finally starts to make progress building more housing amid a dire

shortage. But recently, one of the tools in state housing law that’s generated the most excitementshortage. But recently, one of the tools in state housing law that’s generated the most excitement

among YIMBYs for its power to build new high-density housing in areas that previously rejected it,among YIMBYs for its power to build new high-density housing in areas that previously rejected it,

could also end up leading to just the opposite: urban sprawl.could also end up leading to just the opposite: urban sprawl.

“Certainly, this is not what housing advocates were thinking would happen,” said Jordan Grimes,“Certainly, this is not what housing advocates were thinking would happen,” said Jordan Grimes,

who works on sustainable housing policy at the Greenbelt Alliance, a climate-focused nonprofit.who works on sustainable housing policy at the Greenbelt Alliance, a climate-focused nonprofit.

Developers proposing these massive new subdivisions on the edge of the Bay Area are playing aDevelopers proposing these massive new subdivisions on the edge of the Bay Area are playing a

card previously unavailable to them — the “builder’s remedy,” a penalty imposed on cities andcard previously unavailable to them — the “builder’s remedy,” a penalty imposed on cities and

counties that aren’t doing their part to build new housing. It allows developers to skirt local zoning,counties that aren’t doing their part to build new housing. It allows developers to skirt local zoning,

so long as 20% of the units qualify as affordable.so long as 20% of the units qualify as affordable.

https://www.mercurynews.com/2024/04/14/builders-remedy-was-supposed-to-manhattanize-the-bay-area-so-where-are-all-the-houses/
https://www.mercurynews.com/2024/04/14/builders-remedy-was-supposed-to-manhattanize-the-bay-area-so-where-are-all-the-houses/
https://www.lennar.com/new-homes/california/sacramento/promo/lsclen_heritage_placer_vineyards?utm_source=bang&utm_medium=video


California law requires cities and counties to come up with plans every eight years for how they willCalifornia law requires cities and counties to come up with plans every eight years for how they will

accommodate residential growth projected for their area. By 2031, the Bay Area is meant to buildaccommodate residential growth projected for their area. By 2031, the Bay Area is meant to build

440,000 new units to make up for a years-long shortage, which has led to some of the 440,000 new units to make up for a years-long shortage, which has led to some of the nation’snation’s

highest rents and home priceshighest rents and home prices and thousands of people  and thousands of people living on the streetsliving on the streets..

Bay Area cities and counties were supposed to submit their latest plans to the state in January 2023,Bay Area cities and counties were supposed to submit their latest plans to the state in January 2023,

but but many blew the deadlinemany blew the deadline. Now, they’ll face the consequence: developers can propose almost any. Now, they’ll face the consequence: developers can propose almost any

project they want, including major subdivisions on unincorporated county land that doesn’t alwaysproject they want, including major subdivisions on unincorporated county land that doesn’t always

have the infrastructure to support new growth.have the infrastructure to support new growth.

“This is not the type of housing the builder’s remedy was meant for, nor that we should be“This is not the type of housing the builder’s remedy was meant for, nor that we should be

encouraging,” Grimes said. “Had counties and cities submitted compliant plans, we would not be inencouraging,” Grimes said. “Had counties and cities submitted compliant plans, we would not be in

this boat that we’re in now.”this boat that we’re in now.”

Homes in the hillsHomes in the hills

Driving along Pierce Road in the hills above Saratoga, there’s a moment where the homes give wayDriving along Pierce Road in the hills above Saratoga, there’s a moment where the homes give way

to forest. The road narrows. Keep climbing and you’ll eventually get to the Mountain Winery, ato forest. The road narrows. Keep climbing and you’ll eventually get to the Mountain Winery, a

popular concert venue with a 2,500-seat amphitheater and expansive views of the South Bay.popular concert venue with a 2,500-seat amphitheater and expansive views of the South Bay.

Earlier this year, the property owners Earlier this year, the property owners submitted a builder’s remedy applicationsubmitted a builder’s remedy application with plans to with plans to

expand the site, adding hundreds of homes and a hotel.expand the site, adding hundreds of homes and a hotel.

There are plenty of reasons opponents dislike the project, and Alice Kaufman, policy director of theThere are plenty of reasons opponents dislike the project, and Alice Kaufman, policy director of the

open space preservation nonprofit Green Foothills, can name a few. The hillside is at major risk ofopen space preservation nonprofit Green Foothills, can name a few. The hillside is at major risk of

wildfire — in the event of an evacuation, the road could be too small to handle the traffic. Wouldwildfire — in the event of an evacuation, the road could be too small to handle the traffic. Would

insurance companies, which are fleeing California, cover the homes here, she wonders? What’sinsurance companies, which are fleeing California, cover the homes here, she wonders? What’s

more, the project could set a precedent for future development in these foothills.more, the project could set a precedent for future development in these foothills.

“We know the state has a goal of wanting to have more housing, but they also have a goal of“We know the state has a goal of wanting to have more housing, but they also have a goal of

protecting more open space,” Kaufman said.protecting more open space,” Kaufman said.

https://www.mercurynews.com/2023/02/03/housing-costs-trouble-bay-area-residents-more-than-elsewhere-in-california-new-poll-finds/
https://www.mercurynews.com/2023/02/03/housing-costs-trouble-bay-area-residents-more-than-elsewhere-in-california-new-poll-finds/
https://www.mercurynews.com/2024/01/25/just-how-many-homeless-people-are-in-the-bay-area-annual-census-aims-to-nail-down-a-number/
https://www.mercurynews.com/2023/02/01/most-bay-area-cities-are-now-late-on-their-state-housing-plans-and-new-penalties-could-be-in-store/
https://www.siliconvalley.com/2024/04/02/mountain-winery-owners-propose-boutique-hotel-housing-on-saratoga-property/?ref=biztoc.com


On a recent sunny day from the top of Mountain Winery, Kaufman looked out over the sprawlingOn a recent sunny day from the top of Mountain Winery, Kaufman looked out over the sprawling

development below that has defined much of the Bay Area’s growth.development below that has defined much of the Bay Area’s growth.

Alice Kaufman, policy director for environmental nonprofit Green Foothills, is concerned about “builderAlice Kaufman, policy director for environmental nonprofit Green Foothills, is concerned about “builder
remedy” projects threatening Bay Area farmland and hillsides, like the one proposed at Mountain Winery inremedy” projects threatening Bay Area farmland and hillsides, like the one proposed at Mountain Winery in
unincorporated Santa Clara County near Saratoga, Calif., Friday, April 19, 2024. (Karl Mondon/Bay Areaunincorporated Santa Clara County near Saratoga, Calif., Friday, April 19, 2024. (Karl Mondon/Bay Area
News Group) News Group) 

“We realized the mistakes we made in decades past,” she said. “It’s costly to build this way.”“We realized the mistakes we made in decades past,” she said. “It’s costly to build this way.”

In 2020, Saratoga In 2020, Saratoga decided against annexingdecided against annexing the property into city limits. The move would have the property into city limits. The move would have

opened a path for Mountain Winery owner Bill Hirschman to build the sort of higher-density projectopened a path for Mountain Winery owner Bill Hirschman to build the sort of higher-density project

that counties tend to reject and instead encourage in cities, so that new housing goes in nearthat counties tend to reject and instead encourage in cities, so that new housing goes in near

existing roads, schools and jobs.existing roads, schools and jobs.

But Bay Area cities have largely resisted building new homes.But Bay Area cities have largely resisted building new homes.

“The default scenario in California for decades has been to build housing on agricultural land or out“The default scenario in California for decades has been to build housing on agricultural land or out

in the periphery, because cities won’t allow you to build it within their boundaries,” said Matthewin the periphery, because cities won’t allow you to build it within their boundaries,” said Matthew

Lewis, communications director of California YIMBY, a pro-housing group.Lewis, communications director of California YIMBY, a pro-housing group.

Now, rather than being able to plan for where new houses go, the builder’s remedy is forcing newNow, rather than being able to plan for where new houses go, the builder’s remedy is forcing new

haphazard development, he said.haphazard development, he said.

“It delivers the housing that the area needs, but it doesn’t give cities the ability to do the kind of“It delivers the housing that the area needs, but it doesn’t give cities the ability to do the kind of

planning that they should be doing,” Lewis said. That could involve rezoning areas near transit toplanning that they should be doing,” Lewis said. That could involve rezoning areas near transit to

accommodate more housing — not stretching out city boundaries farther.accommodate more housing — not stretching out city boundaries farther.

https://www.mercurynews.com/2020/05/21/saratoga-move-to-annex-mountain-winery-fails-amid-staunch-local-opposition/


Alice Kaufman, policy director for environmental nonprofit Green Foothills, takes a photo near Saratoga,Alice Kaufman, policy director for environmental nonprofit Green Foothills, takes a photo near Saratoga,
Calif., Friday, April 19, 2024. Kaufman is concerned about “builder remedy” projects threatening Bay AreaCalif., Friday, April 19, 2024. Kaufman is concerned about “builder remedy” projects threatening Bay Area
farmland and hillsides, like the one proposed at Mountain Winery in unincorporated Santa Clara County.farmland and hillsides, like the one proposed at Mountain Winery in unincorporated Santa Clara County.
(Karl Mondon/Bay Area News Group) (Karl Mondon/Bay Area News Group) 

Despite pushback from environmentalists and some housing advocates, the developers proposingDespite pushback from environmentalists and some housing advocates, the developers proposing

such subdivisions reject the “sprawl” label.such subdivisions reject the “sprawl” label.

Robin Baral, a land use attorney with Hanson Bridgett, is working on several projects in Santa ClaraRobin Baral, a land use attorney with Hanson Bridgett, is working on several projects in Santa Clara

County.County.

RELATED: RELATED: This map reveals where supersized ‘builder’s remedy’ projects could be comingThis map reveals where supersized ‘builder’s remedy’ projects could be coming

“These are places adjacent to city limits, where cities have proposed annexation for decades — but“These are places adjacent to city limits, where cities have proposed annexation for decades — but

for political or other reasons those annexations never happened,” Baral said. “They are responsiblyfor political or other reasons those annexations never happened,” Baral said. “They are responsibly

planned.”planned.”

Real estate investment firm Mana Investments is behind the proposed subdivision at Andy’sReal estate investment firm Mana Investments is behind the proposed subdivision at Andy’s

Orchard near Morgan Hill.Orchard near Morgan Hill.

“We could have put in 1,500 homes, but we’re only doing 374 because we’re trying to blend it with“We could have put in 1,500 homes, but we’re only doing 374 because we’re trying to blend it with

the fabric of the neighborhood,” said Mana Managing Partner Orville Power. “If we lived there,the fabric of the neighborhood,” said Mana Managing Partner Orville Power. “If we lived there,

that’s what we would want to see.”that’s what we would want to see.”

https://www.mercurynews.com/2024/04/14/this-map-reveals-where-supersized-builders-remedy-projects-could-be-coming/


Ciro Casa, a farm hand at Andy’s Orchard prunes nectarine treats in Morgan Hill, Calif., Wednesday, Feb. 26,Ciro Casa, a farm hand at Andy’s Orchard prunes nectarine treats in Morgan Hill, Calif., Wednesday, Feb. 26,
2020. (Karl Mondon/Bay Area News Group) 2020. (Karl Mondon/Bay Area News Group) 

While the project may seem like it doesn’t fit within the setting of nearby farms right now, the city ofWhile the project may seem like it doesn’t fit within the setting of nearby farms right now, the city of

Morgan Hill has already approved hundreds of homes nearby — national homebuilders TollMorgan Hill has already approved hundreds of homes nearby — national homebuilders Toll

Brothers and Tramell Crow control two of the adjacent lots, and Live Oak High School is located justBrothers and Tramell Crow control two of the adjacent lots, and Live Oak High School is located just

across the street.across the street.

“It’s not that there is never going to be housing here,” Power said. “It’s just a matter of time.”“It’s not that there is never going to be housing here,” Power said. “It’s just a matter of time.”

Local governments can shut down builder’s remedy projects that are truly in the middle of nowhereLocal governments can shut down builder’s remedy projects that are truly in the middle of nowhere

— the provision doesn’t apply for housing that would be located on farmland or open space, that is— the provision doesn’t apply for housing that would be located on farmland or open space, that is

also surrounded on two sides by agricultural land, or if there is not adequate water or sewer servicealso surrounded on two sides by agricultural land, or if there is not adequate water or sewer service

for the project.for the project.

RELATED: RELATED: A wealthy Peninsula town is dragging its feet on building housing, state says. Now,A wealthy Peninsula town is dragging its feet on building housing, state says. Now,

it faces consequences.it faces consequences.

]Whether these projects actually move forward remains to be seen. Although the builder’s remedy]Whether these projects actually move forward remains to be seen. Although the builder’s remedy

is meant to prevent cities and counties from denying such projects based upon their local zoning,is meant to prevent cities and counties from denying such projects based upon their local zoning,

jurisdictions have still been holding up projects in lengthy environmental reviewsjurisdictions have still been holding up projects in lengthy environmental reviews and, sometimes, and, sometimes,

litigation, causing some to doubt how effective the provision is in driving new housing.litigation, causing some to doubt how effective the provision is in driving new housing.

Whether it’s through builder’s remedy or their own planning process, Power says, counties andWhether it’s through builder’s remedy or their own planning process, Power says, counties and

cities are going to have to find some way to build the housing the state says they need.cities are going to have to find some way to build the housing the state says they need.

“Santa Clara County has been traditionally just set up to approve small subdivisions — now, the“Santa Clara County has been traditionally just set up to approve small subdivisions — now, the

state says they have 3,200 homes they need to build,” Power said. “They can’t stuff them all into Sanstate says they have 3,200 homes they need to build,” Power said. “They can’t stuff them all into San

Jose — they have to be spread around the county.”Jose — they have to be spread around the county.”

Full House: Full House: Get complete coverage of the Bay Area's housing crisis.Get complete coverage of the Bay Area's housing crisis.

https://www.mercurynews.com/2024/04/02/portola-valley-housing-element-decertified-california/
https://www.mercurynews.com/2024/04/02/portola-valley-housing-element-decertified-california/
https://www.eastbaytimes.com/2024/04/14/builders-remedy-was-supposed-to-manhattanize-the-bay-area-so-where-are-all-the-houses/

	1. ROLL CALL
	2. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	3. APPROVE CONSENT CALENDAR
	*4. APPROVE MINUTES OF APRIL 3, 2024 LAFCO MEETING
	Minutes

	5. FINAL WORK PLAN AND BUDGET FOR FY 2025
	Staff Report
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C


	*6. WEST VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 2024-01 (BIG BASIN)
	Staff Report
	Attachment A
	Attachment B


	*7. WEST VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT 2024-02 (HIGH STREET)
	Staff Report
	Attachment A
	Attachment B


	8. IMPLEMENTATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM LAFCO’S COUNTYWIDE FIRE SERVICE REVIEW
	Staff Report
	Attachment A
	Supp. Info #1: Revised Attachment B
	Supp. Info #2: Communications on Speed Bumps on Mendelsohn Lane
	#1
	#2
	#3



	9. CALAFCO RELATED ACTIVITIES
	Staff Report
	Attachment A


	10. COMMISSIONER REPORTS
	11. NEWSPAPER ARTICLES / NEWSLETTERS
	CALAFCO Quarterly Newsletter (May 2024)
	Article from Mercury News, "It’s not just skyscrapers and high-density also density — ‘builder’s remedy’ is also bringing more urban sprawl" (April 22, 2024)

	12. WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE
	13. ADJOURN



